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Restated
KE7
2011 2010
=2-—-F ~—T-ZF
HK$Million HK$Million
BEEBT A¥KEET
Segment Revenue* ZERA?
Construction and engineering BERMKMTIE 3,211 3,200
Insurance and investment Rig RRE 170 101
Property LZES 722 467
Food and beverages B 452 542
Computer and information communication B R A AR
technology and others KE A 1,200 1,143
Total M 5,755 5,453
Segment Performance® DERER™
Construction and engineering BERMKMTIE 114 155
Insurance and investment Rig RRE (35) 50
Property LZES 726 383
Food and beverages BER 177 (12)
Computer and information communication B R A AR
technology and others R E A (13) 20
Total Wi 969 596

#  Included share of revenue and results of associates and jointly controlled entities
BEMGHE AR RAREG R Z WA RES

*  Included segment results and gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities

21%
10% 59%
8%
2%

BREIBEERHENBRR R ARZEH EE 2 #ER

SEGMENT REVENUE
2ERA

12%
3%
SEGMENT PERFORMANCE

DERR
(HKS$ Million /& ¥ & & 1)

(35)

(11) @

Construction and
engineering

BERBHMIRE

21%
8% 56%

Property
E/ES

Computer and information

B subsidiaries KA

ccdiand communication X .
RIS technology and others . Associates B N
#H BIEREMBADNERAM . Jointly controlled entities [ 4%
2 HiEBREEARATE
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The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, results and other financial information of Chevalier International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) as of year ended 31 March for the last five years.
THRELTEREEFRAR(ARR D REMNBAR (GBI AKEDNBELFABE=A=t—HILZHEE #EBE -
EEREMPBERR

Restated Restated

KES  KED
Financials (HK$ Million) B%EE (B¥EET) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Total assets HEE 8,595 7,313 8,121 8,589 7,291
Total liabilities waE 3,716 3,088 4,460 4,822 3,976
Total equity Bz 4,879 4,225 3,661 3,767 3,315
Non-controlling interests FEIER 2 399 377 381 445 322
Shareholders’ funds BREED 4,480 3,848 3,280 3,322 2,993
Share capital & 7
— in number (Million) -HEBE(BEER) 278 278 278 279 279
— in value (HK$1.25 per share) -BEEREE1.257T) 347 347 347 348 348
Revenue '@ 3,491 3,934 5,196 5,569 4,665
Profit attributable to equity holders RRFPIERA A
of the Company JE 15 4 798 417 123 231 318
Per Share Basis (HK$) BRETE(GEY)
Earnings — basic B8R - EAR 2.87 1.50 0.44 0.83 1.14
Dividends 8 1.15 0.70 0.455 0.45 0.50
Net asset value BEFE
- including non-controlling interests - BIEFE R 17.6 15.2 13.2 13.5 11.9
— excluding non-controlling interests EROECE et e 16.1 13.8 11.8 11.9 10.7
Profit attributable to equity holders
Revenue of the Company
WA RRA B RERE AELER
(HK$ Milion &% & EIT) (HKS Million 7## 5 & 1)

11 1
10 10

09 09 S

08 08

07 07

Shareholders’ funds Earnings and dividends per share
BRRES BREMNRERE
(HK$ Million 7% & & 7T) (HKS 75)

11 4,480 T ——
10 3,848 1 | ——

09 3,280 09

08 3,322 e

07 2,993 07 [ —r

W Dividends i85 W Earnings ¥

Note: The figures for 2009 and 2010 have been restated pursuant to the adoption of all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards as explained in
Note 2(a)(i) and (ii) to the consolidated financial statements of 2011. Figures for 2007 and 2008 have not been restated.
iz : Z—ZEEAFR_Z-ZERFERFEH_Z——FHESUBRRME () R (i) MR EERETE B REEI T FAES - —FF

tER_ZENFEFLEST -
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I am pleased to report that Chevalier International Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) made
a record profit during the financial year 2010/11. This was the
result of the realisation of gains from the disposal of two property
development projects in Mainland China, as well as the disposal
of an 80% equity interest in Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited and
its subsidiaries (the “Pacific Coffee Group”). The diversity of our
business operations also enabled the Group to perform relatively well
in the aftermath of the 2008 financial crisis.

The contribution made by the Group’s construction and engineering
business remained steady during the financial year. Going forward,
the major infrastructure projects launched by the Hong Kong
Government in recent years and the additional ones that will come
in the next few years lead us to expect upward pressure on domestic
labour costs. These will need to be managed carefully in order to
avoid an adverse effect on our business margins.

In terms of our Mainland China real estate development business,
besides the two projects in Shenzhen and Hefei that we disposed
of during the year, the Group still has projects in the pipeline in
Chengdu, Beijing and Changchun. Despite the Central Government’s
continued implementation of stringent measures to control the
Mainland property market, we believe the projects we currently
have on hand will make healthy contributions to the Group over
the next few years. That is because they mainly consist of affordable
mid-range residential units in second and third tier cities, where the
property market is less overheated. We will also continue to seek
opportunities to replenish our land bank as these ongoing projects
are gradually completed.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited 6

The Group made a record profit during the fiscal
year. Our construction and engineering business’s
contribution remained steady, and we expect our
ongoing real-estate projects in Mainland China
will continue to generate good returns.
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Chairman’s Statement

+ 0 e

During the year, the Group took several strategic initiatives in our
food and beverages business. The first was the disposal of an 80%
interest in the Pacific Coffee Group to China Resources Enterprise,
Limited (“CRE”), a Hang Seng Index constituent company that
focuses on consumer businesses in Mainland China. Our new
partnership with CRE will open up fresh prospects for the Pacific
Coffee Group’s future growth and development, especially on the
Mainland. The second was the merger of Igor’s with Cafe Deco. This
has created one of the Hong Kong’s largest western restaurant and
bar operators, and it also has a presence in Sydney and Macau.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to enhance shareholder
value by further investing in its existing businesses and seeking new
opportunities to generate sustained cash flow. In this respect, we
acquired two premises in Kwai Chung and Tsing Yi after the financial
year for cold storage and logistics operation. We also entered into
agreement for a strategic investment in a senior housing project in
Oregon, USA, with the long-term goal of bringing expertise in this
area to the Mainland China market.

In conclusion, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to all those
who contributed to the Group’s ongoing success during the past
financial year, including our loyal customers, reliable suppliers and
steadfast shareholders. I would also like to say a word of appreciation
to our dedicated and hardworking employees, who unfailingly
grasped every challenge and turned it into an opportunity, as well
as to my colleagues on the Board of Directors for their strong
leadership, firm support and wise counsel. We pledge ourselves to
continue doing our utmost to justify your confidence in us in the
future.

FR AEEHEREFRDNETRBESE
HeoF—BEALAAMEBEIXERA _7(f§§f3
Bl % |) B %335 A Pacific Coffee £ & E’JSO%*E
mEFHaZE A —HEEERESEKOHRAT
AR A ) E B TS o $E@§ﬁi$ﬂ€”¥2
] B 3T % H B8 1R 15 /5 Pacific Coffee £ [E /Y H 1%
EEFER(LHEEENM)FABITHNZHE -5
TIEEMARIgors HESEENESHMAED
if/%ﬁ’j(%”ﬁ’gg?&/@”EA Bz — WA
BN BFIEREDE -

AEBBERKE - FRENBBERE K
e LS RKRER SR - KMAESRARR
BIE - Bt - NREERYRFERBBERES
REXRNMEDFEESHEERYREEL
Ao REBIRAT N i B B S B M A
e BBETRIEERE EEERRER
1% BRERcERIIAFEAMTS -

& AAZBHREBE AP RFEHAE
EHSFEKNEL ERAA TBUARO B
= H‘:F'@%Uam%}f' —JsEE}JT Eﬁ&i
EI ﬁwihT%mﬁﬁl w%ﬁ I%
Higb e URBRHESEL2EBRCHA
BHEE  BRFESFRPERE AEEHES
BEBEFTRE  TAET-

CHOW Yei Ching FrE
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The Group’s consolidated revenue decreased by 11.3%, from HK$3,934
million in 2009/10 to HK$3,491 million for the year ended 31 March 2011.
Meanwhile, its total segment revenue increased during the same period by
5.5%, from HK$5,453 million to HK$5,755 million. Profit for the year rose
significantly from HK$495 million to HK$886 million, mainly due to the
realisation of gains from the disposal of property development projects in
Mainland China and of an 80% equity interest in the Pacific Coffee Group.
The profit attributable to the Company’s equity holders amounted to
HK$798 million, compared to HK$417 million during the previous fiscal
year. Earnings per share increased from HK$1.50 for 2009/10 to HK$2.87 for
the year ended 31 March 2011.

CONSTRUCTION AND ENGINEERING

The construction and engineering segment’s revenue for the year ended
31 March 2011 remained relatively unchanged at HK$3,211 million
(2009/10: HK$3,200 million). However, its profit declined by 12.3%, from
HK$130 million in 2009/10 to HK$114 million. The main reason for this
was a reduction in the contribution the Group received from the lifts and
escalators business, in which the Group has reduced its interest to 49% since
December 2009. However, the increased revenue of its construction and pipe
rehabilitation businesses helped to maintain the segment revenue’s stability.

As at 31 March 2011, the construction and engineering segment’s
outstanding contracts on hand had a total value of HK$2,893 million. The
most important of these included:

1. Construction of Academics 2 for the City University of Hong Kong;

2. Construction of the residential development at 1 Broadcast Drive,
Kowloon Tong;

3. Construction of the residential development at Tsing Fat Lane Area 58,
Siu Lam, Tuen Mun;

4. Construction of the residential development at Plover Cove Road and
Po Wu Lane, Tai Po;

5. Electrical Installation for the Indoor Velodrome-cum-Sports Centre,
Tseung Kwan O;

6. Installation of lifts at Yau Oi (II) Estate;

7.  The HDB 15th Term Contract for Upgrading Lifts and Escalators in
Singapore;

8. Design, supply and installation of curtain walls for the junction of On
Lai Street and On Ping Street, Shatin; and

9.  Environmental engineering works at Tai Po Water Treatment Works.

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT

The insurance and investment segment’s total revenue increased from
HK$101 million to HK$170 million during the 2010/11 financial year,
mainly due to the growth of its insurance revenue. In the same period, it
also made a net loss of HK$35.8 million, compared to a segment profit of
HK$50.0 million in the previous year, as a result of a portfolio restructuring
exercise to minimise the Group’s exposure to fluctuations in the fair values
of derivative financial instruments.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited 8
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PROPERTY

The property segment’s revenue increased by 54.6%, from HK$467 million
in 2009/10 to HK$722 million for the year ended 31 March 2011. This was
mainly due to recognition of revenue from the sale of properties at a project
in Beijing by our jointly controlled entity. Sales with gross floor area of
986,638 sq. ft. of this project was recognised as at 31 March 2011.

The segment’s profit declined slightly, from HK$383 million in 2009/10 to
HK$348 million in 2010/11 after including an impairment of hotel property
in Mainland China of HK$12.3 million. Rising property values in Hong Kong
and on the Mainland led to the Group recording an upward adjustment of
HK$172 million on its investment properties and properties for sale during
the year under review, compared to a revaluation surplus of HK$192 million
the previous year.

The Group recorded a total gain of HK$378 million on the disposal of two
major projects in Xiling, Shenzhen, and Hefei, Anhui Province, in April and
July 2010 respectively. After taking the settlement of advances made by the
Group into account, this generated total cash proceeds of HK$742 million
during the year under review. The remaining proceeds of HK$59.5 million
was received in April 2011.

The performance of the Group’s cold storage and logistics operation
remained constant, and they made steady contributions in terms of revenue
and profit. Subsequent to the financial year-end, the Group increased its
storage space portfolio by acquiring premises at Kwai Chung and Tsing Yi
Island. These have a gross floor area of 379,989 sq. ft. and 253,470 sq. ft.
respectively.

In June 2011, the Group entered into contracts to purchase three senior
housing assets in Beaverton, Gresham and Portland City, all in Great
Portland Area of Oregon State, United States, for an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$272 million. The assets include three parcels of
land with a total site area of approximately 479,000 sq. ft. The growing
aged population and steady rise in healthcare expenditure in the US are
expected to boost demand for senior citizen housing. The Group is therefore
optimistic that this operation will generate stable operating income and offer
capital appreciation potential in the future.

FOOD AND BEVERAGES

The food and beverages segment’s revenue declined from HK$542 million
to HK$452 million during the financial year. While the disposal of an 80%
interest in the Pacific Coffee Group yielded a gain of HK$217 million, the
segment’s net contribution amounted to HK$177 million after a goodwill
impairment and the unrealised loss on the fair value of an option held are
taken into account.
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Cafe Deco Group

The segment’s food and beverages business operated under the name of Cafe
Deco Group, following the merger of Cafe Deco and Igor’s in December
2010. The merger has positioned it well to take advantage of the region’s fast-
growing and lucrative lifestyle food and beverages market.

Before the merger, Cafe Deco’s casual dining brands included Cafe Deco
Bar & Grill, Cafe Sydney, Cafe Deco Macau, Peak Cafe Bar and Top Deck.
Together with Igor’s specialty bars and restaurants, the merged group offers
customers a wide range of western and Asian lifestyle food and beverages
experiences — from casual drinks to sophisticated dining. As of 31 March
2011, the Cafe Deco Group operated 40 outlets.

Pacific Coffee Group

CRE has become the Group’s new strategic partner and Pacific Coffee
Group’s major shareholder. CRE’s extensive network and experience in the
retail market will give Pacific Coffee Group fresh opportunities to increase its
competitiveness, build its brand, and expand its presence in Mainland China
more efficiently. The Group has retained a 20% interest in Pacific Coffee
Group in order to benefit from the growth of its business in the future. As of
31 March 2011, Pacific Coffee Group had expanded to include 96 stores in
Hong Kong, 2 in Singapore and 2 in Mainland China.

COMPUTER AND INFORMATION COMMUNICATIONS
TECHNOLOGY AND OTHERS

Due to the better performance of the Group’s information communications
business in Hong Kong and car dealership in both Mainland China and
Canada, the segment’s revenue grew by 5.0%, from HK$1,143 million in
2009/10 to HK$1,200 million during the year under review.

On the other hand, the Group recorded a segment loss of HK$13.0 million,
due to the termination of its interest in a mining project in the Philippines
during November 2010. The expenses incurred by this project — including
drilling, testing, legal, consultancy and advisory costs — were reflected in this
segment’s results.

To address the challenges that exist in the marketplace, the information
communications division will focus in future on strengthening its revenue
streams in three areas. These are: (1) keeping a close eye on new infotainment
technology, such as 3-D notebook computers and Tablet PCs for the
consumer sector; (2) maximising its synergy with the telephone system
division to bundle phone systems with high-end notebook computers for
commercial users; and (3) providing various post-sales maintenance service
packages.

The Group’s car dealership joint venture business in Sichuan made good
progress. It currently operates six 4S Shops selling well-known automobile
brands in Sichuan. The joint venture intends to open more 4S Shops in
Sichuan, and the Group will actively seek opportunities to expand its
network to other Mainland China cities.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue

Revenue of the Group decreased by 11.3% or HK$443 million from
HK$3,934 million last year to HK$3,491 million this year. The decrease
was mainly attributed to the effect of the deconsolidation of the lifts and
escalators business (being the “CHK Group”) after December 2009 and
the branded coffee shop business (being the “Pacific Coffee Group”) after
July 2010. Both of the CHK Group and the Pacific Coffee Group have been
accounted for as associates of the Group since the deconsolidation.

Gross profit
Gross profit decreased by 25.3% to HK$633 million for the year ended 31
March 2011 and gross profit margin decreased from 21.5% to 18.1%.

Other income, net

There was a net other income of HK$31.6 million (2010: HK$26.7 million)
recorded in this fiscal year. The net other income was mainly derived from
the management fee income, interest income and sales and marketing
services income from the Group’s associates and jointly controlled entities
amounted to HK$70.8 million (2010: HK$24.6 million) during the year.
On the other hand, the net other income was reduced by the net loss of
HK$47.9 million (2010: HK$5.1 million) from its trading investment
portfolio and derivative financial instruments in the current year following
the restructuring exercise to minimise the Group’s exposure to fluctuations
in the fair values of derivative financial instruments.

Other gains, net

Net other gains increased from HK$245 million last year to HK$338 million.
Major components in net other gains are gain on disposal of interest in the
Pacific Coffee Group of HK$217 million (2010: HK$32.2 million from gain
on disposal of interests in subsidiaries), increase in fair value of investment
properties of HK$163 million (2010: HK$180 million) and net of an
impairment loss on goodwill of HK$36.5 million (2010: HK$29.2 million)
for food and beverages business and other business. In last year, available-
for-sale investments contributed a net gain of HK$48.3 million to the
consolidated income statement but nil in current year.

Selling and distribution cost

The deconsolidation of the selling and distribution costs of the Pacific Coffee
Group following the Group’s disposal of 80% equity interest in the Pacific
Coffee Group this year contributed to the decrease in the Group’s selling and
distributions costs.
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Share of results of associates

The Group’s share of results of associates improved substantially to HK$106
million (2010: HK$58.0 million). The improvement was mainly due to the
share of full year profit of the CHK Group as associate in current year while
the Group only recognised three months of profit from the CHK Group
in the share of results of associates last year when the CHK Group turned
from a group of subsidiaries into a group of associates of the Company
after December 2009. The increase in fair value of an associate’s investment
property also attributed to increase in share of results of associates in current
year.

Share of results of jointly controlled entities

The Group’s share of results of jointly controlled entities recorded a loss of
HK$13.3 million while a profit of HK$23.0 million was resulted in 2009/10.
The profit in 2009/10 was mainly attributed to the sales of shopping arcade
of a property development project in Chengdu.

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries and their related jointly controlled entities
The Group disposed of its entire interests in two property development
projects in Shenzhen and Hefei (being the “Citiway Group” and the
“Smartco Group” respectively). The disposal of the Citiway Group was
completed in April 2010 while the disposal of the Smartco Group was
completed in July 2010, and gains on disposal of HK$170 million and
HK$208 million were recorded respectively in the current year.

Finance income/(costs), net

There was a change from a net finance costs of HK$32.3 million in 2009/10
to a net finance income of HK$0.5 million in 2010/11. The redemption of
convertible bonds during July 2009 resulted in a reduction of finance costs
and the proceeds from disposal of interest in the Pacific Coffee Group and
the disposal of the Citiway Group and the Smartco Group resulted in an
increment of interest income contributed to such change.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Investment properties

The Group’s investment properties were revalued upward by HK$163
million, due to the upward adjustment in global property market value.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets reduced by HK$50.9 million and
HK$77.8 million respectively during the year. This was mainly attributable
to the disposal of 80% equity interest in the Pacific Coffee Group where
HK$34.3 million of goodwill and HK$99.0 million of trademark were
disposed of. Also a goodwill impairment of HK$36.5 million was made
during the year. These were, however, compensated by the increase in
goodwill, trademarks and favourable leases of HK$19.9 million, HK$13.6
million and HK$11.9 million respectively arising from the acquisition of
60% equity interest in Cafe Deco.

Interests in associates

Interests in associates comprised of interests in associates, including
goodwill, of HK$502 million (2010: HK$377 million) and non-current
portion of amounts due from associates of HK$122 million (2010: nil). For
the interests in associates, in addition to the share of results of associates of
HK$106 million and dividends received from associates of HK$45.4 million,
the Pacific Coffee Group has been accounted for as a 20% associate of the
Company after the date of disposal increasing the interests in associates by
HK$53.1 million. The amounts due from associates represented the advances
to the associates engaged in car dealership business in Mainland China
during the year, which was repayable in more than one year.

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Interests in jointly controlled entities comprised of interests in jointly
controlled entities, including goodwill, of HK$390 million (2010: HK$387
million) and non-current portion of amounts due from jointly controlled
entities of HK$118 million (2010: nil). The amounts due from jointly
controlled entities represented the advances to jointly controlled entities
engaged in hotel development in Mainland China during the year, of which
HK$73.9 million were considered equity in nature and HK$43.7 million were
repayable in more than one year.

Properties under development

Increase in properties under development of HK$333 million to year end
balance of HK$691 million represented the costs incurred for a property
development project in Changchun.

Other non-current assets

Other non-current assets reduced slightly by HK$11.0 million but included
different components. A deposit of HK$103 million was paid for acquisition
of a subsidiary engaged in property investment of which the transaction
was completed subsequent to the reporting period on 1 April 2011. On the
other hand, deposits paid for relocation of existing residents for the property
development project in Changchun was partially refunded by HK$115
million during the year. The disposal of 80% equity interest in the Pacific
Coffee Group also included HK$17.8 million of other non-current assets
being disposed of.
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Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Other than movement arising from normal operation, there were
consideration receivable on disposal of the Smartco Group of HK$36.9
million and loan receivable of the Company from the Smartco Group of
HK$22.6 million remained as at 31 March 2011 and were subsequently
settled after the reporting period.

Bank balances and cash

As at 31 March 2011, bank balances and cash increased 92.4% to HK$1,476
million (2010: HK$767 million). The increment was mainly due to the net
cash inflow from disposal of interest in the Pacific Coffee Group, and the
disposal of the Citiway Group and the Smartco Group in a total of HK$1,028
million during the year. At the end of the reporting period, 83.1% (2010:
73.3%) of bank balances and cash was denominated in Hong Kong and US
dollars while 11.0% (2010: 18.5%) was denominated in Renminbi.

Bank borrowings (under current and non-current liabilities)

Net drawn down of bank borrowings of HK$463 million increased the
balance by 38.4% to HK$1,670 million (2010: HK$1,207 million) as at 31
March 2011. 85.9% and 12.6% (2010: 76.3% and 21.7%) of the balance were
denominated in Hong Kong and US dollars and Renminbi respectively. At
the end of the reporting period, maturity of the bank borrowings in respect
of the portion due within one year dropped to 22.3% (2010: 39.8%).

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s net assets attributable to equity holders
of the Company amounted to HK$4,480 million (2010: HK$3,848
million), an increase of HK$632 million or 16.4% when compared with
2010. Such increase was mainly resulted from the profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company of HK$798 million, exchange gain
on translation of operations of overseas subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities of HK$135 million and gain on partial disposal of interest
in a subsidiary of HK$21.7 million offsetting by payments of dividends
totaling HK$319 million.

At the end of the reporting period, due to the increase in bank borrowings,
total debt to equity ratio reached 34.2% (2010: 28.6%), which was expressed
as a percentage of the bank borrowings over the Group’s net assets of
HK$4,879 million (2010: HK$4,225 million). The ratio of total debt to total
assets of HK$8,595 million (2010: HK$7,313 million) also increased from
16.5% last year to 19.4% as at 31 March 2011. Nevertheless, the net debt
to equity ratio dropped to 4.0% (2010: 10.4%), which was expressed as a
percentage of the net bank borrowings (representing the total debt net of the
bank balances and cash) over the Group’s net assets.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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BANK BORROWINGS AND BALANCES

At the end of the reporting year, the Group’s bank borrowings increased to
HK$1,670 million (2010: HK$1,207 million) due to the drawn down of a club
loan at attractive interest rate during the year for financing future business
opportunities. Together with the consideration received from disposal of two
property development projects in Mainland China and the 80% interest in
the Pacific Coffee Group during the year, cash and deposits at bank increased
to HK$1,476 million (2010: HK$767 million). Most of the borrowings were
carrying floating interest rates based on Hong Kong Interbank Offering
Rates, with small portions based on Prime Rate.

Finance costs charged to the consolidated income statement were
substantially cut to HK$13.7 million (2010: HK$36.9 million), represented a
decrease of 62.9% as compared with 2010.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. The Group’s treasury activities are centralised in order to
achieve better risk control and minimise cost of funds. Cash is generally
placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in Hong Kong or US
dollars. The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are frequently
reviewed. In anticipating new investments or maturity of bank loans, the
Group will consider new financing while maintaining an appropriate level of
gearing.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES

AND INTEREST RATES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group has arranged foreign currency swap
contracts amounting to HK$68.4 million (2010: HK$15.2 million) to manage
the exchange rate exposure between various foreign currencies to other
cross currencies. The Group had outstanding interest rate swap contracts
which amounted to HK$620 million in total (2010: HK$950 million) at the
end of the reporting period, enabling the Group to manage its interest rate
exposure.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2011, bank borrowings of HK$198 million (2010: HK$231
million) and other unutilised banking facilities were secured by charges
on investment properties of HK$742 million (2010: HK$626 million),
property, plant and equipment of HK$211 million (2010: HK$218 million),
inventories of HK$25.4 million (2010: HK$21.9 million), properties for sales
of HK$48.4 million (2010: HK$83.5 million), deposits at bank of HK$2.4
million (2010: HK$5.0 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements.

COMMITMENT

Details of the commitment are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO AFFILIATED COMPANIES
AND THEIR PROFORMA COMBINED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

The Company and/or its subsidiaries have provided financial assistance to,
and guarantees for banking facilities granted to, affiliated companies as at 31
March 2011, which together in aggregate amounted to HK$594 million as
loans and HK$751 million as guarantees issued for banking facilities granted.
These amounts represented a percentage ratio of approximately 14.9% as
at 31 March 2011 and exceeded the relevant percentage ratio of 8% under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. In accordance with the Rule 13.22 of
the Listing Rules, an unaudited proforma combined statement of financial
position of those affiliated companies with financial assistance from the
Group and the Group’s attributable interest in those affiliated companies as
at 31 March 2011 are presented below:

RTHEBRARZUBXEREBGEZSOEH
AR 2R

RIZB——F=A=+—8 ARRAKRLHENEB
RAICHRTHEBRARMBEXEELREBB AR
RITEERTER BREAHXEEHUETERL
REBBARZRITEEMEL ZERAEE .51
BT RZE-——F=ZRA=+—8B WEREHG
149% 2 BN L XBBEBBEXZAAR R KE
FETMRADTETRUDRERw ZBRE D
Ko RIBEEMBRAFB2REMRE R-_T——F
ZA=1T—R AEEKTHHEEBNEEQFH
RAEEZHZ R KM BN R KA R E R ZFHE
NAEHE(G R -

As at 31 March 2011
R=ZFE——F=A=+—H

Proforma Group’s
combined statement attributable
of financial position interest

BEEH &

B AR R & iR
HK$Million HK$Million
BEBEERT BEBEERT
Non-current assets JERENE E 543 190
Current assets mENBE 3,350 1,487
Current liabilities MENAE (1,713) (689)
Non-current liabilities FEREEE (219) (62)
Shareholders’ advances % SR AE K (734) (594)
Total equity 4 A 1,227 332

As at 31 March 2011, the banking facilities utilised by the affiliated
companies, against which the Group has provided guarantees, amounted to
HK$387 million.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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DR CHOW YEI CHING

Executive Director, Chairman, aged 75, is the founder of Chevalier Group
since 1970. He is the Chairman of Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
(“CPHL”), a public company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is also a director of certain companies of
the Group. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Towngas
China Company Limited. Dr Chow has re-designated from a Non-Executive
Director to Independent Non-Executive Director of Television Broadcasts
Limited since 10 June 2011. In 1995, Dr Chow was awarded with an
Honorary Degree of Doctor of Business Administration by The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and an Honorary University Fellow by The University
of Hong Kong. In 1997, he was conferred an Honorary Degree of Doctor of
Laws by The University of Hong Kong. He is also a Consultative Professor of
Zhejiang University and a Lecture Professor of Sichuan Union University in
Mainland China. In 2008, Dr Chow was awarded with an Honorary Degree
of Doctor of Social Science by City University of Hong Kong. Dr Chow’s
enthusiasm in public services is evidenced in his appointment in 2001 as the
Vice Patron of The Community Chest in Hong Kong. He was also appointed
as the Honorary Consul of The Kingdom of Bahrain in Hong Kong in 2001.
He also actively participates in various professional bodies and associations
on fraternal and Chinese affairs. To name a few, he is the Founding President
of International Ningbo Merchants Association Company Limited, the
President of The Japan Society of Hong Kong and the Permanent Honorary
President of the National Taiwan University-HK Alumni Association, etc.
In recognition of his contributions to local and overseas societies alike, Dr
Chow was awarded honorable decorations from Britain, Belgium, France
and Japan and especially the Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck
Ribbon in Japan in 2008. Furthermore, Dr Chow was also awarded the Gold
Bauhinia Star from the Government of the HKSAR (“HKSAR Government”)
in 2004. He is the father of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, an Executive Director
of the Company.

MR KUOK HOI SANG

Executive Director, Vice Chairman and Managing Director, aged 61, joined
Chevalier Group in 1972 and is an Executive Director of CPHL, a public
company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a director of certain
companies of the Group. He is the President of The Lift and Escalator
Contractors Association in Hong Kong, the Vice-Chairman of the Hong
Kong — China Branch of The International Association of Elevator Engineers,
Vice President of the Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical
Contractors Limited and a Registered Lift and Escalator Engineer in Hong
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Kong. He is a member of the Guangzhou Committee of the Chinese People’s TEEAREEREBE  BFRE  BEMH M
Political Consultative Conference. Mr Kuok has extensive experience in JE -8R THE - HE HEUT’R i7KI$i I ES YT YSE S
business development and is responsible for the strategic planning and BEHEBZERUESEREEETHE -
management of the operations of lifts and escalators, building construction,
building materials and supplies, aluminium works, electrical and mechanical
services, civil engineering, property development as well as investment
projects of the Chevalier Group.
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MR TAM KWOK WING

Executive Director, Deputy Managing Director, aged 50, joined Chevalier
Group in 1986. He is also a director of certain companies of the Group.
Apart from managing the operation of insurance underwriting together with
property investment and development, property management, cold storage
and logistics as well as travel agency businesses, he is also responsible for
legal affairs and corporate communications of Chevalier Group. Mr Tam
holds a Bachelor Degree in Laws from the Beijing University of the People’s
Republic of China, a Master of Arts Degree from the City University of
Hong Kong and a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate Administration from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is also a Fellow Member of the
Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators in the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. Mr Tam is appointed as a Deputy Director of
the Hong Kong Macao Taiwan Overseas and Chinese Foreign Committee
and a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Changchun. Presently, he also serves as a Council Member and a Vice
Chairman in the Education Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. He is also a Council Member served in The Hong
Kong Association of Property Management Companies as well as an
Honorary Secretary of the Insurance Claims Complaints Bureau.

MR CHOW VEE TSUNG, OSCAR

Executive Director, aged 37, joined Chevalier Group in 2000 and is
the Managing Director of CPHL, a public company listed on the Stock
Exchange. He is also a director of certain companies of the Group. Mr
Chow holds a degree in Master of Engineering from the University of
Oxford, U.K. He is currently a General Committee Member of the Hong
Kong General Chamber of Commerce and a General Committee Member
of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong. He is also a
member of the Shanghai Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
and a Committee Member of the Advisory Council on the Environment,
and a Committee Member of the Infrastructure Development Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development Council. Mr Chow is the son
of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the Chairman of the Company and CPHL.

MR HO CHUNG LEUNG

Executive Director, aged 61, joined Chevalier Group in 1985. He is also
a director of certain companies of the Group. He is responsible for the
management of Chevalier Group’s accounting and treasury activities. Mr Ho
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the U.K. and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

MR MA CHI WING

Aged 42, was appointed as Executive Director of the Company on 1
September 2010. He joined Chevalier Group in 1993 and is also director
of certain companies of the Group. Mr Ma has extensive experience in the
project management and is currently in charge of the car dealerships, hotel
investments and trading business of the Group. He is also responsible to
oversee the Group’s human resources and general administration activities.
Mr Ma holds a Master Degree in Business Administration from University of
Warwick, UK, a Bachelor Degree in International Business Studies from City
University of Hong Kong, a Corporate Finance Certificate from UC Berkeley,
USA, and a Professional Certificate in China Construction from Tsinghua
University, PRC.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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DR CHOW MING KUEN, JOSEPH 0.B.E, J.P.

Independent Non-Executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee
and chairman of the Remuneration Committee, aged 69, joined the
Company in 2002. He is the Chairman of Joseph Chow & Partners Ltd.,
an independent non-executive director & chairman of PYI Corporation
Limited, an independent non-executive director of Build King Holdings
Limited, Road King Infrastructure Limited and Harbour Centre
Development Limited. He has over 40 years of experience in the planning,
design and construction of many major engineering projects in the U.K.,
Middle East, Mainland China and Hong Kong. He is currently the Chairman
of the Construction Workers Registration Authority and Hon. Senior
Superintendent of the Hong Kong Auxiliary Police Force. He was previously
the President of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, Chairman of
Hong Kong Engineers’ Registration Board, Hong Kong Examinations and
Assessment Authority and Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
Governing Committee as well as a Member of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority and Hospital Authority.

MR SUN KAI DAH, GEORGE

Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee, aged 71, joined the Company in 2006. He
has extensive experience in business management. He was the founder of
Zindart Limited, a company incorporated in 1978 and listed on the United
States NASDAQ. He has retired from the position of Chief Executive Officer
of Zindart Limited since 1998.

MR YANG CHUEN LIANG, CHARLES B.B.S., J.P.

Independent Non-Executive Director, chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee, aged 52, joined the
Company in 2008. Mr Yang obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration from Cass Business School London in 1983 and is currently
a partner at S. Y. Yang & Company, Practising firm of Accountants and
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
as well as the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a director of Phoenix U Radio Limited. His community duties include
the Chairman of Admission Budget and Allocations Committee and a
Director of the Community Chest, member of the Social Welfare Advisory
Committee and Lump Sum Grant Steering Committee and an independent
director of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong. He is currently a
member of Hubei Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. Mr Yang was selected as “Outstanding Accountant
Ambassador” by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and was appointed as Justice of Peace by the HKSAR Government in 2004.
Mr Yang is awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government
this year.

DR KO CHAN GOCK, WILLIAM

Non-Executive Director, aged 65, joined the Company in 2009. Dr Ko
graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1968. He has served in
the government of Hong Kong for more than 38 years, having worked in a
wide range of departments including the Water Supplies Department, the
Highways Department, the Civil Engineering and Development Department
and the Works Branch. In 2001, he was appointed as the Director of Water
Supplies. Dr Ko retired from the civil service in January 2007.
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Schedule of the Major Properties

N

Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows:

@

REBEBZ TEWEFINWAT

HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES () HERE BRAWE
FOR OWN USE
Approximate
gross The Group’s
Location Usage floor area* Lease term interest
25 Az EEHEELE RNFH KNEEFGEER
sq. ft. ¥ 7R %
Hong Kong
E
Units 1011 to 1019 on 10th Floor, Office premise and carpark 174,600 Medium 100
19th to 23rd Floors and MAERFES
one-third interest in
201 car parking spaces of
Chevalier Commercial Centre,
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay
NEEE R B\
HEmgshh+e
—E—E-Toa%.
ThE-+t=#Kk
=9 —m2FE6201E
Ground Floor of Block A, Industrial 15,000 Medium 100
East Sun Industrial Centre, T o Hj
16 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon )
NAEBIER L E 1<%
BT ERLARBBT
Chevalier Warehouse Building, Industrial 118,300 Medium 100
3 On Fuk Street, On Lok Tsuen, T =
Fanling, New Territories
MAM e LWL IEET =%
HIrEAaKE
Chevalier Engineering Service Centre,  Industrial 177,500 Medium 100
21 Sheun\g Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay T A HA
BEEPHRE-T—%
HEIT-TERRBH L
124-130 Kwok Shui Road Cold storage warehouse 427,500 Medium 75
__Kwai Chung, New Territories REEE 1 1
FREBREE
—BAZtTEE—BZ=1%
8 Kwai Hei Street Cold storage warehouse 380,000 Medium 75
Kwai Chung, New Territories KRB E rh Hf
MARZBEEE /N
29-33 Tsing Yi Road, Tsing YiIsland  Industrial 253,500 Medium 87.5
New Territories I F HA
MABKREFRBE=TN
E=1+=%
9 Henderson Road, Jardine’s Lookout Residential 9,500 Medium 100
BEILEFEZE R F= A
No. 20, Shek O Road Residential 5,300 Long 100
ARB TR F= &8
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Schedule of the Major Properties

TEYEE

HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES  (I) #HERE 'BAWE @)
FOR OWN USE (continued)
Approximate
gross The Group’s
Location Usage floor area* Lease term interest
I B A EEHEBEIH ZHNFH FNEBAFhER
sq. ft. F 7R %
The Whole of the 2nd, 3rd, 4th and Industrial 163,000 Medium 49
5th Floors, Factory Units Nos. T A HA
2205 and 2207 on 22nd Floor,
and 8 car parking spaces of
Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre,
Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
FARAEEELLE
ZEZtTEZBOEAAG
ST L
: CZoOERRERE
:+—@:—%£&
TR EREFEEME
Singapore
ESpINE S
Chevalier House, 23 Genting Road, Industrial 81,000 Freehold 100
Singapore 349481 I KA FENE
The Blue Building, 10 Genting Road,  Industrial 17,000 Freehold 100
Singapore 349473 Iz KA
Canada
m&x
4334-4340 Kingston Road, Ontario, Office and workshop 20,200 Freehold 100
MIF 2M8 for automobile dealership KA
RERERLHE
MAERTH
14535-14583, Yonge Street, Office and workshop 25,000 Freehold 100
Aurora, Ontario for automobile dealership KAERE
BIEREEIE 2
PRERTE
838 Hamilton Street, Hotel 66,000 Freehold 90
Vancouver, B.C. B I KA EERE
USA
=
430 East Grand Avenue, Industrial/Warehouse 37,000 Freehold 100
South San Francisco, CA 1%/ 2E KA ERE
Thailand
£
Chevalier House, Office premise and 21,300 Freehold 100
No. 540 Bamrungmuang Road, showroom KA
Debsirin Sub-district, WRERRINE
Pomprab District,
Bangkok Metropolis
(IR2ATMIEEKRE)
Mainland China
FERi
355 Minquan Road, Xinyang City, Hotel 105,000 Medium 70
Henan Province B I H Ef
AEEEETRER=ZRLRR
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Schedule of the Major Properties
FEWEX

HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES () #H#ERE BRAWE®
FOR OWN USE (continued)
Approximate
gross The Group’s
Location Usage floor area* Lease term interest
it R BHEROH BAEH FEERGERS
sq. ft. F 7R %
Units 3-9 of 18th Floor, Office premise 13,000 Medium 100
Dongshan Plaza, /N H Hf
No. 69 Xianlie Zhong Road,
Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province
BRA BN LR F B 69 SRR 1L ES
TNE=ZFNE
Chevalier Place, 168 An Fu Road, Residential, shop and 142,600 Long 80
Xuhui District, Shanghai carpark 231
FETRERRZER — /XK FE FHkizEs
TR
* Excluding car parking spaces
NEEEEN
PROPERTIES FOR SALE I FEmxE
Approximate
gross The Group’s
Location floor area* Lease term interest
it BEHERQE BAFEH XEBFEER
sq. ft. 7R %
Hong Kong
=8
Beverly Garden — 2 shop units and 147 car parking spaces, 10,375 Medium 100
1 Tong Ming Street, Tseung Kwan O, New Territories A
MABERERE —SKEREEML2EREEN 1477
Glorious Garden — 1 shop unit and 124 car parking spaces, 333 Medium 100
45 Lung Mun Road, Tuen Mun, New Territories R ER
AP BN TR ERERMA L EREERL 1241
* Excluding car parking spaces
NEEEEN
Mainland China
FE A it
My Villa — 41 villas, 45 shop units and 60 residential units, 544,000 Medium 44
Huairou District, Beijing H A

R EREEBA R E B 4118 - 75 45 18 M E = 60 &
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Schedule of the Major Properties

FTEWER
(IIT) PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT () BRI
Estimated
gross floor The
Stage of Expected date of Approximate area after Group’s
Location completion completion Major usage site area completion* interest
i 88 + i THEEE A&
it EE BETIBH TERE HEYH R Ek Frib s
sq.ft. F AR sq.ft. FF R %
Mainland China
HE A it
Chengdu Jinjiang In progress Late 2011 Hotel and 49,500 181,000 49
District IRETR —T——FFX commercial
X &R 87T 1R EPSEHES
Beijing Huairou In progress 2014 Villa, residential and 161,460 194,000 44
District TiR#TH —ZT—WF commercial
tREZE RIS FEREE
Chengdu Shuangliu In progress 2013 Villa, residential and 1,390,000 1,482,100 49
County Tig#ErTh —Z—=%F commercial
P ER & 7 5% PE - EEREE
Changchun Luyuan In progress 2014 Residential and 4,639,000 7,491,000 96
District TRETHR —T—WF commercial
+ Excluding the floor areas of basements, carparks, public amenities, resettlement

buildings, preserved buildings and clubhouses

TEEMTE FE5 QRRBEE EERE REREREMZER
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERBESE

N

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with the increasing stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules came into effect on 1 January 2005.
The CG Code sets out two levels of corporate governance practices namely,
mandatory code provisions that a listed company must comply with or
explain its non-compliance, and recommended best practices that a listed
company is encouraged to comply with but need not disclose in the case of
non-compliance. The Company is in compliance with the mandatory code
provisions of the CG Code except for the following non-compliance:

All the Non-Executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible leadership
for the Company. The directors, individually and collectively, must act
in good faith in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies, monitors and
evaluates its operating and financial performance and reviews the corporate
governance standard of the Company. It also decides on matters such as
annual and interim results, notifiable transactions, director appointments or
re-appointment, and dividend and accounting policies. Management profile
of the Company as at the date of this report is set out on pages 17 to 19.

The Board comprises six Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Director
and three Independent Non-Executive Directors. The full Board met five
times during the year under review. The attendance of Directors at the Board
Meetings and the Board Committees Meetings is set out in the table below:

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Corporate Governance Report
EERERREE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) E5gW
Meetings Attended/Held
ERHEBITRE

Audit  Remuneration
Directors Board Committee Committee
= Exg ERERS FHMEES
Executive Directors
HITEFE
Dr Chow Yei Ching (Chairman) 3/5 - -
B IREE ()
Mr Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director) 4/5 - 1/1
BBESE (B L EHREFHEIE)
Mr Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director) 5/5 - -
BER L (B EFARETE)
Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar 5/5 - 171
FE#IESRE
Mr Ho Chung Leung 5/5 - -
] RER B
Mr Ma Chi Wing (appointed on 1 September 2010) 3/3 - -
BEREE(RZF—FENA—HEZT)
Non-Executive Directors
HHITEF
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph* 5/5 2/2 1/1
R TE L
Mr Sun Kai Dah, George* 4/5 2/2 1/1
R ESRL
Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles* 5/5 2/2 1/1
B L
Dr Ko Chan Gock, William 5/5 - -
2ESEL

* Independent Non-Executive Director

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other relationships
with each other save for the father-son relationship between Dr Chow Yei

Ching and Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the
three Independent Non-Executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded
that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent within

the definition of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

BEERKEE

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Since the Board is involved in the appointment of new Directors, the
Company has not established a Nomination Committee. The Board will
take into consideration criteria such as expertise, experience, integrity and
commitment when considering new director appointments. All candidates
must also meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing
Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director should also meet the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, all Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of
the Company. New Directors appointed by the Board during the year are
required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting or general meeting immediately following their appointments.
Further, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors, or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third are required to retire from office by rotation and
no later than the third annual general meeting since the last re-election or
appointment of such Director.

Appointment of Executive Director was considered and confirmed at a Board
Meeting of the Company with the attendance by full Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The CG Code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same person. The Chairman of the Company is Dr Chow Yei Ching and
the Managing Director is Mr Kuok Hoi Sang. The role of the Chairman is
separate from that of the Managing Director. The Chairman is responsible
for overseeing the functioning of the Board while the Managing Director is
responsible for managing the Group’s businesses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1998 with written terms of
reference. Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles, Independent Non-Executive
Director, is the Chairman of the committee. He has extensive experience
in financial reporting and controls. Other members include all other
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr Chow Ming
Kuen, Joseph and Mr Sun Kai Dah, George. The Audit Committee is
responsible for the appointment of external auditors, review of the
Group’s financial information and oversight of the Group’s financial
reporting system, internal control procedures and risk management
frameworks. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim and final
results of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board for
approval. Its terms of reference are accessible on the Company’s website,
http://www.chevalier.com.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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BEERKEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 March
2011. At the meetings, it reviewed the connected transactions (if any), the
interim results for the six months ended 30 September 2010 and last year’s
final results for the year ended 31 March 2010, and has reviewed with
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed the auditing, internal controls, financial reporting matters and
risk management systems of the Group. The final results for the year ended
31 March 2011 were reviewed by the Audit Committee in its meeting held on
21 June 2011. The Audit Committee of the Company regularly discusses with
the management the system of internal control to ensure an effective internal
control system.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 10 March 2005
with written terms of reference. Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph is the
Chairman of the committee. Other members of the committee include
Messrs Yang Chuen Liang, Charles, Sun Kai Dah, George, Kuok Hoi
Sang and Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar. The Remuneration Committee
is responsible for reviewing and determining the compensation and
benefits of the Directors and senior management of the Company.
Its terms of reference are accessible on the Company’s website,
http://www.chevalier.com.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the year ended 31
March 2011 to review the remuneration packages paid to Directors and
senior management for the year ended 31 March 2011.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing
its business strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
business to an Executive Committee which was established in 1991. Members
of the Executive Committee comprise six Executive Directors, namely Dr
Chow Yei Ching, Messrs Kuok Hoi Sang, Tam Kwok Wing, Chow Vee Tsung,
Oscar, Ho Chung Leung and Ma Chi Wing.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls in the Group. During the year, the Board has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control, covering
financial, operational, compliance control and risk management functions.
The Group’s system of internal control includes a defined management
structure with limits of authority, and is designed to help the Group achieve
its business objectives, safeguard its assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication,
and ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The system is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate all risks of failure
in the Group’s operational systems and in the achievement of the Group’s
business objectives.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring the
internal controls of the Group and reports directly to the Chairman. It has
unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s activities and internal
controls. It also conducts special audits of areas of concern identified by
Management or the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department
adopts a risk-based audit approach. All audit reports are circulated to the
Audit Committee and key management. The Internal Audit Department is
also responsible for following up the implementation of recommendations
and corrective actions. The Audit Committee has free and direct access to the
Head of Internal Audit Department without reference to the Chairman of the
Board or management.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011 on a
going concern basis.

The Auditor of the Company acknowledge their reporting responsibilities
in the Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2011 as set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 37 to 38.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the fees paid/payable to the
auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the auditors
to the Group were as follows:

A RS (1)
NBERPEAERNNDELRET HEESEA
EIEEAEEER TR TRHAE@ES
FENEERADENEE  THEEENERRE
BeMEMBEETERIER - NEBE R
R ATHBEZRL - IEERREHNEXABRK
ZEQRTIECEEMEN NBERLTEERE
BERRBRMERENNT - BRES T ERNT
BRI EEERAMBANCETOIEAER
jgo

EENRHMHRSMBRRNES

EEeRREAEREBE T ——F=RA=1+—
HIFFEZHAMBRRCRBIFELENEER
8o

ARBZZHMERREHARARBE_FT——F
AT HLEFESAMBRERNETHNF 37
BEEBAEMBYZBMBEESS -

REED 2 B =
BE_ZT——F=RA=T—HIFEFEAN %EE
B RHE 2 RE R A MIERBRBE XN
s mT :

Nature of services Amount (HK$’000)
PR E SHEOBETR)
Audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers 7,330
% 2R 75 - B EROKEGE RN ES AT

— other auditors 1,164

— E b & 5T AD
Non-audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers 975
FERZ R TS - B EROKEGE RN ES A

— other auditors 242

- E A &3t D

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, each of the Directors
confirmed that he has complied with the Model Code throughout the year.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

To enhance the community relations, the Group participated and supported
a variety of charitable events in the past year such as “The 19th Hike for

» o«

Hospice”, “2011 Community Chest Corporate Challenge” and “Chevalier
Blood Donation Day” co-organized with the Hong Kong Red Cross. The
Group has also been donating to Community Chest of Hong Kong through
the campaign of one dollar charity surcharge per visit to our outlets to help
more people in need. To take the initiative to serve and repay the society, a
volunteer team — “Chevalier Cares” was formed and has actively contributed
to different voluntary programs. In addition, the Group devoted to support
and promote the sports activities in Hong Kong by participating in the
“Walkathon for Brightness”, “2011 Community Chest Charity Golf Day”

and “Po Leung Kuk Charity Golf 2011”.

The Group strives to cultivate new talents and enrich educational
opportunities by sponsoring educational programs of all kinds. As such,
a donation was made to “PolyU Innovation & Entrepreneurship Student
Challenge — A global Competition” organized by Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Besides, the Group is committed to build green community.
Estates managed by our subsidiary were accredited the “Class of Good”
Wastewi$e Label by Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence which
demonstrated the Group’s obligation to reduce waste and dedication to the
environmental protection.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group’s senior management maintains close communications with
investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by various channels
including individual interviews and meetings. The Group also responds
promptly to request for information and queries from the investors.

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting
the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’ meetings to
communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or Management
directly.

The Company provides extensive information of the Group timely to the
shareholders and the public through the publication of interim and annual
reports, circulars, notices and announcements. The financial and other
information relating to the Group are disclosed on the Company’s website at
http://www.chevalier.com.
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N

The Directors present to shareholders their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities are shown on pages 149 to 156.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31 March 2011 analysed
by business and geographical segments are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 40. An interim dividend of HK$0.20
per share and a special dividend of HK$0.40 per share were paid on Monday,
20 December 2010. The Directors now recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.55 per share.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) to be held on Friday, 9 September
2011, the Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
6 September 2011 to Friday, 9 September 2011, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p-m. on Monday, 5 September 2011.

The record date for entitlement to the proposed final dividend is Monday,
19 September 2011. For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend (subject to the passing of an ordinary resolution by the shareholders
of the Company at the AGM), the Register of Members of the Company
will be closed from Friday, 16 September 2011 to Monday, 19 September
2011, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard
Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 15 September 2011.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are
set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2011, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to HK$972,602,000 (2010: HK$1,327,136,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties of the Group during the year are set out
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2011 are set out in
notes 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/FINANCIAL REVIEW

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are shown on pages
2 to 3 and on pages 11 to 16 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s revenue and purchases of the year attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers respectively were less than 30%. None of
the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (whom to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has
any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or five largest customers.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group as at 31 March 2011 are set
out on pages 20 to 23.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group employed approximately 2,800 full-time staff under its
subsidiaries globally as at 31 March 2011. Total staff costs amounted to
HK$551 million for the year ended 31 March 2011. The remuneration
policies of the Group are reviewed periodically on the basis of the nature
of job, market trend, company performance and individual performance.
Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis,
medical schemes, retirement schemes and employees’ share option scheme.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made donations of HK$5,174,000 to charitable
bodies.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Byelaws
although there are no restriction against such rights under the laws in
Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the
Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman)

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr TAM Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director)

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

Mr HO Chung Leung

Mr MA Chi Wing (appointed on 1 September 2010)

Non-Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph”
Mr SUN Kai Dah, George*

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles*
Dr KO Chan Gock, William

# Independent Non-Executive Director

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Dr CHOW Yei Ching, Messrs
KUOK Hoi Sang, MA Chi Wing and YANG Chuen Liang, Charles shall retire
from office at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. The Non-Executive Directors are subject to
the same retirement requirements as the Executive Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director had a material interest subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any business
constituting a competing business to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation, within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”), which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the
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register to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as HFRBAEIRANESEREATFEZELMAZ
BRLERE  SRERETRAMEADR R

FrzigEmRERmT

otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
(@) XAFERE-KRH

(a) Interests in the Company — Shares

Number of ordinary shares

EBERRDEE

Approximate

Personal Family percentage

Name of Directors Capacity interests interests Total of interest

E=EE &1 (PN £ KikER B EEBQ

%

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 154,682,359* - 154,682,359 55.73
SPY:L BEEEAA

KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 98,216 - 98,216 0.04
MWEE BEEEAA

TAM Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 169,015 32,473 201,488 0.07
EAEES BEEEAA

HO Chung Leung Beneficial owner 40,000 - 40,000 0.01
Al =R BEEEAA

* Dr CHOW Yei Ching beneficially owned 154,682,359 shares of the Company, representing * TS T E 2R A 154,682,359 [RAN A R - (HARARRG

#)55.73% ° ZEBRME TR [EBRR 2 F 5] P 2 ik
AR -

approximately 55.73% of the issued share capital of the Company. These shares were same as
those shares disclosed in the section “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities” below.

(b) Interests in Associated Corporation — Shares

(b) HBRATERE KRG

Number of ordinary shares

EERROEE
Approximate
Name of Associated Personal Corporate Family percentage
Directors corporation Capacity interests interests interests Total of interest
ExEHB i) 47 BAER DRER Rk z e EREN
%
CHOW Yei Ching CPHL Interest of controlled - 1,285,829,330% - 1,285,829,330 54.14
corporation
J& IR Btz s ard IVNCId: 35
KUOK Hoi Sang CPHL Beneficial owner 24,000,000 - - 24,000,000 1.01
EY2 S Btz ESHEBA
TAM Kwok Wing CPHL Beneficial owner 4,000,000 - 104,000 4,104,000 0.17
EEES HAjZa ESHEAA
CHOW Vee Tsung, CPHL Beneficial owner 174,120,000 - - 174,120,000 7.33
Oscar HELZd ExnlEBA
JE#E IE
*  Dr CHOW Yei Ching had notified CPHL that under the SFO, he was deemed to be o RATEME L E R A 154,682,359 AR B - (R AREE

TR #955.73%  IRIBEH REEIES - ALt WHEAES
AARFEB 22581 1,285,829,330 K 2 1% + AL
EsttME T ZEELRNE -

interested in 1,285,829,330 shares in CPHL which were all held by the Company as Dr Chow
beneficially owned 154,682,359 shares, representing approximately 55.73% of the issued
share capital of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Save as disclosed above and in “Share Option Schemes” below, as at 31
March 2011, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief executives of
the Company, no other person has interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO);
or are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register referred to therein; or are required, pursuant to the Model Code, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A share option scheme of the Company (the “CIHL Scheme”) was approved by
the shareholders of the Company on 20 September 2002. Another share option
scheme of CPHL, the subsidiary of the Company (the “CPHL Scheme”) was also
approved by the shareholders of CPHL and the shareholders of the Company on
20 September 2002. The CIHL Scheme and the CPHL Scheme fully comply with
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. During the year, no share option was granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the CIHL Scheme and the CPHL Scheme.
There was no outstanding option under the CIHL Scheme and the CPHL Scheme
at the beginning and at the end of the year.

Particulars of the share option schemes are set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was entered into or subsisted during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for the benefit
of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in both defined contribution schemes
which are registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(the “ORSO Schemes”) and Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (the “MPF
Schemes”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in December 2000. For members of the MPF Schemes, the Group
contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs per employee per month to the
MPF Schemes. The ORSO Schemes are funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to 7.5% of the
employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of service with the Group.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES (continued)

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes in countries
or locations where the Group operates. The Group is required to make
defined contributions at rates calculated as a certain percentage or sum of the
monthly payroll.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year amounted to HK$22.7
million against which the forfeited contributions amounting to HK$7,000
have been deducted.

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2011, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of the persons
or corporations in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

BIKEETE @)
AEBFLEAEELCELEBYARSWEZER
BRSEE  c AEMARBTHE  ¢EUEAE
M EFEILRHEAE -

FEA AEBEZSHEZRERETALZEYK
TR A 22,700,000 7T+ R Bk 2 B8 U
BB #7000 7T °

BASHEFBENGAM B RRM TR

FTERRZEZEDS

RIB——F=A=+—H $AERFAEFREE
TTBRABRTE - THIATIOEBN AR ER D 348
B TR A RIERE 5 R E R0 XV ERE 2
F3 D MM EXAARBRE  RARENRARR
RIEE 5 REIE RO 336 5 B 17 2 L8N 2 #
BmREREMT

Approximate

Number of percentage

Substantial shareholders Capacity shares held of interest

FERR &4 BFROBE EEBN

%

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 154,682,359 55.73
JE TR A EHEAA

MIYAKAWA Michiko Beneficial owner 154,682,359* 55.73
SEEF EHEAA

* Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr Chow, is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of 154,682,359 shares held by Dr Chow.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, so far as is known to the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company, no other person has interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO,
or, were directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of the Company.

ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

Except for the share option schemes adopted by the Company and CPHL, at
no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors

EHGHREE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of the Company is committed to maintain high standards of
corporate governance. In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code contained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March
2011, with deviations from code provision A.4.1 which has already been
stated in the Corporate Governance Report of the Annual Report. Detailed
information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out in
the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages 24 to 29 of the Annual
Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the Company’s share
which is in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total
number of issued shares as at 28 June 2011, the latest practicable date to
ascertain such information prior to the issue of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Messrs
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2011

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R 3 ¥ B ok i

N

PRICEVVATERHOUSE(COPERS

BORMKEGTMERH

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to 156, which comprise the
consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 31 March
2011, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

5 7 W% R R 5

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 June 2011

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Income Statement
Gk

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BiZE — T ——4=A=+—HILFE

Restated
FSEp
2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
=g BETT BT T
Revenue A 5 3,491,181 3,933,579
Cost of sales $HE KA (2,858,169) (3,086,200)
Gross profit EA 633,012 847,379
Other income, net HE WA - F5E 6 31,603 26,740
Other gains, net Hth Uz - F5 7 337,889 245,414
Selling and distribution costs SHE RACSHEK A (388,506) (490,331)
Administrative expenses 1TE S (140,998) (125,418)
Operating profit He=piail 473,000 503,784
Share of results of associates FTfb Bt 2 R R 248 106,027 58,029
Share of results of jointly controlled entities Fih F RIS A4S (13,264) 23,002
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries and their related HEMBARREERZ
jointly controlled entities S E ¥ 2 W 8 377,701 -
943,464 584,815
Finance income B TS WA 9 14,225 4,624
Finance costs s E A 9 (13,692) (36,891)
Finance income/(costs), net BB A(BR)  F8 9 533 (32,267)
Profit before taxation B A5 A A 10 943,997 552,548
Income tax expenses iy 11 (58,292) (57,436)
Profit for the year FERFA 885,705 495,112
Attributable to: BiER
Equity holders of the Company KRR ERZE A 797,972 417,359
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR 87,733 77,753
885,705 495,112
Earnings per share BRER
— basic (HKS per share) —ERN(FRABE) 12 2.87 1.50
— diluted (HKS$ per share) —#E (BB ) 12 2.87 1.50
Dividends B’ E 13 319,198 194,295
The notes on pages 49 to 156 are integral parts of these consolidated financial FOAEZIS6EZMEDLERE M B RE ZEK

statements.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
eIl R

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BZ—ZE——F=A=+—HILFE

Restated
KEF|
2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BB T
Profit for the year FERA 885,705 495,112
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHMmEZEKER
Exchange difference on translation of REGINTBRF - B AR
operations of overseas subsidiaries, Ko FL R4 il 1b 2 2 S 75 P EE A
associates and jointly controlled entities HISMNE R ¥R Z 58 140,095 88,895
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHEEZRED
investments, net NAEES  FE8 (948) 114,360
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEE 2 REN
investments transferred to BB R E R
consolidated income statement EHEAEWER - 46,243
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHHE ZIREH
investments transferred to WHEREGRS
consolidated income statement a5 - (94,533)
Fair value surplus of properties upon transfer ERERENERDEZ
to investment properties N EER - 158,972
Gain on Share Exchange &1 22 # 2 Wz
(note 50(b)(i)) (B &E50(b) (1)) 2,437 -
Other comprehensive income for the year, FEHMEPE K -
net of tax GTEE 3 141,584 313,937
Total comprehensive income for the year FERHKSARE 1,027,289 809,049
Attributable to: B :
Equity holders of the Company KRR ERZE A 933,014 730,343
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR 94,275 78,706
1,027,289 809,049
Note: P 5 -
Items shown within other comprehensive income have no tax effect. REMEEREMR2EE WESELE -
The notes on pages 49 to 156 are integral parts of these consolidated financial FOAEZIS6EZMEDLERE M B RE ZEK

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
450 Bk L&

Asat 31 March 2011 R=—Z——F=H=+—H

Restated Restated

K E5 ==l

As at As at As at

31 March 31 March 1 April

2011 2010 2009
R-B——ER-T TER-_TTHE
=A=+—RHB =A=+—H —H

Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

B 5E BT BETT BETT

Non-current assets FnBEE
Investment properties wREME 15 1,718,530 1,509,885 1,004,810
Property, plant and equipment Y - RE R 16 814,215 838,308 969,796
Prepaid lease payments BN FRE 2 IE 17 3,564 9,102 23,782
Goodwill BmE 18 126,994 177,873 202,591
Other intangible assets HiwBmpaE 19 51,506 129,325 151,679
Interests in associates N NG 5 21 624,002 377,307 191,805
Interests in jointly controlled entities Frib SRR I 22 2 2w 22 507,157 387,151 383,508
Available-for-sale investments A tb' E2EE 23 238,085 213,027 243,728
Investments at fair value through RERIKREQ A E
profit or loss BB A 24 - = 27,704
Properties under development EEGEN 25 690,878 358,303 236,424
Other non-current assets HEmE B E 26 186,266 197,262 187,644
Deferred tax assets EIER IR B B 40 12,378 20,780 6,328
4,973,575 4,218,323 3,629,799
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from associates JE Wi B 28 7 B R 3K 21 137,836 156,474 101,582
Amounts due from jointly A M 2 [R] 428 ol 1 22
controlled entities . WJE% 22 216,897 238,642 424,837
Investments at fair value through RERIREAAE
profit or loss BB ZIRE 24 361,388 275,640 164,600
Inventories FE ) 27 176,656 179,844 150,119
Properties for sale FEWE 28 132,682 172,275 197,431
Debtors, deposits and FEIR > FHES
prepayments _ RIENFKIE 29 1,030,210 840,304 1,196,915
Amounts due from customers for HEH LIEER
contract work B UWHL 2 FRIE 30 56,055 56,040 116,753
Derivative financial instruments MHEHBITA 31 29,087 1,827 5,893
Prepaid tax TSR I8 4,583 8,464 15,297
Bank balances and cash RiTEFRRE 32 1,476,407 766,896 1,731,606
3,621,801 2,696,406 4,105,033
Assets of disposal groups classified PERGEZHESR
as held for sale NEE 33 - 398,651 385,642
3,621,801 3,095,057 4,490,675
Current liabilities REE B
Amounts due to associates N E=NGIL TN 21 293 3,421 89
Amounts due to non-controlling e FE PR M 2
interests N R 7K 4,699 - -
Amounts due to customers for HEANTEERER
contract work X2 KA 30 613,503 546,189 534,181
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBIT A 31 19,472 40,570 86,496
Creditors, bills payable, deposits FERIR - B -
and accruals r AN d R TAIR B A 34 897,409 846,433 988,004
Unearned insurance premiums TR (RS B 61,438 34,296 24,427
Outstanding insurance claims RIRRBRIE 35 153,918 137,986 167,158
Deferred income BIEWA 18,439 26,612 25,509
Current income tax liabilities SHMSHAasE 63,330 63,844 60,174
Bank borrowings |RITER 36 371,740 480,533 848,753
Convertible bonds — AR ERE—BE
liability component ;o 37 - - 410,798
Convertible bonds — ABRERE—ITE
derivative component T A& 37 - - 30,488
2,204,241 2,179,884 3,176,077
Liabilities of disposal groups classified ¥ AFEZHERE
as held for sale HaE - - 200,200
2,204,241 2,179,884 3,376,277
Net current assets REBEERE 1,417,560 915,173 1,114,398
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDAR 6,391,135 5,133,496 4,744,197
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

GAMBRAE

Asat31 March 2011 R=-ZE——F=A=+—H

Restated Restated
KE5| wE5
As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
RZBE——FR_ZE—ZTFR_ZTTNEF
=A=+-— EI_H_+ =] EH H
Note HKS$’000 HK$ 000 HK$°000
B 5 BT T 7S ¥ I BT T
Capital and reserves BRAR
Share capital [ 38 346,955 346,955 346,955
Reserves i 39 4,132,610 3,501,474 2,932,529
Shareholders’ funds REEE 4,479,565 3,848,429 3,279,484
Non-controlling interests FEPERRAE 399,833 376,187 381,328
Total equity BrER 4,879,398 4,224,616 3,660,812
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Dividend payable to non-controlling FE{S FEIE AR fE 25
interests % 8. 8,925 - -
Unearned insurance premiums IR (R B 52,189 35,529 10,468
Bank borrowings RITIE 36 1,298,725 726,275 945,185
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEAE 40 151,898 147,076 127,732
1,511,737 908,880 1,083,385
Total equity and non-current liabilities ZARZ K FEREBAE 6,391,135 5,133,496 4,744,197

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2011 and signed on its behalf REZEN _T——F AT /N\BH#AE IHT

by: JIEERKEZ

KUOK Hoi Sang CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
;gL B#IE

Director Director

EF EZE

The notes on pages 49 to 156 are integral parts of these consolidated financial FEZE

statements. B
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Company Statement of Financial Position
7% B) B R O &

Asat 31 March 2011 R=—Z——F=H=+—H

2011 2010
—E——fF —E—T4F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BET T BT
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries Frib Bt @ ARl z e 20 2,360,279 2,194,622
Interests in associates FTiGE 2 N Al 2 xS 21 119,732 89,594
Available-for-sale investments AHEE 2 RE 23 232,680 207,622
Other non-current assets HEMIEmsEE 26 3,895 =
Other intangible assets Hith J & B 599 599
2,717,185 2,492,437
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A ENGIL S 20 1,113,709 1,386,246
Amounts due from associates JFE Uk B 28 N B MR 7R 21 10,815 20,962
Investments at fair value through RERIRE R E
profit or loss BIE 7R 24 106,586 91,497
Debtors, deposits and IR - FHRe
prepayments SEENE /G 29 23,663 2,946
Derivative financial instruments PTEMKITA 31 1,607 1,806
Prepaid tax SEERE R - 1,108
Bank balances and cash ROTEFERES 32 737,479 154,478
1,993,859 1,659,043
Current liabilities RBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE BB A BIR 3K 20 1,777,390 1,392,227
Derivative financial instruments PTEBEIA 31 19,250 40,454
Creditors, deposits and JEIRFR - FARS
accruals kiERRE A 34 5,025 16,938
Bank borrowings RITIE 36 102,000 147,000
1,903,665 1,596,619
Net current assets REBEEFE 90,194 62,424
Total assets less current liabilities HEERREBARS 2,807,379 2,554,861
Capital and reserves IR A R fk 48
Share capital [N 38 346,955 346,955
Reserves (] 39 1,443,424 1,798,906
Total equity BrER 1,790,379 2,145,861
Non-current liabilities ERBAES
Bank borrowings HRITE K 36 1,017,000 409,000
Total equity and non-current liabilities BEIRFERBEE 2,807,379 2,554,861

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2011 and signed on its behalf BEEFEN_T——F AT N\BH#E TAHAT

by: JIEFERKREE

KUOK Hoi Sang CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

gt B#IE

Director Director

EF BF

The notes on pages 49 to 156 are integral parts of these consolidated financial FOEFIS6AZMEDMLERFA M B RE ZEK
statements. o o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GAMGEHR

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BZE—_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

Equity
attributable
to equity
holders Non-
of the  controlling Total
Company interests equity
N ) B
B A FEFRRX
& 1 ¥ 21 ’f&“ e
Note HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
B =E BT BT BT
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNFHA—HB
— as previously reported — B % A 51| 3R 3,225,008 381,328 3,606,336
— change in accounting policy — BT ERE S 2(a) 54,476 = 54,476
— as restated —REJ| 3,279,484 381,328 3,660,812
Profit for the year F &8 A 417,359 77,753 495,112
Exchange difference on translation of &G4 W%
operations of overseas subsidiaries, /N H T HEZ
associates and jointly controlled X FE E EI'J HSME R 3
entities =7 87,886 1,009 88,895
Change in fair value of available-for-sale A # {H & Z # ﬁ E!']
investments, net NI R 114,416 (56) 114,360
Impairment loss on available-for-sale ~ AJ it} & Z % ﬁ YR (E
investments transferred to BREREGRAS
consolidated income statement s R 46,243 - 46,243
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEHE ZIREH
investments transferred to WaERERE
consolidated income statement g (94,533) - (94,533)
Fair value surplus of properties upon ERERENERDEZ
transfer to investment properties N EER 158,972 - 158,972
Total comprehensive income for FEE2EWZE
the year w5 730,343 78,706 809,049
Dividends paid BB (152,661) = (152,661)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B FIRE R R
shareholders A% 8 = (11,779) (11,779)
Capital contribution by — A IR R
a non-controlling shareholder H& - 5,470 5,470
Share options granted by a listed —fE LB QAR T
subsidiary — consultancy MBS — B EEL
services received o 27 AR 75 491 371 862
Placement of shares of a subsidiary il & — M8 A 5 2 ik
(note 39(b)) (Bt 5E39(b)) = 21,390 21,390
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries & AT R B A B 2 (10,177) (99,299) (109,476)
Gain on partial disposal of interest H & ATl — R B A Bl 2 #3
in a subsidiary (note 39(b)) 2 MU = (BT RE 39(b)) 949 - 949
At 31 March 2010, R-ZF-—TF=A=+—H
as restated (B&75) 3,848,429 376,187 4,224,616
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GAMREHX
For the year ended 31 March 2011 8 Z —Z——F=A=+—HILFE

Equity
attributable
to equity
holders Non-
ofthe  controlling Total
Company interests equity
A A IR AE
BEA FE£E R
iRz s B
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B = BETT BET T BET T
At 1 April 2010 RZZE-—TFHHA—H

— as previously reported — B % A 51| 3R 3,736,860 376,187 4,113,047

— change in accounting policy — BT ERE S 2(a) 111,569 - 111,569

— as restated =l 3,848,429 376,187 4,224,616
Profit for the year F &8 A 797,972 87,733 885,705
Exchange difference on translation of & /G/NE A A] «

operations of overseas subsidiaries, BENR R ERZEHCEZ

associates and jointly controlled F TSP E £ BV INE 42

entities R 134,670 5,425 140,095
Change in fair value of available-for-sale ] fit i & 2 % & #)

investments, net NAEED F5E (948) - (948)
Gain on Share Exchange i 9 323 2 Wz

(note 50(b)(i)) (Bt 5E 50(b)(1)) 1,320 1,117 2,437
Total comprehensive income for FE2EWZE

the year 4aFE 933,014 94,275 1,027,289
Dividends paid BT E (319,198) - (319,198)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B FIRE R R

shareholders f% 8. - (162,305) (162,305)
Share options granted by a listed — A E A R T

subsidiary — consultancy BERUE — B EL

services received 8 o) PR 755 3,476 2,944 6,420
Placement of shares of a subsidiary Bt & — A M8 A 5l 2 ik

(note 39(c)) (Pt 5£39(c)) - 39,494 39,494
Non-controlling interest recognised on Bt %17 32 A FE R 2 FE 42 A% 7 =

Share Exchange (note 50(b)(i)) (Bt 5E 50(b)(1)) - 31,830 31,830
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B 8 2~ )

(note 50(b)(i)) (Ffi &£ 50(b) (1)) - 17,408 17,408
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB QA (7,896) - (7,896)
Gain on partial disposal of interest HEME—ERBRR 2

in a subsidiary (note 39(c)) 2B = A W e (Y EE 39(c)) 21,740 - 21,740
At 31 March 2011 R-ZE——F=A=+—H 4,479,565 399,833 4,879,398

The notes on pages 49 to 156 are integral parts of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GelleRER

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BZ—ZE——F=A=+—HILFE

Restated
RE|
2011 2010
—g--F —Z-Zf
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
ik BET T BT
Operating activities gexy
Cash (used in)/generated from operation (BR)/REEEZRE 50(a) (109,086) 455,259
Interest paid EIFE (22,127) (32,237)
Profits tax paid BANFER (40,940) (37,045)
Profits tax refund B SRR 6,591 12,730
Net cash (used in)/from (AR)/REEEER
operating activities ZEERE (165,562) 398,707
Investing activities REXK
Interest received BUFI & 14,225 4,624
Dividends received from associates BUEE DR Z RS 45,441 31,495
Dividends received from jointly controlled entities BERAREHIRE RS - 6,762
Dividends received from listed securities Bl EMERZEE 27,650 10,394
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BE K& (27,716) (54,769)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME  BERZ
equipment and prepaid lease payments REMNBEERIEL IERIE 6,319 17,907
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREME 2 FiEHE 7,026 -
(Purchase)/proceeds from disposal (BA)/LEAMEREE
of other intangible assets, net ZHBRE (485) 1,460
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from acquisition WERBLARMEEZ
of subsidiaries BemA/(Rit) 58 50(b) (1) * (ii) 35,643 (5,111)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from HEMELEZRERA/
disposal of (Ri) %88
—809% interest in Pacific Coffee Group —Pacific Coffee 55 B 2 80% 1 2= 50(c)(i) 296,966 =
~ 2% interest in CHK Group —HI-BBEE 2 2% R 50(c)(ii) - (91,334)
— other subsidiaries —Hi B AR 50(c)(iii) - 26,344
- Citiway Group -HEEE 50(d) (i) 267,113 =
- Smartco Group —Smartco & 50(d)(ii) 463,635 =
Adjustment arising from finalisation of RERE RS LA
purchase consideration for step-up ZRENREMES
acquisition of interest in an associate R E 18 - 661
Net cash inflow from step-up EE-FME R ERmES
acquisition of interest in an associate MNEERANFE 50(e) - 318
Investments in associates KREKE AT - (30,472)
Advances to associates B SN RIFTEZ BER (114,417) (117,468)
Repayments from associates REME AR ZERNE 20,358 93,259
Investments in jointly controlled entities WEREH 22 RE - (157,541)
Advances to jointly controlled entities RERZEHCEREZER (115,584) (42,213)
Repayments from jointly controlled entities KRB HRED G2 ERFUA 36,105 14,696
Purchases of available-for-sale investments BEAHLEZKE (32,859) (13,965)
Proceeds from disposal of HEARHE 2
available-for-sale investments RERFMENRE 6,853 46,045
Settlement of consideration receivables on WEEEH B A AR
disposal of interests in subsidiaries FEU KB - 191,947
Settlement of consideration payables for XAHERRE
— step-up acquisition of interest in an associate - ER-RBeARzER - (95,047)
— acquisition of interest in an associate —-BA—EHEA AR ER - (86,000)
Deposit received for disposal of Citiway Group HENEEBMR 2 ZE 50(d)(i) - 29,982
Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary EfkE-RNEAR &S 26 (102,525) -
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities RE/ (AR REXE RS TFE 833,748 (218,026)
Net cash inflow before financing activities MEEBAZRERNTFHE 668,186 180,681
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GoallenER

For the year ended 31 March 2011 8 Z —Z——F=A=+—HILFE

Restated
FE]
2011 2010
—2—-f —T-%F
Note HK$°000 HK$000
P & BT BETT
Financing activities MEEY
Dividends paid ERRE (319,198) (152,661)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders BN FIEERERRS (162,305) (11,779)
Drawn down of bank and other loans REBRTERREMER 1,154,422 1,824,509
Repayments of bank and other loans EBERITEIREMER (703,536) (2,472,281)
Decrease in pledged deposits HOBEERER 3,349 132,687
Capital contribution by a non-controlling shareholder —ZFBRERLE - 5,470
Net proceeds from placement of shares of a subsidiary B & —RNE D82 R TS RIEFE 61,234 22,339
Redemption of convertible bonds BEATSRRKRES 37 - (452,400)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities RE/(ARBELE 2 BEFE 33,966 (1,104,116)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents BERBEESEWEM/ (HD) 702,152 (923,435)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year REAZRERAELEEN 761,943 1,671,275
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates EXgg 38 9,873 14,103
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year REZXZBRERBESEEY 1,473,968 761,943
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents RERAEEB/NDN
Bank balances and cash BAEFERES 1,476,407 766,896
Pledged deposits BEHEATR (2,439) (4,953)
1,473,968 761,943
The notes on pages 49 to 156 are integral parts of these consolidated financial FOAEZIS6EZMEDLERE M B RE ZEK

statements.
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(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
450 W R M A

GENERAL INFORMATION 1 —REH

Chevalier International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public HIBEEEERAR(TARA ] A AR

listed company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The FHVEERETMEA L BEREERA -

addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the RARHEMPREERFEELEME 2D

Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bl & Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton,

Bermuda and 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi HM12, Bermuda X BB N E RRESHE L

Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong respectively. The Company has its FERL2E ERNVREBBERIFAER

shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock AR ([BEEZP]) BT e

Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while RARIZ EEXZBRIRERER  MEEENE

the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 52 to the RAIZEBERINNEGEE T B wMKRM 52

consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong WEGEEMBERERBEES - BRARAT 2

dollar, which is the same as the functional currency of the Company. BEEMAER - ZEHGEMBRERER T ——

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by FERNAZT\BREFGHEEM -

the Board of Directors on 28 June 2011.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTEREHE

POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these REREETBRERMRAZ EE S BERT

consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have MIAT o EMmAMMRGEA - AIZEBREREF

been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise BREARBKEZEINZEFE -

stated.

Basis of preparation (a) WBE%E

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its AARIREWMBAR(RBIAEE]) 246

subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance MR TDIRBEBRB A ([BAEGHA

with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by RNg ) TIEE 2 BB B EERL ([ F B YR

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). SREANDEE - WEGRAMBEBRRNIZES K

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the NERGRE - WHAEKREYE  AIEEE 28

historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment BEE NERREALAEREZUKEEER

properties, available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and BHKAaE(eETETE)NEGMmMmEET -
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value

through profit or loss.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity BREEBVBHREENRE GV BEHRRE

with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. SKERAEEBESTHT UERETEEEH

It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of TAREEZ S5 BRABIZD T H A6 o K

applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher HARE T B RERAGREEEZR - HH

degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and BUREMBRRIEEERBRIERMGEZE -
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are

disclosed in note 4.

(i) New/revised standards, and amendments and interpretations to () R=Z—=FMNA—HABBZAEBEEIK
existing standards that are effective for the Group’s financial year FEEMMHT BT ERERFEE
beginning on 1 April 2010 WIERT AR 2R
The following revised standards, and amendments and NTREBAEEEBGRAEER _—T—
interpretations to standards, that are relevant to the Group’s TEMA—HRBZVBFERTREZ
operation, are mandatory for the financial year of the Group BRI R R 2 BRI R R R o
beginning on 1 April 2010.

+  HKAS 17 (Amendment), “Leases” e HEBGHERFI7HRUETAN)HEE

+  HKAS 27 (Revised), “Consolidated and separate financial o HBEFEAFE 275 (KIER]) [&£6E
statements” ST RS £

+  HKAS 39 (Amendment), “Financial instruments: recognition o HABGFEAFEIHEUERTIAN) 8175
and measurement — eligible hedged items” TR BRAKFE-—GEREHIER ]

+  HKFRS 2 (Amendment), “Group cash settled share-based o BEFBMEEAFE 25 (IBFIA) [
payment transaction” H AR EE 2 R RETR AR

21
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING (continued) 2 B AFFHEEEBE @)
POLICIES
(a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a) WBEEE)
(i) New/revised standards, and amendments and interpretations to i) R=ZE—ZFNA—HHEBRZAEETK

existing standards that are effective for the Group’s financial year
beglnmng on 1 April 2010 (continued)
HKFRS 3 (Revised), “Business combinations”

+  HK(IFRIC) — Int 17, “Distributions of non-cash assets to
owners”

« HK - Int 5, “Presentation of financial statements —
classification by the borrower of a term loan that contains
a repayment on demand clause”

+  Improvements to HKFRSs (2008 and 2009)

The adoption of these revised standards, amendments and
interpretations has introduced certain changes to the terminology
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements (where the terms
“non-controlling interests” and “non-controlling shareholders”
replace “minority interests” and “minority shareholders”,
respectively) and has also resulted in a change to the Group’s
accounting policies in respect of classification of land leases
and bank borrowings, business combinations, and acquisitions
and disposals of ownership interests in subsidiaries, associated
companies and jointly controlled entities, that has affected the
amounts reported in the current year.

Classification of leases of land

The amendment to HKAS 17 are effective for the Group from 1
April 2010. It requires that the classification of leases is based on the
extent to which the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset lie with the lessor or the lessee. In particular, the amendment
deleted specific guidance in the standard which previously required
that the land element in a lease is normally classified as an operating
lease unless title to the land is expected to be passed to the lessee
by the end of the lease term. Under the HKAS 17 (Amendment),
a lease of land is classified as property, plant and equipment if the
lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the leasehold land to the lessee. The amendment to
HKAS 17 is required to be applied retrospectively. Comparative
information has been restated to reflect this change in accounting
policy. The effect of the adoption of this change in accounting
policy is a reclassification of certain amortisation to depreciation

FEERMOFT BT EREREER

E’Jﬂ**TZF&%E(iE)
BEMBRELENE 3R (EEFT) [X
A=k

s ER(ERMBEBEREZES)RE
F175% [AEEADIKIFREEE]

o EREREFESH[MBBRZI2H {5
KA E A 2 BBV ERIEKZE
/H\Hffaﬂ—:Zf\*EJ

. EEHBBMEEAZHE(CTEN
FR-FEAF)

FRMZFLETER - EFIARERER
AEBZE /\QMME%EP%U\%FJ%Z
BE) (A [IEZER s | & [IFZERACR
—HAD B [ DEBRERS ] M [ D#EK

B FEFASEFBALHES RIEIT
BERH %%%/\H&Hélﬁ%ﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂﬁ
Bon BERRRAREHOEY B
%Zaﬁﬂlﬁﬂjfﬁﬁ“@b FERFEEME
W BRE o

THHEESLE
EBSGENFI7THRZEITAE_ZE—F

FOA—HERAEBAER - IWIEFT AR
THEARBEERFEMME 2R R K&
B8 A AREABEARAmMDE - LHE

EUERTAMBEN R LR ERE 2 £+
wHs RO BARLERE(LERR

EHINE & B 2 A B EE 8 = AE ARRSI)

ZBEES - REBEFB ST LS 175 (E
FIA) 1&%&%#1%&%1#@%%%%%’%

ZRBARE D R K B RER FAEA - 8
j:iﬁﬁﬁ‘*“*ﬁ%%% BE Rl - 55
S EAFE 175 BT ANFEWER - &
SEEEILBREMURRI S EJrEAZ%H
g RMUBTRRED B E - Tk

alERTE ?ﬁ&fﬁ%%ﬁ"*ﬁﬁ?ﬁ&&m

in the consolidated income statement and certain prepaid lease B BRARPE THENEERBEN D
payments to property, plant and equipment in the consolidated *E RE - BB REENT
statement of financial position, as follows:
For the year ended
BETIAHILEE
31 March 31 March
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
=H=+—8H =HA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Consolidated income statement mEWE R
Increase in depreciation PrEE M 9,640 10,505
Decrease in amortisation #5Em A (9,640) (10,505)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA BB AR I A

2 BERETHEHBME®S)
(a) MRBLELE (%)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING (continued)
POLICIES
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
(i) New/revised standards, and amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are effective for the Group’s financial year

(i) R=Z2—ZFNA-—AMKZAEEYHK
FEERMOFT BT EREREER

beginning on 1 April 2010 (continued) FIERT AR 21 ()
Classification of leases of land (continued) T HEES K (E)
As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
R=B——F RZIZ2E-ZF RIZTNF
=A=+-—H =R=F—F¢ MmA—A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B¥TT BT BT T
Consolidated statement of RE MR R
financial position
Decrease in prepaid lease payments 815 7 & X IH ) 2 (336,749) (353,859) (411,415)
Increase in property, plant mE - BE K
and equipment B Rpil 336,749 353,859 411,415

Business combinations, and acquisitions and disposals of ownership
interests in subsidiaries, associated companies and jointly controlled
entities

Consequential revisions to HKAS 27, “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” and HKFRS 3 (Revised), “Business
combinations” are effective for the Group prospectively from 1
April 2010.

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires that an increase or a decrease in
ownership interest in a subsidiary that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary is accounted for as a transaction
with owners in their capacity as owners and is dealt with in reserves
and attributed to the shareholders of the Company, with no impact
to goodwill or statement of comprehensive income. Previously,
such transactions impact goodwill and give rise to gains or losses.
When control of a subsidiary is lost as a result of a transaction,
event or other circumstances, HKAS 27 (Revised) requires that
the Group derecognises all assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests at their carrying amounts. Any retained interest in the
former subsidiary is recognised at its fair value at the date when
the control is lost, with the resulting fair value re-measurement
gain or loss being recognised in the income statement. Previously,
the retained interest in the former subsidiary is recognised at its
carrying amount at the date when the control is lost and it does not
give rise to fair value re-measurement gain or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&5 B W B ok I G

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING (continued)
POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
(i) New/revised standards, and amendments and interpretations to

existing standards that are effective for the Group’s financial year
beginning on 1 April 2010 (continued)

Business combinations, and acquisitions and disposals of ownership
interests in subsidiaries, associated companies and jointly controlled
entities (continued)

HKEFRS 3 (Revised) introduces significant changes in the Group’s
accounting for business combinations. Changes affect the valuation
of non-controlling interests, the accounting for transaction
costs, the initial recognition and subsequent measurement of a
contingent consideration. These changes impact the amount of
goodwill recognised, the reported results in the period that an
acquisition occurs and future reported results. Furthermore, the
revised standard changes the accounting for business combinations
achieved in stages. Under HKFRS 3 (Revised), the Group’s
previously held interests in the acquired entities are re-measured to
fair value at the date the Group attained control and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in the income statement, and
any comprehensive income recognised in prior periods in relation
to the previously held interests is also reclassified to the income
statement, as if those interests were directly disposed of. Previously,
the resulting gain or loss would have been dealt with as a movement
in the capital reserve, and the amount recognised in other
comprehensive income in prior periods in relation to the previously
held interests is not reclassified to the income statement. The
principle adopted under HKFRS 3 (Revised) in relation to business
combinations achieved in stages is applicable to acquisition of
associated and jointly controlled entities in stages.

As a result of the adoption of the revised standards, a gain on
disposal of 40% interest in a subsidiary of HK$2,437,000 was
recognised in equity, and the re-measurement gain of 20% interest
in a former subsidiary retained by the Group of HK$13,617,000 was
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Classification by the borrower of a term loan that contains a
repayment on demand clause

HK Interpretation 5, “Presentation of financial statements —
classification by the borrower of a term loan that contains a
repayment on demand clause”, specifies that amounts repayable
under a loan agreement which includes a clause that gives the
lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any time shall be
classified by the borrower as current liabilities in its statement of
financial position.

2 BEAESFTTHEMEwW)

(a) WBEE(E)
() R=Z—ZFENA-BRKZAEBHK

FEERMOFT BT EREREER
ST AR 2R ()
FEBEHR KB L ET KB L A - B
ERARRAZHEEZHEFE(E)

BERUBRELEAEIR(EET)HAE
EEMEBAMHZETRETEBREXN
25 ARSHFEITRBESE2MAE
RHRAEZEAREBTENIAREZE
REERRERAE MR BT EPTHE
RZBESE WERLHMAE2HRE
BERRATEWZER ° WIN - ZEER]
ERIRBOBEBET 2 EBAM 2B R
BIDE - RIFBBM RS ERINFE 35K (K
E]) ARERARBUBERFTHZ
BRARASERSEHEERZAAE
B8 MEAZBEHER(WA)R
Was &R AHER - & 1 B BL S Al PR
BEEREME2HEERTERHRER
BmRCMNZERRCEENE - B
PREEzWGXBERESRIFEA B LE
BERIE - mMPNBERRER AR EER
H2ERERR L EBATEENIE
EWER - RIBEBP B REENFE IR
(RIERMEA OB RETZEBA G
ZRABBRRNDBEBETZEE AR kL
(R 22 1l (b 2 U B

ERALEETER BE—RHKB AR
40 % 2 #E 2 B W % A 78 #42,437,000 7T B Y
BEhER REFMAELAEERE —
REIRTH B AR Z20% K 2 WS B
13,617,000 7T B AR & W am 3= FERR o

BEHNAL BB 7 BRI IFEL A 2 ER
BEMznHE

BERBESH [MBHR 2/ —ERA
HHEARBEKAFEFTIERZERERZ
DR Pl B E TR A AT H B AR 3R
NS AR 1B & 5K 10 % IR R 48 T B KA AR
BAEREEERZBEREBII/RBE

& o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING (continued)
POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
(i) New/revised standards, and amendments and interpretations to

2 BEAESFTTHEMEwW)

(a) WBEE(E)
() R=Z—ZFENA-BRKZAEBHK

existing standards that are effective for the Group’s financial year
beginning on 1 April 2010 (continued)

Classification by the borrower of a term loan that contains a
repayment on demand clause (continued)

The effect of changes in accounting polices following the adoption
of HK Interpretation 5 on the consolidated statement of financial
position is as follows:

FEERMOFT BT EREREER
ST AR 2R ()

EANH B E 2 EREFEL A 2 EFR
BHznE(E)
RMELREF SRR EFTBRES LR
EMBRRRZZEMT

As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
R=B——F RZZ-Z RZZZTNF
=A=+—H =A=+—H mMA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ok BT
Increase in bank borrowings MEREBEE
included under current liabilities ZSRTITEEIE M - - 22,116
Decrease in bank borrowings S RIEREEE
included under non-current ZIRITIER
liabilities e - = 22,116

There is no impact on the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Amendment to existing standard early adopted by the Group
HKAS 12 (Amendment), “Deferred tax: recovery of underlying
assets”

In December 2010, the HKICPA amended HKAS 12 “Income
taxes” to introduce an exception to the principle for the
measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities arising on an
investment property measured at fair value. HKAS 12 requires an
entity to measure the deferred tax relating to an asset depending on
whether the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of the
asset through use or sale. The amendments introduce a rebuttable
presumption that an investment property measured at fair value is
recovered entirely through sale.

The Group has early adopted these amendments and has resulted
in a change in accounting policy on the provision of deferred tax
on revaluation of investment properties. Previously, provision for
deferred tax was made at the income tax rates on the valuation of,
and the tax bases of, investment properties held under operating
leases on the basis that their values would be recovered through
use rather than through sale. In accordance with the amendments,
deferred tax is provided at the income tax rates on allowances
claimed on these properties and at the capital gain tax rates on the
valuation in excess of cost.

As the Group’s investment properties located in Hong Kong and
Singapore where sales proceeds in excess of cost are not taxable,
deferred tax liabilities arising from fair value gain on investment
properties located at these regions have been reversed. This change
in accounting policy should be accounted for retrospectively.
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BEEEERIE 1258 (1557 F)EEH R :
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RZB-—FE+ " FESFAMAGE
RIEBEFERE LR (AEN] - HitE
BRENERARAABFEMELNELTH
HEERABEMNRARRSIA—EDISMEG
N BB ERERFERE  EEAR
FHEHMELERERAEEREEENK
E{EF EARAELERIE - ZEERI A5
AFREHRR - MRAREFENKRE
WMERTVEBIHE 2 BURE -

AEBERPRAZFETA  WEHE
EREMENECHBREBENEITERE
PrEEg) - BIE - EIEBHIZ AT S BEAE R A
LEHERANREMENGEMNTEE
B KB EESIREMENEE
KA B e A (M IF &) WE - RIFZSE
ERIA  BERBRZSYERAN R
BRI HN R R B S - ARIREM(E
{ﬁﬁ%%@ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ@%ﬁui§$i@%)ﬁ%%%ﬂ%%&

RRAEBMNEE R IREDE
& FTS A U ES R AR ) 2 B S B RR B
BEBURNZFHENREYMENRAE
WEHEL CREHREBEE T O - thE
SATBERNEEHE TEHALR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING (continued)
POLICIES
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
(ii) Amendment to existing standard early adopted by the
Group(continued)
HKAS 12 (Amendment), “Deferred tax: recovery of underlying
assets”(continued)
The effect of the changes in accounting policies following the

2 BEAESFTTHEME®

(a) MABEEE)
(i) AEERERMNEFTERNBITARGE)

BEEEERE 1258 (15T ) EEHE :
KO EREE /()
RABEGAEAE RR(BITRN)ER

adoption of HKAS 12 (Amendment) on the consolidated income ST BIRE B H R A Wk MG E Mk
statement and the consolidated statement of financial position are MRZZENT
as follows:
For the year ended
BETIBEHLEE
31 March 31 March
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
=Z=AR=+-H =A=+-—H
HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BT
Consolidated income statement meWER
Increase in share of results FT b B & A &)
of associates E5: 4,527 3,515
Decrease in income tax expenses TS5 2 H s> 28,183 36,297
Increase in profit attributable to A RRIERFE A
equity holders of the Company JE 15 4 1138 0 32,710 39,812
Increase in basic and diluted AR B AN & #5E
earnings per share (HK$ per share) B (FARB ) 0.12 0.14
As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
R-ZE——F RZE—FF RZZEZTNF
=HA=+-—H =A=+—H mA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T 758 T BT
Consolidated statement of e MR R R
financial position
Increase in interests in associates P Bt & 2 B 2 ez 38 0 12,365 7,838 4,323
Increase in deferred tax assets IR IE R IE & EE L N 21,212 13,852 1,687
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities & %E %% 18 & (&5 110,702 89,879 48,466
Increase in net assets & EFEE N 144,279 111,569 54,476
Increase in retained profits 1R BB 34 1|12 i 123,642 90,932 51,120
Increase in other assets B BEEEG
revaluation reserve fRE AR L AN 20,617 20,617 3,356
Increase in exchange SNV L HZ B
fluctuation reserve {1 15 1 20 20 =
Increase in shareholders’ funds A% R & & 12 0 144,279 111,569 54,476
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING (continued) 2 BEAEHHFEME ()

POLICIES
(a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a) WBEE(E)
(iii) New/revised standards, and amendments and interpretations to (iii) MARERBEARNER S RFRANHT KB

existing standards that are not effective and have not been adopted
by the Group

The following new or revised standards, and amendments and
interpretations to existing standards relevant to the Group’s
operation have been issued, but not yet effective for the financial
year beginning 1 April 2010 and have not been early adopted:

+  HKAS 24 (Revised), “Related party disclosures”

+  HKAS 27 (2011), “Separate financial statements”

+  HKAS 28 (2011), “Investment in associates and joint ventures”

+  HKAS 32 (Amendment), “Classification of rights issues”

+  HKFRS 7 (Amendment), “Disclosures — transfers of financial
assets”

«  HKEFRS 9, “Financial instruments”

+  HKEFRS 10, “Consolidated financial statements”

+  HKEFRS 11, “Joint arrangements”
+  HKEFRS 12, “Disclosure of interests in other entities”

+  HKERS 13, “Fair value measurement”

+  HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 (Amendment), “Prepayments of a
minimum funding requirement”

+  HK(IFRIC) — Int 19, “Extinguishing financial liabilities with
equity instruments”
*  Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the related
impact to the Group but is not yet in a position to state whether
there will be any substantial changes to the Group’s significant
accounting policies and presentation of financial information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&5 B W B ok I G

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 March.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business
combinations by the Group. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the entity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration agreement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at the fair values at the acquisition date. There is a
choice, on the basis of each acquisition to measure the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of any previous
entity interest in the acquiree at the date of acquisition over the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides ensure of
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests (previously known as minority interests) is
the equity in a subsidiary which is not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to a parent. The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests (namely, acquisitions of additional interests and disposals of
partial interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control) as
transactions with equity owners of the Group, instead of transactions
with parties not within the Group. For purchases of additional interests
in subsidiaries from non-controlling shareholders, the difference
between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals of partial interests to non-controlling shareholders
are also recorded in equity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEREHBERBE@®
POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill/discount on acquisitions () WIBEE Zﬁﬂ'&/ i
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an associate or WHEMEB AR - e AR s REGIbEEL
a jointly controlled entity, representing the excess of the cost of ZEET Hﬂl ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ_ R & B RIS B EA e
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable HERAMNBAR - BRIk ERZEH RS
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary, Al BB E fé BERIARBERAALEERZH
associate or jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition, is carried %ﬁ I 2 B A RAE AT REHRE B B IR
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is presented separately WEE I B 1 B E A 2 R DN RS BT iR
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Goodwill arising on RERDFZ5 o B E A B Sk R fl b
an acquisition of an associate or a jointly controlled entity is included in EMmEEZEETH AL B E A B 5k HE R E
the cost of the investment of the relevant associate or jointly controlled Hl b2 ZIRE A o
entity.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested for impairment annually or BURAZEESEFRE P REREE A8
more frequently if there is indication that goodwill might be impaired. H:': fﬁ /WTE iy 5 SA I E 1T BRI o MR e .%
Goodwill on acquisitions of associates and jointly controlled entities is H P2 il 1b 28 BT EE A 2 P B 5T A B
included in investments in respective associates and jointly controlled AA /-\ HEZEI DL IRE - S8 A4 g%z-
entities and is tested for impairment as part of the overall balance. For %EZ_*B A ETTRERIR - BURERHEME
the purposes of impairment testing, separately recognised goodwill W B PT E AE 2 18 SRR 2 TR T A 43 B B TR HA
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash- AXERBERRANE s S ERReEES N
generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that are expected ((ReEFEMDIREEESBMER - BEH
to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU to which Eﬂﬁﬁziﬁj&FE S g B FRERRREAT
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and T fE IR R E R E TR E ) E\'J“E TR EE
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For B FEE 2 WHEFTE SR &M S E?% ol
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the CGU to which R 7 B B A B P R TS 2 ST A4S A AETT
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of BEAR - BN e EE B2 A Y [E %%E EPIN
that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less %Zﬁhzfpﬁﬁﬁ BIR B 5 18 & o1 0 BL DA B
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated AR D AL 2 22 B 2 BB IR E(E - AR
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit Hl Bl 7% B8 {7 W,E;ﬁﬂ BE - B2 EMREEE
first, and then to the other assets of the unit. Any impairment loss for DEERGEERGRER BAEBZREEBER
goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. An E & BB T [o % o
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, an associate or a jointly Hig HEMB AR - Bie A a2k [ 2 Hl 5
controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised B At AREREHBNEESE  UETE
is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on HE B -
disposal.
A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an W B BT B8 A A~ Bk A &) 3k 2k R 2 il 4 3 1
associate or a jointly controlled entity represents the excess of the net EAZ WIEHTE - THERK ﬁﬁﬁZ—J BRI BE
fair value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent BERIAREBBZARFERLY %3—‘%/\ BEAX $
liabilities over the cost of the business combination and is recognised 2 =R o WEEITEAR NG A WS RP R
immediately in the consolidated income statement.
Contingent liabilities of an acquiree are recognised at the date of the EWRESTNRABEZ AR BER AR A] i
acquisition if the fair value of the contingent liabilities can be measured .{I‘ 2R ZEFIAAGENEREAHER - R
reliably. Contingent liabilities are initially measured at fair value at the WHEER  ZAABERARBIFEERHER -
date of acquisition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates
are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and of changes in other comprehensive income of the
associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses is
provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that associate.

Where a Group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the relevant associate, except to the extent that unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case, the full amount of losses is recognised.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
associates is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. The results
of associates are accounted for on the basis of dividend received and
receivable during the year.

Joint ventures

Jointly controlled assets

When a Group entity undertakes its activities under joint venture
arrangements directly, constituted as jointly controlled assets, the
Group’s share of the jointly controlled assets and share of any liabilities
incurred jointly with other venturers are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements and classified according to their natures. Liabilities
and expenses incurred directly in respect of interests in jointly
controlled assets are accounted for on an accrual basis.

Income from the sale or use of the Group’s share of the output of
the jointly controlled assets, together with its share of any expenses
incurred, are recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to/from the Group.

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate

entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic activity
of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEREHBERBE@®
POLICIES (continued)
Joint ventures (continued) (e) E¥EA (&)
Jointly controlled entities T 4R 5
The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are HEEGICE RS BERBEORB S
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the HERETARSZRATBEHRENRN - REER
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments % 0 P FRRIE il b 3 2 B aR D IR R A E R AR
in jointly controlled entities are carried in the consolidated statement G AR RTIE - Wk BB A E B (L
of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in B 12 ol 1 2 0 F sk B 18 Rk B fh i &= R 22 8 (40
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the BRAEMEZABEEE) ELFAE A E
jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the 2 JEAG 35 A 122 ) 10 25 B 48 4R 5 0 SR 8 HL RS 7%
Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its HEZGCEZER(BREE LBRAS
interest in that jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-term RERZEGREFRE 2 EMRBAER) - Bl
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in REER|FEREEL ZE—FEE - BBINT
the jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising its HEEHTREEREREE  HEIRRAE
share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a BXZERRHNRME IR ZERIEH D E
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal S FRIE -
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly
controlled entity.
When a Group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the MEBBEERNEEHLRFZEGCFEETRS
Group, unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the Bl R 5 30 55 F sl S 1B A5 A AR S B A R HE Rl 2
Group’s interest in the relevant jointly controlled entity, except to the B S SRETEHE  EEZRELRE
extent that unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the BNREESELRRBEZER ZEESE
asset transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is recognised. BT &R
Financial instruments () B#EITH
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement ERECERAMBIEGNBRIXZEINR
of financial position when a Group entity becomes a party to the Bl # & E M I B ER I BIANR NFER -
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial IBEERMBABYIREARENE - BE
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are B ARBERETHBEEE RV BEGE(RIE
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and IR A ERIE 2 M EE R E ERIN)
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities ZRBKA - R EIRIERRE N IS E E I
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the BEZARBEMASINR(ER) - EEEN
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, WIENERIRIRA R ERIE 2 W EELME
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the BEZRGEAR DR KRR AER -
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash EREAEWRIRESRE ZENER B E
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and EREEMASEE B EZRV K EERERE
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ZBEREBo RN EHRE  ERATEEES K
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, WIETER - RREERV B EER  ZHEE
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the MREEHE D W R ENE BN RN
consideration received or receivable and the cumulative gain or loss RH RIE W s sk B 18 2 42 A0 R A Z BB S RE R R
that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in the income WEHKRA ©
statement.
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the M B ENE MG AT A B T ERR T H
relevant contract is discharged or, cancelled or expires. The difference o fiE i S R AR IETERR - AR IR 2 RS AL E
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and B IR T (B B2 2 A s R ARB ) 2 = R i M
the consideration paid or payable is recognised in income statement. RIER °
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into either financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of each category of financial
assets are set out below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held for trading and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition. At the end of each reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in the income statement in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At each reporting period end date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including debtors, amounts
due from subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses. An
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

As at 31 March 2011 and 2010, loans and receivables represent
amounts due from associates and jointly controlled entities,
debtors and receivables, bank balances and amounts due from
subsidiaries of the Company.

2 BEAESFTTHEMEwW)

H MBEIARE
() MBEE

KE@Z%Fﬁﬁixﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
REREMBEE  BREBUREA
TﬁEZWﬁ§F°ﬁE$§E$A%ﬁ
EZHMBEENR S B SEERR LK I
R -NERREBEXHERBREZE
Pl S E IR 2 i M A R WE B 2 BF
Wéiii AT & BB EEMFRA

RE@IEE LA EEEZ R FRE
FE SR AREREECVBEEEEM

HMEER - BFEFELSENBEERR
W%ﬁm%ﬁ?i%%wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
ZHBEE - RUAERE S RERAR
REERREANEREZMBEETIRA
REFE AREZEEDRESSBE
LI&EEEEFE?%EEWU °©

B R EW 7
B R K e WK AR 30 FE 0 B T 3 ¥R B i Y
BEEXABENRIINTEMBEE -
RERERESHRERARBE  ERNE
H%Ma%ﬁ%@%~%%%%ﬂﬂ
BRRARARZEGEERKERITEF R
i&@ﬂ%%a%ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬂ
M - PRI 2 BRIBERE o 58
HFREELTRE  ABEBESNKE
%ﬁw 3 3% & FE R {8 4% R B R A K
%ﬁZﬁﬁ*XﬁiMEZﬁﬁm%ﬁ#
o fie B B ] W [ & B 2 SR 0 AR R B M 4R
ﬁﬁ&ﬁwmﬁ&%¥$2$ﬁ AR E
BEEN AR/ DA ERERRE A
ZEERBENSBEBINERIRERZ
JR 2K e SH R o

RZE——FR=_T—FF=A=+—H "
5 AR B UK R FE M B R F) R ﬁn%ﬂ
DRI - EUOIRR R E WK - RITETT

VAT e 7R 2 R B R RIBR K o

Chevalier International Holdings Limited 60 H+EIREBERLAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&5 B W B ok I G

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as any of the other categories set out
above. At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income, until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the income statement. Any impairment
losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed through the income statement
in subsequent periods. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment losses.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are stated at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition. An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
losses will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial
liabilities held for trading on initial recognition. At the end of
each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are re-measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in the income
statement in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank and other borrowings,
outstanding insurance claims, creditors and payables, amounts
due to non-controlling interests, amounts due to associates,
dividend payable to non-controlling interests and amounts due
to subsidiaries of the Company are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(iii) Derivatives

~

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage
its exposure against currency risk and interest rate risk. Such
derivatives are measured at fair value. Changes in fair values of such
derivatives are recognised directly in the income statement.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
separated from the relevant host contracts and deemed as held-
for-trading when the economic characteristics and risks of the
embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of the host
contracts, and the combined contracts are not measured at fair
value through profit or loss. In all other circumstances, derivatives
embedded are not separated and are accounted for together with
the host contracts in accordance with appropriate standards. Where
the Group needs to separate an embedded derivative but is unable
to measure the embedded derivative, the entire combined contracts
are treated as designated at fair value though profit or loss on initial
recognition.

Gains and losses from the changes in the fair value of the derivatives
(excluding the interest component) are recognised in other income,
net. The interest component is reported as part of interest income
from investments included in revenue.

Convertible bonds

The Group’s convertible bonds issued with embedded derivative
features is split into liability and derivative components. The initial
carrying amount of the liability component is the residual amount
after separating the embedded derivative. The liability component
is subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The derivative component is remeasured at the
end of each reporting period and any gains or losses arising from
change in the fair value are recognised in the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEHBREBR@®
POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties (g REWF
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital HIERPAS Wik B AL ES A EREEH -
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified M IEMRAEEG A2 - HIEREYE -
as investment property.
Investment property comprises land held under operating leases and REVFBHEBESEHRERE 2 i RIRIE
buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating leases REMEREZET ENAREMEZESG
is classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest xR RESEHERE 2 LHIEREY
of the definition of investment property is met. The operating lease is FAR - 2EHESROBEEERAIR -
accounted for as if it was a finance lease.
Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related WEYENBREZRERA(BRERABRIZHA)
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property is FTE o RUIATERE - WEVER AR BEAIR -
carried at fair value. Fair value is determined by professional valuation ARERRBEPRGHET s EEGEET o
conducted as at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are R B2 BB WG R AR °
recognised in the income statement.
Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of the BREEMMZ ARKENSSERALRER
asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated MZBEELZKAA KA SERTER - TEHZ%
with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be BEEZIREERGT ARG - FIH HAMb 4
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed EBRREKAREEZVEHBEAERTZRA
in the income statement during the financial period in which they are F| S o
incurred.
Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement as part of ARBEZEBRNERANERRE S - F
the other gains, net. B2—8H -
If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified W—IBREMERABER  BIWEFTDEAEY
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of X BELRRE THREFIBEABMZAR
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If an item BERETENMERAEKSN - WIE  BE
of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property RBRFHEzHEREREREMKA—EREY
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between the ¥ ZEEBREZFHHZIEEERAREZHE
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is FTEEZEAERE  REBEEE S ERSE 1657
recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment REZANRERIENE  BERXEZEM -
under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous SAT - fidl & S B U 2 [B] 485 5E Al 2 R E B 18 - Bl
impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income statement. W e Rz RAER °
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Leasehold land classified as finance
lease commences depreciation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Depreciation on leasehold
land classified as finance lease and other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives at the following rates per annum:

Annual charge

Over the shorter

of 20 to 50 years or

the remaining lease term
Over the remaining

lease term

10%

Over the remaining lease term
10%-33"/3%

Building

Leasehold land classified
as finance leasae
Machinery
Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures, office equipment
and motor vehicles
Others 10%-20%
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term and their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is
determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments classified as operating leases represent upfront
premiums paid for land cost. Prepaid lease payments are charged to
income statement over the term of relevant land leases on a straight-line
basis. The amortisation during the period before the commencement
and after the completion of the construction of the properties (except
for investment properties) is expensed in the income statement.

Properties for sale

Properties for sale, which comprise prepaid lease payments and
buildings held for resale, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of properties for sale comprises prepaid lease payments
and related development costs.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEREHBERBE@®
POLICIES (continued)
Property under development k) BRPUWE
Property under development comprise prepaid lease payments, BEAVEDERNEEHRE FHEBHRE
development expenditure and borrowing costs capitalised. B AR BRI HY & R o
The carrying amount is written down immediately to its net realisable 1|J] VPE EESNEKA - tREE TS AN MR E H
value if it is greater than its cost. The net realisable value is the estimated BHRE - A ERFEEEEEBRERH
selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs to complete 15 STEER TR ERNKARREEKRS
development and selling expenses.
Other intangible assets (1) HiER ﬁ E
On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately and NI TERE B RE XS 02 B
from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair value BETD JDUIJ BRKAE R AR EER - IR
respectively. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful % BRAERFIEREETRKANER
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and accumulated R R REOREEE AR - HRAE
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful Rz B EENHEH D AR GOER H A5t
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful AERAFEER - BRAIEAFHCELEE
lives. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less AR AME R R AR EE B AR
accumulated impairment losses.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are iR ETE wﬂﬂ/ BEME ’EEHﬁZﬁnTEETE R EMRT
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the EREFERA EREEZ8AE KN LE
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income statement HREERERZRANER -
when the asset is derecognised.

) Inventories (m) BE
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 17 & Th R i 7N B A B TR (B R & fﬁ TE )\ B o
is calculated using the first-in-first-out or weighted average method. Net RN IR i % S I T 0% £ IR %
realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds BT B EEBBIETR 2 G5 % Fﬁ ?Ef ?ﬁ’\ TE R
in the ordinary course of business less applicable selling expenses. TEEEEN AR EEEFE -
Construction contracts n) BEEN
Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated A K 2 B RAEW A SEHEFT - AR
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised with reference to the stage of RIDBERREBRE KNG E) 2 Tk BB (1R
completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period, as FALIEEBETKZLLOIMESE) MER
measured by the proportion that the value of work carried out during
the year.
When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated A K 2 B RAREW A EH(ERT » B HIK
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs AR A g [m B & KO AR T HERR & 4 ']ﬁXZ'KE/\‘\
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are F EEHﬂ AR B - & ']Wzlvﬁ—f
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. When BENWA - TEHEEGRERRX t|j
it is probable that contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as expense immediately.
When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less WMESHEELEZS ']ﬁXZ'K I E TR0 AR B
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as an RIS 15 R iR E [ TR IA EJJ HBH A FIERL & 4
amount due from customers for contract work. For contracts where TREEMRZFUEZFKIE o fi Tz SHES
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised HE S RIA R & KA Z'K 7Jl] B R0 AR E R
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as an amount due to BiE - ABEBOIHERA N TIREME X
customers for contract work. Amounts received before the related work 2B - REKA B IREAWEZIE - T)
is performed are included in the statement of financial position, as a R BEARRRIRE BN Z IR 5'] fllﬁ L
liability, as creditors. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet REKEHIREERES WA 2 5KIE - BlfE
paid by the customer are included in the statement of financial position REUBUIRFRET A B ATRA -
under debtors.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown as a separate current liability in
the statement of financial position.

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and cash equivalents.

Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Provision and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Group expects
a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when an inflow economic benefits is
probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Unearned insurance premiums

Unearned insurance premiums represent the estimated portion of the
premiums written which relate to periods of insurance subsequent
to the end of the reporting period and are deferred to subsequent
accounting periods. Unearned premiums are computed on the basis of
net premiums written for all classes of insurance. Net premium written
represents gross premiums received or receivable after deducting
reinsurance premiums.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEHBREHBER@®
POLICIES (continued)
Insurance claim (s) REBRE
Claims paid and outstanding comprise claims paid, claims reported but EXMRENZRBRREBRFENRREHREX
not yet paid as at the end of the reporting period and an estimate of NeRE BERBRERZNZREARMGE
claims incurred but not reported which is calculated with reference to EEEARBRZEE - b EJr%%E%‘ AR
foreseeable events, past experiences and trends. ZEH BENKRNBEBEmMAE -
Revenue recognition (t) WAER
When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, B —HEESANK R SEHEETE &
revenue is recognised using the percentage of completion method, MZBATDREFERLZEE  RxTES
measured with reference to the value of work carried out during the EORRER © B A NIRRT R S fhatig -
period. When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably, RGEEA M A eI B & LK AR RBA °
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
it is probable will be recoverable.
Income from sale of properties is recognised on the execution of a MEREZWATDCEEBRESEZEANRNZ
binding sales agreement or the completion of properties, whichever is BE MR I WER T (ME 2R BE)ALR -
later.
Income from the sale of goods such as information technology HESm(WEMBXRE - TERER) 2K
equipment, motor vehicles and food and beverages are recognised when AIOREmEt BRI EmEREE T 5’5\ FigA
goods are delivered and title to the goods has passed to the customers. R o WABRRBRPIAHERE - Hi0 RIGET ©
Revenue is arrived at after deduction of any sales returns, discount and
value-added tax.
Income from rendering of services such as provision of maintenance RERE(NRBERERVEEERY  2E
and property management, warehouse and logistics services and hotel K AR 76 DA BB 5 £8 ) 2 YA T pS 4 it AR
operations are recognised at the time when services are rendered. 5 TR AR - IRERB AT 2 WA T BN IE
Receipts in advance of provision of services are accounted for as JEUA A -
deferred income.
Premiums for direct insurance business are recognised as income over BERRER 2 RRE TR R G 2 & B
the terms of insurance policy period. RBERWA -
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, with RE M5 & & 2 K8 A Ty 3% B )t Bl AR
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate WARE AR ® 2 R B 2 BRI EAELFTE -
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future BERANXRERMBEECEHERTH &
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to its net B RRRSWATREZEE 2 IREFEZLL
carrying amount. e
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s R &SI EM A TIR A & B W EBURIE 2 # 5
rights to receive payment have been established. T ST R R o
Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line EEMRE WA REREHEZEEEE
basis over the terms of the respective leases. FHAR -
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at
their fair values at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the statement of financial position as an obligation
under finance lease. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are charged directly to the income statement, unless they are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
general policy on borrowing costs as stated in the policy below.

Rentals payables under operating leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivables as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the
period in which they are incurred.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited

(w)

)

ERETHEBRE W

HE
EHEGKEL L REERMEL 2RO R
aREGEEBHEAAA  ZEANBRER/RE
HE-rAEEMEESRREAEERE -

AEEESHAA

BEMRE T EYORTE A 2 IR TY ARSI ERE K
P RER/AEEREEZFRE -BMEHE
WATIDREZE S HE - ARBASERHE
EHARKEFERE 2 EEEHERE

SEHEELACHSWARBEREE ZHEBNU
HEROEARIRER AR - Bk R T EEME
PEEZ B REERAG AZBREEERE 2R
EER  TREHANABRERR B -

FEBMAEREBEA
BEHETRHEZEENEELEMEZANE
IHREEE 2 RENREERE)ERRANE
BeEE - HHBEAZHBEEEEWBRIE
NI BREBLFAE HERBERES R R
HIRAR B ATE 2 B0 BC - AR A E SR B RS [E]
EZNE - BEBRER AWERA @ FRIE
HOERRENE EZZENSRENE
ERGISN  FEUERT  BIREBAEE 2 F5K
A —RBERIEEAEBEE (R THIBE) »

LEHEZENEERNEEASEFHANRER
EH AW RA - AR EHEE W R ER
ZEBEEE  REAEXNEAPARRASES
BR 2R

ER/Io#N

U ~ RS EEN & R E R B E /N E 5K
Ko BEERNMERREEEMKA—7 o thE
ERRARREEAR LA B Ak &
ffE LB AL - FRI AT A R IEMNEE MRS
ZEFREERRBREBAERIEREETRE
MR Z B WA - IR AHEE AR Z B3R
AR AORR o

PREEMERRA  TREREEBER RS
KPR ©

68 H+TEREEERAR



2

(w)

(x)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M WOk I G

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEREHBERBE®
POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (w) Sh¥E
In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group entity, RS ERIEE D2 M ERRE - Zb3E
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that AT aE BB LAGN 2 B HE (ONEE) AT 2 X 5 194%
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency R Bz ERERBRE RS (Bzt
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the QU FEREME 2 SRR RE
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of HEMR  DIINEEBE2ERIETEE OiRRE
the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items HiRBRAEXRE - BEARBUIINEEEBEZ
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing FEBHEBE DIRAAEEEE A ERAER
at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair BRE  BENATTEAIINEEEZIEEBE
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the HEBRABKE -
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value has determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not re-translated.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and REERBEEEIEIRERES ZERZ8EY
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the income REEBREGF AR A - EAEK RS EEI
statement in the period in which they arise, except for exchange XBoREFEA D 2 EEHIBEMEEZE
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s HREBERIN  ZHEEAEZEINERE T B wE
net investment in a foreign operation, which are recognised in equity FHRAER UARBEEBEIFERHIER
in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences arising REMBEBMEE ZERZRANZARMIIA
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are Wk EHREFRN G EEEREERRN
included in the income statement for the period except for differences Rz IEEHIMIA B FTEE/E R ZH/BRI
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which MAEBKRNEEERS D BEEERER N
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the R e
exchange components of that gain or loss are also recognised directly in
equity.
For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, MEINGREMBRERME * ANEE 2 /BINER
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated ZEBEERBBENDRRBEHRZARAZIIK
into the presentation currency of the Company at the rate of exchange BERZERERBRE  MERARIHTIIEZ
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and HEz FHEXRETHRE  BRIFPERNZEE
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, AHIRARERE - AR LIERT - BIERARR
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in SERCBRER FELAZERZHE(A)
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions R E 2 W s A HERAVERR A M 2 2 BB
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other ONERBZB#E) - ZFEXLZR/IINEI
comprehensive income as a separate component of equity, the exchange EBEHEE 2 HEARERE WK AR o
fluctuation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired R-ZZTRFM A — B kA% E W EINER
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 April MATEE  HBRAPREEN D ERHET
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and RIERBINEBZ2EERBE  RIEREHK
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting ZHEREXRBRE -FELEZEREZRNINER
period. Exchange differences so arising are recognised in the exchange S B i R o
fluctuation reserve.
Share capital (x) B
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. EERk DB AER -
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares A B £ B R 50 3517 58 AR 17 o B IR A B9 385 & B R
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the TERATS IR AR (TR RS AT
proceeds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period. Employee entitlements to sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Bonus plans
Provision for bonus plans are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made.

(iii) Defined contribution plans
Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
including the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an
expense as they fall due, net of forfeited contributions.

(iv) Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based compensation
plans. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of share options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted at the date of grant,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions. At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest. It recognizes the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

Taxation

Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes income statement items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Upon early adoption of amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred tax
recovery of underlying assets” retrospectively, deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties located in Hong
Kong and Singapore are determined based on the presumption that
the carrying amount of such investment properties will be recovered
through sale with the corresponding tax rate applied. In prior years,
it was assumed that the carrying amounts of these properties were
recovered entirely through use.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASTEREHSE@®
POLICIES (continued)

(z) Taxation (continued) (z) BEE)
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts LLE\“L BIRBEVBREANEE KB EREE
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding ER 5+ 5 & SR TR A AT BE R AR FE T L 2 = FE i i
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted R WHAEEEAR - EL%R HEE %3
for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally P FE AR T H A 1 = AR RR 3 BAE T 1A B EE R
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets AT F0 R B 1 2= 2 A BE A J«X K 58 R 2R FE =R
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits BomFIF FLARER - WERFMEEZEaFE(T
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be BREEBEO) —BIZEERT &Mt
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary N 2 25 2 HAth B E N B E K G188 HE R P
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other £ EBREEREBBETTIAER -
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences i ﬁ ] E BEIRRIB AR 2EE - FrfhE
arising on investments in subsidiaries, and interests in associates and ERE R HEREGI R S TELEERE
jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is able to control ET IE%EWEE w8 B SE N 52 [ A 2 o L A L&L§
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the HPEREREERIEATER 2 KR4
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. B o
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each EEBIREEIRAEDNSREPRETE
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable B - N AE AT BE B B S FE AR B v Al LA I Bl &
that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to allow all or part HEDBEEBERERR °
of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the EIER IEHZ?E\ HREEARIEREENHEL
period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax iﬂﬁﬁ HEE BRI Y KRB ET A
is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it relates to Wk A - BRIEREHIAR T BRI ﬁﬁTD &
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred REE AR ZHA  ERERT BT
tax is also dealt with in equity. BNz R IR o

(aa) Impairment (aa) FE
Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are FREmIEENEE (PlnmE) s T
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. BEFARREETIR SHEE BFH=
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes 4 3R B B R R IR T AT E,ﬂfﬂﬂl [a] B
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be BEITRER - BEEBEREENIREEBR
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by HEAMKESENEZBER - Al B SFELE
which the asset’ s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The ERRAEIREER AN EREERE ZH
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell f =B A - P HBER  BEKRA D HH
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are RAEENERSELEBL)NRKEERES -
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable BREEI)N EXRIRBENFEHEECSER
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than :': BERRERS A AEBETR -
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

(ab) Disposal group held for sale (ab) HFEZHELH
Disposal group is classified as assets and liabilities held for sale and FEZLHEERSEARELEEERAR
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair values less costs to 1%"1%%‘?@@5@ HHER 5 M IF5E A m
sell if their carrying amounts are recovered principally through a sale YeEl - ARIREE R AR EREERARE 2
transaction rather than through a continuing use. The carrying amounts f EEFR - RIENHESERIERDE  BE K
of the reclassified assets and liabilities are determined based on the RENENDBERWTEERBRERITE UK
same applicable accounting policies prior to the reclassification, except ﬁﬁ EHAESCE RN ER D BERILES
for prepaid lease payments and property, plant and equipment, no FEo RS2 ZEEN - EZ#E%E PaR
amortisation and depreciation have been provided and for interests EERBEZIRABERBREN S HAER 2R
in jointly controlled entities, no share of results of jointly controlled —RFRIRREE °
entities have been provided for subsequent to the reclassification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(ac) Segment reporting

3.1

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the directors of the Company that (the “Directors”)
makes strategic decisions.

Segment assets mainly consist of non-current assets and current assets
as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position except
unallocated bank balances and cash, deferred tax assets and prepaid tax.

Segment liabilities mainly consist of current liabilities and non-current
liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position
except current income tax liabilities, bank borrowings and deferred tax
liabilities.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss, financial
derivatives, debtors and receivables, creditors and payables, outstanding
insurance claims, amounts due from/to related companies, amounts
due to non-controlling interests, dividend payable to non-controlling
interests, bank balances and borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arise from investments in debt
securities, bank borrowings, derivative financial instruments,
bills payable and floating and fixed rate bank deposits.
Majority of the Group’s bank borrowings carry interest at
floating rate and expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. The management monitors interest rate exposure and
hedges significant interest rate exposure by using financial
instruments such as interest rate swap. However, these
instruments are not qualified for hedge accounting.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been
increased/decreased by one percentage point and all other
variables were held constant, the post-tax profit of the Group
and the Company excluding impact of fair value changes
of derivative financial instruments and investments in debt
securities would increase/decrease by HK$396,000 (2010:
decrease/increase by HK$2,680,000) and decrease/increase by
HK$1,969,000 (2010: HK$3,098,000), respectively resulting
from the change in the borrowing costs of bank borrowings
and finance income of bank deposits.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 BEEREEBZRBEK @
POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BBEKEEE)

(a) Market risk (continued)
(ii) Foreign currency risk

(a) TEERRE)
(i) SMER B

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
currency risk arising from various currency exposures. Foreign
currency risk arises when the Group’s recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in currencies that are not the
entities’ functional currency.

The Group’s financial assets that are exposed to foreign
currency risk mainly comprise of instruments in debts and
equity securities and accounts receivable balances arising

AEEDNKEHEBHEER  EAEE%
EEERRS Bz INERK - Zli‘il
E%%@Zﬁé&ﬁ%tﬁFm%Z%
B AEMNE  BELEINERR -

AEBEHIMNERBR IV BEETR
BEEBIBRARE ST AN RRE
EE%T’FHﬁ%EWﬁFEZFEH&mﬁ%%’E e

from sales made to overseas customers. The Group’s financial REBEmYIMNERBR 2T BEBEEE
liabilities that are exposed to foreign currency risk mainly REBINRAE - REE 2R 751'1@1%
arise from overseas purchases. It is the Group’s policies to 1S F BB AR FE R A B 2 K

ensure that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances. The management
will continue to monitor foreign exchange exposure and will
consider economically hedging significant foreign currency
exposure by using financial instruments such as foreign
currency forward contracts should the needs arise.

Financial instruments under foreign currencies (other than
the functional currencies of the Group’s entities) that are

ﬂL/(EDHH/ETEEM\M(ZZDEFEE)J//\

RIERAERER - BIEEKER

EESNERRREERENBRLTE

J;g/‘(ﬁﬁi&glﬁﬁwl\iﬁiiﬁﬁé%@%ﬁfqﬂi
ME R

HERINERR ZIINE (T BIEEE R
X2 EB)BBITAFZENME

exposed to foreign exchange risk are mainly denominated in Rt ARM - Zn(TE7T]) RRM
Canadian dollar, Renminbi, United States dollar (“US dollar”) BBBAM AREE(DNEER) NEARQ
and Macau Pataca. The carrying amounts of the Group’s (on AIAIMNE BB c B EERIBE
entity level) and the Company’s foreign currency denominated BERHmER ZIREMBERT
financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting date are
as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE =L
The Group rEE 2011 2010 2011 2010
“E—-—-F —ZT-TF FB-—-§ —T-TF

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

BET T BT BET T BT
Australian dollar SR 28,083 2,699 - -
Canadian dollar MERT 228,104 216,323 - -
Euro L& 28,710 35,871 (299) (43)
Hong Kong dollar B 48,057 44,308 - -
Japanese Yen Ei 5] 35,912 45,846 (25) (115)
Macau Pataca B[ i 3,337 = (229,440)  (253,746)
Renminbi /\ R 230,890 121,728 - -
US dollar ETT 579,836 567,210 (18) -
Others Hith 22,361 17,155 (32) =

Assets Liabilities
gE =L
The Company ¥ NN 2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——-F —T-TF ZEB--F —T-TF

HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000

BETT AT T BETT BB T
Canadian dollar YV v 228,104 216,323 - =
Euro B 78 28,710 35,794 (299) (43)
Macau Pataca SR T - = (229,440)  (253,746)
Renminbi AR 197,360 - - -
US dollar ET 275,376 227,445 - -
Others HAb 21,566 21,488 (13) =
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)
(i) Foreign currency risk(continued)

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
sensitivity to every percentage point increase and decrease in
the functional currency of corresponding Group entity against
the above foreign currency. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for every
percentage point increase in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit/investment
revaluation reserve where the above foreign currency
strengthens every percentage point against the functional
currency of corresponding Group entity.

BEREEEERBE®

MR EEE)
(a) TIEZERRE)
(i) IVERBSE ()

TRHAVNREBRARRZ EEEE
MERE TN AL & IS S A NS 2 T 0
MO —EBDRZHREE - HERED
RABEAINE BEN 2 B IEHE
WERFREEXRSIZN—ER D
ZIE T UG o [EHRBRAE LA £ S
BHHBEBTCERBIIEER ST
E—BEEARZBERTEREFRE
EfbEEBATIEM -

The Group rE 2011 2010

—ET——fF —ZE—T4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Increase in profit i A1 2800 6,172 4,893
Increase in investment WEEHREE

revaluation reserve 10 2,364 2,113

The Company AN 2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Increase in profit S A1 380 2,425 345
Increase in investment WEEHREE

revaluation reserve 0 2,310 2,059

(iii) Price risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to equity securities
price risk because investments held by the Group and the
Company are classified on the consolidated statement
of financial position and the Company statement of
financial position either as available-for-sale investments or
investments at fair value through profit or loss.

If the prices of the respective quoted equity instruments of the
Group had been increased/decreased by one percentage point
and all other variables held constant:

— the post-tax profit of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2011 would increase/decrease by HK$1,448,000
(2010: HK$1,141,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;

If the prices of the respective quoted equity instruments of the
Company had been increased/decreased by one percentage
point and all other variables held constant:

— the post-tax profit of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2011 would increase/decrease by HK$596,000
(2010: HK$570,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 BEEREEBZRBEK @
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BBREKEEE)
(b) Credit risk (b) EERK

Principal financial assets consist of debtors and receivables,
amounts due from related companies, available-for-sale
investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss,
derivative financial instruments and bank balances. The Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparties’
failure to perform their obligations at the end of the reporting
period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is
the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the statement of
financial position.

Debtors of the Group may be affected by the unfavourable
economic conditions and the lower liquidity situation which
could in turn impact their ability to repay the amounts owed.
Deteriorating operating conditions for debtors may also have an
impact on management’s cash flow forecasts and assessment of
the impairment of receivables. To the extent that information is
available, management has properly reflected revised estimates of
expected future cash flows in their impairment assessments.

The Group has established different credit policies for customers
in each of its core businesses. The average credit period granted
to trade debtors was 60 days. The Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debt at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.

Amounts due from related companies are continuously monitored
by assessing the credit quality of the counterparty, taking
into account its financial position, past experience and other
factors. Where necessary, impairment loss is made for estimated
irrecoverable amounts. As at 31 March 2011, the amounts due from
related companies have no history of default.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss, derivative
financial instruments and debt securities, interest receivables and
bank balances are limited to financial institutions or investment
counterparty with high credit quality of minimum rating of ‘A’.
The Group controls its credit risk to non-performance by its
counterparties through monitoring their credit rating and setting
approved counterparty credit limits that are regularly reviewed.
The Group does not expect any significant counterparty risk.
Moreover, credit limits are set for individual counterparties and
periodic reviews are conducted to ensure that the limits are strictly
followed.

The Group does not have a significant exposure to any individual
debtors or counterparties.

Annual Report 2011 75 =T ——FFH

TEUBEER BRI EUK -
W@L AR AAHEEZRE Fﬁ
BIRBAAEREZRE TEPBKTHE
KRRITHEF - MERSH FEEBITRS
\méﬁ@%ﬁﬂﬁwWFQEZfE
AEBRRERRAAR ZHREER
ﬁ%%#ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ&%ﬁFZEE@

REEZ BB A E X B DAL ERE R
BenPUEREBATE My BHEER
RIREET] o BTN E AR BAL IR AT BE 7
gpﬁf@inﬁé/mEZ?ﬁ ﬁU&éTﬁHﬁZ /J—X
Bzl BREEREAFSZER &
EOR BT #E S R EER] < TR AR KR
i//|b$1$u+

$EI;TXIE$?/IL EBEPEW®IUTRZ
1:?? TESZEPFHEEHR
%iﬁziﬁ A= B 5 = 5= (8 Bl I8
145( ZTH&Z@ KER ﬁ&f%ﬁdﬁﬂﬂ/ﬂ&@ RE
fEHRAZRERE -

FEURRRIE A BIRSK - B BRIARZHF
ZA= AEEE Iﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁiﬂ\i@&ﬁ
BEEMAZRMETRHEERE - WETE -
gRTAIKREZ Gt S BIEHRERE -
RZTE——F=A=+—H BEH#EER
BRI B R AL o

AEERNESARF (REFRZIAD
ZEBMEEAREH T IETARNESR
IRIZAREREZRE TEMBTAR
BES BN S ARRITET - A%
BEBRERAEXIUFZEAFRARAR
Z 5 F R B E B < (SRR -
ZHIEEERBRAN EERZHFTET
/\i’] MAKRBEBRALBES A2 XFHHF
B o WS XBZHFHREMEMNERR
%ﬁg BEBETRY  BERKETHH
PRAR ©

AREE W ENEMERNEFAXRZZHF
FRERAR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA B AR I A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3

POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

EERERERE

Z & BUR ()

3.1 BBREKEEE)
(c) E2RBRAR

The Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk management
and flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient cash equivalents,
readily realisable marketable securities and to have committed

short term and medium term credit lines available.

The Directors of the Company believe that the Group has obtained
sufficient committed and uncommitted general credit facilities
from banks for working capital purposes.

The Group’s liquidity position and compliance with loan covenants
are monitored closely by the management of the Company. The
following table details the Group’s and the Company’s contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities at the reporting date. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
or the Company respectively can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.

AEBEBRNHERTERZESRDER
FBERBRERMASEFIEN —Wﬁﬂi“”“‘fﬁ
CHEBAREAREHRTHEEEE
ARFBESBIEM

AN/ T%%*ﬁf CAEBERTHEZD
FaRAAE-REERE  BRABMNE
BEESMHE o

K@ﬂ%ﬁf@@%ﬂ‘fﬂ&)_ﬂﬁ%@z;mibé@
MR REFERZHBER - TRAIAE
EIPSEININ 7EA§E¢EE7T%E\EZAZ’J FHA
B o RAGTIBIEBAREBE KA QR 5 FIA]
?ﬁgﬁziﬂ#ZfiiEﬁﬁﬁ'\]ﬂﬁﬁ%E%Z*ﬁ
HReRERH RIFEBEFNNERESE
ZHEBME °

The Group KE
Total
Less than 2-5  More than undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years years 5years  cash flows
AFTEBES
SPR-& -Z-F CZZEEE HBLFE HRELE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT  BETr  E¥%Tx  EMTn
2011 —E2--F
Bank borrowings RITIER 385,994 1,126,872 190,509 6,446 1,709,821
Outstanding insurance claims ARARBRERE 153,918 - - - 153,918
Creditors and payables JFE {5F 1% 7% B2 JE & 653,936 - - - 653,936
Amounts due to associates FE B R RIRR 293 - - - 293
Amounts due to non-controlling e IE IR
interests IR 4,699 - - - 4,699
Dividend payable to non-controlling ~ FE{ FE/Z R #E R
interests [Es) - 9,600 - - 9,600
Derivative financial instruments PTERBIE
(net settled) (F#E) 3,139 2,797 494 - 6,430
Derivative financial instruments TEMBIA
(gross settled) (e
—outflow — 48,170 8,975 2,231 - 59,376
~inflow —RA (40,541) (2,529) (258) - (43,328)
2010 —Z-Zf
Bank borrowings RITIER 496,915 75,769 612,434 66,797 1,251,915
Outstanding insurance claims ARRBRE 137,986 = = = 137,986
Creditors and payables JE SR R I FE A 3R 582,250 - - - 582,250
Amounts due to associates F B R AR R 3,421 - - - 3,421
Derivative financial instruments PTERBIA
(net settled) (34%) (7,854) 6,597 8,453 = 7,196
Derivative financial instruments TEMBIR
(gross settled) (famEs)
—outflow — 10,907 8,950 11,206 - 31,063
— inflow —-mA (2,582) (675) (826) - (4,083)

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

BEEREEBZERBER@

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) MR EEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) E€HRBEM(E)
The Company KAH
Total
2-5  More than undiscounted
1-2 years years 5years  cash flows
AFEBES
—E-f ZEZnf BBIE RELE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETr B%Tx BETx BYETn
2011 “E—-F
Bank borrowings RITIER 1,029,212 - - 1,131,823
Creditors JFE 15F B X - - - 5,025
Derivative financial instruments TEMBIA
(net settled) (3#3%) 2,797 494 - 6,430
Derivative financial instruments PTERBIA
(gross settled) (L)
— outflow — it 8,975 2,231 - 39,369
_inflow -RA (20,554) (2,529) (257) - (23,340)
2010 —T-Tf
Bank borrowings RITRE 52,723 358,160 11,466 570,368
Creditors JEFTIR A - - - 16,938
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBIA
(net settled) (F#8) 6,597 8,453 = 20,941
Derivative financial instruments PTERBIA
(gross settled) (s
- outflow — 8,950 11,206 - 31,063
— inflow —mA (2,582) (675) (826) - (4,083)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern while maximising the
returns for shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

The Group regularly and closely reviews and manages its capital
structure to provide cost efficient funding to the Group and its
companies and make adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes of economic conditions or corporate needs.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio,
which is expressed as a percentage of net debt (comprises total debt less
bank balances and cash) over total equity. Total debt represented bank
borrowings.

32 BEXREBER

AREEREAZ A6 AREALESBEE
287 - R BB AR 2 A 7 Rl b ) AR
SR 5 B A2 -

AEEE R REDEEEERER AR
AEBREBETRARRRTERARE L ES -
%?ﬁgiﬁ*ﬂﬁiﬂiﬁ%%H?Zﬁ{t%;éméﬁﬁf’ﬁ

BEE LR 7 BEEREAN
ZEESFER(BRBETRRTER KB
EHFEFOLRESZBOL - BEBRRITER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 FEEAEREEREBERBK®
POLICIES (continued)
Capital risk management (continued) 32 EXAEBERE(E)
The net debt to equity ratio at 31 March 2011 and 2010 was as follows: R E-FTF=A=t+—HZERE
R R T
Restated
LE
2011 2010
—g——& ==&
HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BT
Total debt BIER 1,670,465 1,206,808
Bank balances and cash RITEFRIAS (1,476,407) (766,896)
Net debt RERS 194,058 439,912
Total equity BRE 4,879,398 4,224,616
Net debt to equity ratio B 7 i A L 3R 4.0% 10.4%
Pursuant to Chapter 41 of The Hong Kong Insurance Companies BEFBIRE AR E 4= - FAEERER
Ordinance, all authorised insurance companies are required to maintain S ANTIHERBEEEBLEBENEETNLNR
an excess of assets over liabilities of not less than a required solvency TEHEMNEES NEBE-_ZE——EK_-_FT—
margin. For the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010, the Group’s EE=-A=+—HIEE XEBEHEBHBA
relevant subsidiaries complied with the solvency margin requirements AIESTEBBARBAZMNENERESETE -
as set out by the relevant authorities in Hong Kong.
Fair value estimation 33 AREME

The Group uses the following fair value measurement hierarchies for
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability either directly (that is, as prices)

or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 BRRAREEEEZERER®
POLICIES (continued)
Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 ARMEME(E)
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are TRHBIR=_ZE——F=ZA=1+—HEAIAE
measured at fair value at 31 March 2011. AEZASEEEREE -
The Group The Company
A5E LN
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-H FZR =R aE E-£ E-R E=R am
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
BRI BETR AMTn BETr ENTr A%Tr ERTn AMTx
Assets -¥:3
Financial assets at fair value RERRRAAERE
through profit or loss LHBEE
— debt securities -BBES 58,785 70,156 - 128941 1208 23,700 - 24908
— equity securities —RAES 164,010 - - 164010 69,815 - - 69,815
— exchange-traded funds -R5MEERS 30,256 - - 30,256 4,629 - - 4,629
- mutual and hedge funds ~BEERHHAES - 10,351 - 10,351 - 1,533 - 1,533
~ other listed funds —Hft FES 12,927 - - 12,927 2,304 - - 2,304
— equity linked notes -REHBRE - 10,808 - 10,808 - 1,449 - 1,449
~ foreign exchange linked notes ~ —SNEREARE - 3,895 - 3,895 - 1,948 - 1,948
Derivatives financial instruments ~ $7£# B LE - 29,087 - 29,087 - 1,607 - 1,607
Available-for-sale financial assets 7 il & 2 BT A
— equity securities -RAESH - 1,728 - 1,728 - 1,728 - 1,728
— private funds -hEEe - - 136357 236,357 - - 230952 230,952
Total assets BEE 265,978 126,225 236,357 628,560 77,956 31,965 230,952 340,873
Liabilities af&
Derivatives financial investments ~ f7£8 & - (19472) - (19472) - (19.250) - (19.250)
Total liabilities BEE - (19472) - (19472) - (19250) - (19250)
The following table represents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are TEEHNE-—ZT—ZTEFE=A=+—HzZAH1E
measured at fair value at 31 March 2010. HEJAEESERARE -
The Group The Company
r5E NG
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—H FZH E=R Ek F— EF=R F=h &%
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BT A%Tr A%Tn A%Tr BT BBt B%Tr BBt
Assets -§:3
Financial assets at fair value RESREARERE
through profit or loss ZHBEE
~ debt securities -EBESF 72,971 69,337 - 142308 - B - B
— equity securities —BAES 127,297 - - 127,097 66,973 - - 66,973
~ exchange-traded funds -RGMEEESE 4,256 = = 4256 = = = =
~ hedge funds —HhEe = 1,679 = 1,679 = 1,350 - 1,350
— money market funds -EBmEEe - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Derivatives financial instruments ~ $T4£ 8175 T & - 1,827 = 1,827 = 1,806 = 1,806
Available-for-sale financial assets A& 2 M5 EE
— equity securities —BAES - 1,728 - 1,728 - 1,728 - 1,728
— private funds -hEEs - - 211099 211,99 - - 205894 205,894
Total assets HEE 204,524 74,671 211,299 490,494 66,973 28,058 205,894 300,925
Liabilities 8
Derivatives financial investments ~ $74 B R & = (40,570) = (40,570) = (40,454) = (40,454)
Total liabilities BaE - (40570) - (40570) - (40454) - (40454)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. A market
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market prices used for financial assets held by the Group is the closing
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable the instrument is included in
level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include:

*  Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

+  The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value
of the estimated future cash flows based on observable yield curves

+  The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined
using forward exchange rates at the end of the reporting period with
the resulting value discounted back to present value

. For unlisted securities or financial assets without an active market,
the Group establishs the fair value by using valuation techniques
including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to
other instruments that are substantially the same, reference to net
asset value of investee and discounted cash flow analysis, making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on
entity-specific inputs. If none of the valuation techniques results in
a reasonable estimate on the fair value, the investment is stated in
the statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses

. Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to
determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the
year ended 31 March 2011:

3

3.3

BHEMREEEERBE®
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A o

SRBHEABRMS FEE BT ASINMT
ETR)ZDAERAGERMEE - %5
ERMEERATRABE(MAEE])  WHF
PEBEXFEML - HAELAQIAEMS
ZEZHEARE  MZTAFAE K-

fid — IR 3 2 IR B A BRI IR 2K B Al AR i 35 2K
B AZTASASE =R

RAETH BT AGEZFEMERMNEE

- MHBUTIAZHSREXIFIEHRE

© R HA QA ERE AR E U #h 4R
AT ARRR e RENREFTE

- EHYMNEAMM AR ENAREREBRM
EHEXREE  YREREFNRERE

. RWEERMBHIFLMEFAMBEE
M AIAEERAHERDREEQA
B BPEENAOHNATRS 21
Hi ABMMBERNTA  2RERERFZ
BEEFEFBRARSRENN  THHA
MiGE S MEER BN EE B MK
fE o fw D EERTIORESBEERA
B AIARBREURAREREBEZS
R ER

- EBRMBITANDABESKEMEN - fl
WERRIR SR E DT HEE

TRIEVNE=BRIARBE_T——F=H
=Tt—RIEFEZEY:

The Group The Company

rE AAF]

Private funds Private funds

REES AEES

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BETT

At 1 April 2010 R-_ZE-FTFEMA—AR 211,299 205,894
Payments for capital contributions B TR 32,859 32,859
Receipts for capital returns U 6] & 2R (6,853) (6,853)

Fair value losses, net recognised REMPEBRERZ AR

in other comprehensive income B8 - F5 (948) (948)
At 31 March 2011 R-ZBE——F=H=+—H 236,357 230,952

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M HRE M

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 BREREEBEEREE @
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value estimation (continued) 33 ARBEME(E)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the TRENBGH =2 TEHE-_FT—FTF=A
year ended 31 March 2010: =T —HIEFEEZEE:
The Group The Company
r5E KRF
Equities  Private funds Total Equities  Private funds Total
gnE £ LEES ag gng §o REES ag
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT BETT BRI BRI BETT BETT
At 1 April 2009 RZZENENA—H 19,970 218,391 238,361 19,970 206,275 226,245
Payments for capital contributions HEMH - 13,965 13,965 - 13,965 13,965
Receipts for capital returns WEER - (5,702) (5,702) = (5,702) (5,702)
Proceeds from sales HEMSIA - (39,09) (39,09) - (33,932) (33,932)
Fair value gains, net REM2ERERER
recognised in other ZRAERE
comprehensive income A8 93,011 23,741 116,752 93,011 25,288 118,299
Eliminated upon derecognition BHRBAGHE (112,981) = (112,981) (112,981) = (112,981)
At31 March 2010 RZZ-FF=f=1-H - 211,299 211,299 - 205,894 205,894
Total loss for the year included REERFEREL
in income statement for assets BEd \m R
held at the end of the year, net BER 38 = (46,243) (46,243) - (30,977) (30,977)
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BAREEEETRAE
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on Mt RABREBEATLEBREAMEER 5P E
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future EREBEBATHEERAEREMERREHHTE
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. B - MR AERT A
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. RNEERARRIEL T REBR - G2 GaT{E
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal SAREBRVEREENERERER - BEBE
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a AERITFEEERBEZIRAER T —EF %
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts FENAEERFEZ A5t REERHINOT :
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:
Estimated impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets () BABHEREMEFLEERE
The Group tests annually whether goodwill and other intangible assets RIBGR A ISR R 5T 2(aa) Tl 2 € 5HEER -
have suffered any impairment in accordance with accounting policies RE FREELAMETEERD HRE
stated in note 2(aa) to the consolidated financial statements. The OREEITRR - BEEELEN 270 & 58
recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined based on value-in- DIREAFEEFEEZIENREEXN SN ZA
use calculations or its fair value less cost to sell, whichever is higher, and AEURSERE)ET  MEHALASEM
both bases require the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected SRR eEFEMCERARKRERE WA
to arise from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate HEMREAERE BEERRKRERED
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than RIEH - BRI EERBREEIE - F5F2H
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. Please refer to notes 18, MiaE18 ~ 19 K% 42 °
19 and 42 for details.
Estimated useful lives of other intangible assets b) EHEGEFEEZAERFH
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and RNEE 2 B E S H AR & E R E (5Pl
consequent related amortisation rate (if any) for its other intangible RERT R ETHBEER(NE) - ZEHh
assets. These estimates are based on the historical experience of the SR BHEATE I RHERELEECER
actual useful lives of comparable intangible assets in related industries. AERAERBELRMIED - BRLEFH
Actual economic life may vary from estimated useful life. Periodic Al RE RSt A (EAFHER - TR A (2 7]
review could result in a change in amortisable lives and consequently B 55 BRAS DASKEE - e B AN SR A AR SR HA T
increase or decrease in amortisation expenses in future periods. Please ZEBHER - FIBER2HMEL -

refer to note 19 for details.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
]UDGEMENTS (continued)

Income taxes

At 31 March 2011, a deferred tax asset of HK$24,391,000 (2010:
HK$36,357,000) in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The realisability of the deferred
tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future taxable profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases where
the actual taxable future profits generated are more or less than expected,
additional deferred tax assets or reversal of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in the consolidated income statement for the
period in which such an addition or a reversal takes place.

Also, the Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Construction contract revenue recognition

According to the accounting policies of construction contracts as stated
in note 2(n), the Group uses the percentage of completion method to
determine the appropriate revenue to be recognised in a given period.
The stage of completion is measured by total amount of work done
certified by customers over total estimated contract sum.

Upon applying the percentage of completion method, the Group needs
to estimate the gross profit margin of each construction contract, which
was determined based on the estimated total construction contract costs
and total construction contract sum, including variation orders and
claims. If the actual gross profit margin of construction contract differs
from the management’s estimates, the construction contract profit to be
recognised in the following years will need to be adjusted accordingly.

Determination of insurance liabilities

The Group’s insurance liabilities mainly comprise provision for
outstanding claims. The Group determines these estimates on the
basis of historical information, actuarial analysis, financing modeling
and other analytical techniques. The estimated insurance liabilities
are affected by assessed net loss ratio. Assessed net loss ratio for 2011
and 2010 was 79% and 62% respectively. Differences resulting from
reassessment of insurance liabilities are recognised in subsequent
consolidated financial statements. The Directors continually review the
estimates and make adjustments as necessary, but actual results could
differ from what is envisioned when these estimates are made.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties held directly by the Group is
made on the basis of the “Market Value” adopted by the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS”). It is performed in accordance with
the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties published by HKIS. The
valuation is reviewed annually by qualified valuers by considering
the information from a variety of sources including (i) current prices
in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or
location, adjusted to reflect those differences; (ii) recent prices of similar
properties in less active market, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred
at those parties; and (iii) rental income derived from existing tenancies
with due provision for reversionary income potential based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BARIIEETRAE @
]UDGEMENTS (continued)
Estimate of fair value of investment properties (continued) ) EFREVEZAAREBEE)
These methodologies are based upon estimates of future results and a ZEREERARREE G R — RIS A%
set of assumptions specific to each property to reflect its tenancy and W EBRRRBMAHAERREREAMN ° FIH
cashflow profile. The fair value of each investment property reflects, BREMENRDARABERE(EFRBE)RERAM
among other things, rental income from current leases and assumptions SENHEWARBREER M R(BIEARMS
about rental income from future leases in light of current market HE - BEMNEAMEEREFZKRAEN)HK
conditions including open market rents, appropriate capitalisation rates BARKREENHERANBRR - FTRBFSRE
and reversionary income potential. Discount rate in the range of 4% to AITERA N F4% 6% 2 A (ZF —FTF : 4%
6% (2010: 4% to 6%) were used in the discounted cash flow analysis. Bl6% 2 BB E - A A ERMBREET R
The fair value also reflects on a similar basis, any cash outflows that Mt E R TR EMRBRE SR o
could be expected in respect of the property.
At 31 March 2011, if the market value of investment properties had been RZE——F=fA=+—H EMHEMIE
10% (2010: 10%) higher/lower with all other variables held constant, the EZREBETENBRT @ WIREMENTER
carrying value of the Group’s investment properties would have been = PEIE10% (— T —FF  10%) © KNEBE K
HK$171,853,000 (2010: HK$150,989,000) higher/lower. B EMIREERIRE S, FFEE 171,853,000
T(ZE—ZF : B¥150,989,0007T) °

Impairment assessment for available-for-sale investments (g AMHEHEZREMNRMETM
The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when an RNE B IREEEH &t 2R 3958 F B T R A
equity available-for-sale financial asset is impaired. This determination R HEE MBS EERRREIES - Z
requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group EEFRIERERHE - FEEDHER  AfE
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which the G (HPEREZRE) —BEREARBER
fair value of an investment is less than its cost; and the financial health ERAEZHRREE  SREQRZH B
of and short-term business outlook for the investee and historical price ERNAREHERRE  URZEREZESE
volatility of these investments. BIEKEEM
If all of the declines in fair value of an equity available-for-sale financial A TEEERKAZBRAERATHEE Y
asset below cost are considered significant or prolonged, an additional MBEEAREARA/ERNIBRY - AIARE
loss of HK$7,710,000 (2010: HK$7,336,000) would be incurred in the BE_Z——S=-A=t+—-HUFEHKR
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011, REYEETINEEE7,710,000T (= —FF:
being the transfer of the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised 7 67,336,000 7T )+ BN BLA] it & 2 R B 0
in equity on the available-for-sale investments to the consolidated AANERZ R AAEABRERFEWRE -
income statement.
Fair value of available-for-sale investments and derivative financial (h) THEEZRERTEMEIAENQIAE
instruments
The fair value of available-for-sale investments and derivative financial BRBEEERMSEEMNIHEE 2 RERITE
instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by HBEITENARBENABERNEE - A&
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select a MAHERIRZE L WEZRBESREH
variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on REFHTRIIELBRRE -
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.
Estimated fair values of Sinochina and Metro Point at date of the (i) Sinochina } Metro Point A & 17 % #2 B Hi 2 {4 5
Share Exchange D RE
The determination of the fair values of Sinochina and Metro Point /& 7€ Sinochina [ Metro Point 73 i 17 33 % A HA /Y
at the date of the Share Exchange (note 50(b)(i)) requires estimates st A A E (M FEs0(b) (1)) Bl st Al b & A
in determining the market multiples of comparable companies at AIRNEE A TISEE -
valuation date.
Estimated fair value of put option (G) RLHEMETARE
The determination of the fair value of the put option (note 50(c)(i)) B E IR T Rm B A A A B (MY 5E 50(c) (1)) B
being granted requires estimates in determining the value of the equity EErRNEER 2 RERE  1TEE - SR
interest at the valuation date, exercise price, expected life of the option, B HR - FIEmER A R RIEHIRE - ™A
annual risk-free rate and expected volatility which was based on the RIE T ERAER AL =F A H LR A
statistical analysis of volatility of weekly share prices of comparable BB ARE R B BUR DT ©
companies over the last three years before the valuation date.
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Chevalier International Holdings Limited

LA M R WA
5 REVENUE 5
2011 2010
—E——F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Revenue represents amounts received RE B U & ER
and receivable from: ZUA
Construction and installation contracts BENTRTRE 1,694,292 1,770,245
Sale of information technology equipment, & B« 98
motor vehicles and others REMZHE 787,437 724,830
Food and beverages B8R 392,261 537,924
Warehouse and logistics operations BEE LR E 150,966 134,818
Insurance premium 1R & 131,758 81,189
Provision of maintenance and RERER
property management Y1 RS 113,173 509,641
Leasing of properties MEHRE 87,005 52,168
Sales of properties M HE 51,396 50,094
Hotel operations T E & 43,254 51,268
Dividend income from listed securities KB EMES ZBREBA 27,650 10,394
Interest income from investments KEKEZRBIA 10,872 9,417
Leasing of equipment RIERE 1,117 1,591
Total revenue (note 41) e A (Bt aE41) 3,491,181 3,933,579
OTHER INCOME, NET 6 HbA  Fi
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Gain/(loss) on investments at fair RIEBEIRZE AR BERE
value through profit or loss, net ZREME(ER)  FHE
— held-for-trading —FEEERZ 1,384 (33,910)
— designated upon initial recognition — RV TE R IE T 2,581 6,056
(Loss)/gain on derivative financial TEMBIAZ (BB,
instruments, net Wes  FEE (51,898) 22,778
Interest income from associates REHE QR ZFERA
(note 49) (Pt =E49) 5,341 2,598
Interest income from jointly ENEE ke M= P VPR ON
controlled entities (note 49) (7% 49) 8,194 11,782
Commission income e A 3,852 2,719
Management fee income from R B B N E) R 2k [ 2 A 2
associates and jointly ZEBEWA
controlled entities (note 49) (Fff 3£ 49) 37,369 5,330
Sales and marketing services RE— S QAR HE &
income from an associate (note 49) ™ 3% HEE RS A (B 3£ 49) 19,927 4,900
Others Hth 4,853 4,487
31,603 26,740
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OTHER GAINS, NET 7 Hftilhs o B
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Gain on disposal of HE AT &E e
— 80% interest in Pacific — Pacific Coffee &5 &
Coffee Group (note 50(c)(i)) 2 80% 42 2 (P 5% 50(c)(3)) 217,361 =
— 2% interest in CHK Group —HE+BBEEZ 2% ER
(note 50(c)(ii)) (MT?SO(C)(H)) - 25,482
— other subsidiaries (note 50(c)(iii)) — E b BB A7) (M 5E 50(c) i) ) - 6,765
Increase in fair value of investment REWMEZ AR fﬁi' an
properties (note 15) (Mi&E15) 163,174 179,781
Gain on disposal of investment properties &% & ¥ 7 W 799 =
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEMZE  BE REHKE
equipment and prepaid lease 18 ﬁ izl fél'?f RIEZ
payments, net e - JFEE 247 7,028
Impairment loss on property, plant M - BB L& B2 RERBE  FHR
and equipment, net (note 16) (FfizE16) (9,198) (5,140)
Impairment loss on prepaid lease TR EFRIE 2 R EEE
payments (note 17) (FF7E17) (5,029) -
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 18) P8 R EEE (T 18) (36,507) (29,174)
Impairment loss on other Hith | & 2 2 R E &R
intangible assets (note 19) (FF7E19) - (12,200)
Gain on discount from step-up acquisition 8 % — & B %‘f DAl
of interest in an associate (note 50(e)) Z MW s (P 5 50(e)) - 3,269
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale H & AT & 2 IR E B s
investments (note 39) (Bt 5% 39) - 94,533
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEE 2 RENRERERE
investments (note 39) (FF7E39) - (46,243)
Bad debts recovered & U B 22 ik 1,628 6,164
Fair value gain on derivative component ARREFITET A D 2 A n ERE
of convertible bonds (note 37) (fF7E37) - 30,488
Loss on redemption of convertible fE Bl AT R AR (B 5 2 B 18
bonds (note 37) (Bf EJI_37) - (31,101)
Exchange gain, net JE N W FEE 5,414 14,158
Government grant BT B & - 1,604
337,889 245,414
GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND THEIR 8 WEMBARRAMEEZAFZHE
RELATED JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES E LS
2011 2010
=E2——F —T-FF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B BT T BT T
Gain on disposal of & DA & 18 2 e
— Citiway Group -HES 8(a) 169,431 =
— Smartco Group — Smartco 5 8(b) 208,270 =
377,701 -
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GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND THEIR 8 WEMBLAREMEZARES®
RELATED JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued) g9 W am ()
Disposal of the Group’s entire interest in the Citiway Group (a) HEXAEERBEEE 2 HERE
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 22 March 2010, RE-_FT-—ZFF=A_FT_HZEEH n%a ;
the Group disposed of the entire issued share capital of Citiway rEHE J//( A & % 160,100,000 7T (18 5 1 7% ”%Z
Engineering Limited and its jointly controlled entity engaged in a 182,422,000 7T ) 2 KB HEHIELIZGR A A
property development project in Shenzhen, Mainland China (the ZEMEBTRARENF BRI THRE—
“Citiway Group”) for a consideration of RMB160,100,000 (equivalent WEEREER 2 XRZEHCE(HESE]) -
to HK$182,422,000) and the purchaser agreed to take up the repayment EAWREAEAAEEETHESEARE
obligation of the loans from the Group to the Citiway Group of 102,900,000 7T (#8155 72 75 ¥ 117,398,000 7T) 2 &
RMB102,900,000 (equivalent to HK$117,398,000). HHEEREME-
The completion took place on 9 April 2010, upon which assets and HEFER_Z-—ZFWHANBTK  BEH
liabilities in relation to the Citiway Group were derecognised. Gain BEEEE &Q BERBLZAEAR - HEHE
on disposal of the Citiway Group amounted to HK$169,431,000 was B 2 e 27 K 169,431,000 T ° ZIIEA%M: —
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year ended T ——F=A=t—HILEFEZHERERA
31 March 2011. As at 31 March 2010, deposit of HK$29,982,000 was BRAKR R-ZT—TF=A=+—H K&
received by the Group (note 34). E B U EUIE € 75 ¥ 29,982,000 7T (FJ5E 34) ©
Disposal of the Group’s entire interest in the Smartco Group (b) HEEREEMN Smartco EE 2 = PR
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 3 April 2010, the BE_Z-—TFNA=HZzE&EH=Z &
Group disposed of the entire issued share capital of Smartco Holdings & A "95246,000,000 7T Z X B i & Smartco
Limited, its subsidiary and jointly controlled entity engaged in a Holdings Limited 2 2 & B ZITARA - /HQM‘JI%@\
property development project in Hefei, Mainland China (the “Smartco AR EEETRE-—MEERRIAR 2 HA
Group”) for a consideration of HK$246,000,000 and the purchaser 25 2 ([Smartco &£ &) - B 75 I R B A& HE
agreed to take up the repayment obligation of the loans from the Group 1 7N £2 [ f5 T Smartco 5 [ #5 286,052,000 7T
to the Smartco Group of HK$286,052,000 and accrued interest thereon. ZERNRBBAEAFENEREE-
The completion took place on 10 July 2010, upon which assets and HEEFIER —ZEFtA+tHENX 5@
liabilities in relation to the Smartco Group were derecognised. Gain Smartco & . Z ﬁ 23 )SZ BETHEE AR B
on disposal of the Smartco Group amounted to HK$208,270,000 was %5 Smartco 5 B #) 2 55 4 78 %5 208,270,000 7T I
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year ended E’\%Z;&: —E-—F=RA=t+—HILFEZEE
31 March 2011. The consideration receivable and loan receivable WERANERAR R_E——F=fA=+—
amounted to HK$36,900,000 and HK$22,644,000 respectively as at 31 =] THQ1JQF % e U E R 7 Bl A7 B 36,900,000
March 2011 and have been fully received subsequent to the reporting 7T} 78 5 22,644,000 7T} B 7 #k 5 B 182 & #f K
period (note 29). = (fFaE29) °
FINANCE (INCOME)/COSTS, NET 9 BN BER  FHE
2011 2010
=E——F —EF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BET T
Interest expenses on bank overdrafts MRAF A ZEE 1%? &2
and borrowings wholly repayable fE TEXZRER
within five years B B 22,127 27,961
Interest expenses on convertible bonds BARAFEAEHEREZ
wholly repayable within five years AT # AR & 25 1 A1 B2 - 14,777
Less: Amounts capitalised to properties B BIERRPME 2SR
under development (note) (Fr&E) (8,435) (5,847)
13,692 36,891
Less: Interest income from bank deposits B RITZFEHRFEWA (14,225) (4,624)
(533) 32,267
Note: X
The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed and used for the development of properties HieE : .
was between 5.4% and 7.7% (2010: 4.4% and 7.6%) per annum during the year. EA;":?T%F gilﬁgﬁ?’*?ﬁg%ZﬁﬁﬁgﬂgJ/I\EFSA%
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10 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

&5 B W B ok I G

10 BREE AR F)

Restated
LET
2011 2010
—e——5% -—T-%%F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BT T
Profit before taxation has been arrived B B A A B kR
at after charging the following: T5EE :
Depreciation of property, plant M - W= KR
and equipment (note 16) 2T E (Mizk16) 55,955 70,384
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work  J& : BEA N TR 2 £ 58 (1,789) (1,815)
54,166 68,569
Staff costs (note a) 8 TR (MizEa) 551,451 732,243
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work &l : BIEE N TE 2 &5 (89,993) (94,073)
461,458 638,170
Operating lease payments HENATIERZEE
in respect of leasing of HEER
— premises (note b) —1&F (M &EDb) 91,412 139,407
— equipment — R 1,136 776
92,548 140,183
Auditors’ remuneration Z 26D B 8,494 7,044
Amortisation of prepaid 815 78 B SR IA 85
lease payments (note 17) (FFaE17) 390 662
Amortisation of other H A
intangible assets (note 19) (FF7E19) 5,037 9,212
Write down of inventories to Wom T EZ ] #IR
net realisable value, net FE FE 5,917 15,336
Share options granted by a listed — M Em bR A R R T R AR —
subsidiary — consultancy services received & % BV 34 5 AR 7% 6,420 862
and crediting the following: WEt ATHIIER :
Gross rental income of HK$62,551,000 4a ) £ 7 & WA B 62,551,000 TT
(2010: HK$52,010,000) from properties (ZZ2—Z4F : % 52,010,000 JT)
less direct operating expenses (note c) BE LS T (MisEc) 45,089 37,793
Write back of properties for sale EREGFEMESR
to net realisable value A] &35 H{E 8,348 11,878
Notes: B & -
(a) Details of Directors’ emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed in note 43. (a) EEMCCBEEETHIAN  HEREWT4 PHE -
Included in staff costs is an amount of HK$316,000 (2010: HK$520,000) in respect BT BEHME TUWA R % 3160007 (=
of redundancy income and payment made to staff respectively and an amount T —TF : B ¥520,0007T) & B MBROR KR R E
of HK$22,660,000 (2010: HK$34,652,000) in respect of contributions to defined R R 5T B 3R %5 22,660,000 (=T — T F : BHE
contribution retirement benefit schemes, net of forfeited contributions. 34,652,000 JT) °
(b) Included in operating lease payments in respect of leasing of premises are contingent (b) HERBFEEHEERAD ALARIESHE 4,382,000
rentals of HK$4,382,000 (2010: HK$9,437,000). TL(ZZ— T4 : #% 9,437,000 7T) ©
(c) Included in rental income is an amount of HK$1,095,000 (2010: HK$1,710,000) less (c) MESWABENILRZESGIEEREZ S % 1,095,000
outgoings of HK$1,091,000 (2010: HK$1,492,000) from jointly controlled assets. T (ZF—24F : A% 1,710,000 o) % 32 H 7 1,091,000
T(ZT—ZF : % 1,492,000 7T) ©
Included in rental income is a gross amount of HK$54,195,000 (2010: HK$45,692,000) e WABREREZEYE 2 A S B5 S 54,195,000
derived from investment properties. T(ZF—ZF : %% 45,692,00070) °
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES

&5 B W B ok I G

11 i8R H

Restated
K &5
2011 2010
—g——% —T-=Tf
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Current tax REZHIA
Hong Kong BB 25,995 44,864
Overseas REE]N 9,267 10,589
Over-provision in prior years BEFERERE (406) (2,281)
34,856 53,172
Deferred tax IR IEFIE
Origination and reversal of temporary BRIt ER 2 BE A KB
differences (note 40) (P 3% 40) 23,436 4,264
58,292 57,436

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profit. Taxation on overseas profit has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of

taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. EEHH o

Details of deferred taxation are disclosed in note 40.

BERLETRIAZ FHBEC RM L 40 B EE -

FRNEHR LA ERBEFIZH X 16.5%(=
T—TF 1 165%) 5 E o BINRBR TR FE ARG
AHERBUEN KA EEREEEBER Z2RTH

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the profit REFEPAEHRXHAIRBERS KmR AR
before taxation per consolidated income statement as follows: Al g A IR 20T -
Restated
wE5|
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Profit before taxation B 15t A A 943,997 552,548
Adjusted for: THE
Share of results of associates Pl NI (106,027) (58,029)
Share of results of jointly Fir fil $k [R1 22 i) 1 25
controlled entities E 13,264 (23,002)
851,234 471,517
Tax at the domestic income tax R A0 PAS B A K 16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) (ZZE—F4F : 165%):tE 2B 140,454 77,800
Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries fEHEREEEREE ZHIBA A
operating in other jurisdictions FRTRMEN T E 4,005 5,808
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT 2 B E 19,407 30,306
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARHKRAZREZE (128,407) (52,982)
Tax effect of current year’s tax losses RTHRBZ AFEERBEED
not recognised Mg & 28,411 40,967
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FRABTERTHERZBBEER
and other deductible temporary HAth AT IR 2 B 1 = 2 A
difference not previously recognised B E (17,982) (29,520)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBEREG (406) (2,281)
Others H 12,810 (12,662)
Income tax expenses for the year REFPTER X H 58,292 57,436
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&6 BB R M AR
12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 FRAEF
(a) Basic (a) BEZX
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable RERBATIRBEAR R A RIERE ARG SR
to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of MBRARFEEEETEBRZ MEFHEEEHE -
ordinary shares in issue during the year.
Restated
FEE=l
2011 2010
=2 —T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BETT
Profit attributable to equity A RIIERFE A
holders of the Company JE 15 4 A 797,972 417,359
Number of Number of
Shares Shares
gk 4= Mz fn 25 B
’000 ’000
FB B
Weighted average number of EEIT TR Nt
ordinary shares in issue T8 277,564 277,564
Basic earnings per share (HK$) BIRERARN (BE) 2.87 1.50
(b) Diluted (b) #3F
For the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010, as the adjusted exercise BE_T - FR—_F-—FF=F=+—HIt
price of the share options granted by Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited FE - BARADARZMEBLARIE L2 BEERE
(“CPHL”), a subsidiary of the Company, was higher than the relevant R E (Mg i 2T )R B AR %?&7 RBATE
average market price of CPHL’s shares, thus the outstanding share BERALZ 2R 2 AEEFGMSER - &
options granted had no dilutive effect on earnings per share. gﬁ B i AR AT 160 2 B AR A S AR B ) A
SRR o
For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Convertible Bonds (note 37) Eﬁgig_?iz R=+—RIEFE  WRfT
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share i e WA (Nt 37) HERERBTAF KX
and the diluted earnings per share was equal to the basic earnings per BEPE NSRBEERNESNERERR
share. As at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010, the Company did not MeR—_FE——F=H ?‘f’_ AR-T—TF
have any dilutive equity instruments. —A=+—H ARRAEEAEEIZE L

RATH -
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G0 W AR I A
13 DIVIDENDS 13 RS

2011 2010
—E——fF —Z T
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T ST

Interim dividend of HK$0.20 2K AR S F R B’ 0.20 7T
(2010: HK$0.15) per share paid (ZE—ZF : B*¥0.157T) 55,513 41,635

Special dividend of HK$0.40 BREF AR B &R 15 0.40 7T
(2010: nil) per share paid (Z2—ZF : ) 111,025 -

Final dividend of HK$0.55 R R BRI B BB 5 0.55 7T
(2010: HK$0.55) per share proposed (Z=—ZF : B%0.557T) 152,660 152,660
319,198 194,295

A final dividend of HK$0.55 per share, totaling HK$152,660,000,
has been proposed by the Directors of the Company and is subject
to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The amount will be reflected as an appropriation of retained
profits for the year ending 31 March 2012.

14 LOSS/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY
Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company is HK$35,336,000 (2010: profit of
HK$99,958,000).

ARREZSEZRRERPREFRBEE 055
TC A B 152,660,000 JT 0 B8 B B 2 A%
HEFARE FEREIE ZEREENEE
—E-——FZA=t+—HUIFEARMARE
i M Z D ©

14 ROBRESEARBLER TEF
AR RIRRHERE A A (L B 1875 135,336,000 70( =

T — T FE B 99,958,000 7T) B 5F AR R
RIS HRETF -

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 REWE
The Group RE
2011 2010
=2 —T T4
HK$’000 HKS$’000
BET T BT
At 1 April REHA—H 1,509,885 1,004,810
Exchange realignment E B 51,698 17,315
Transfer from property, plant and HEEWE  BER
equipment and prepaid lease B SEENE - Or
payments (note d) (PM¥sEd) - 307,979
Disposal & (6,227) -
Increase in fair value (note 7) ~aEEm(HEE7) 163,174 179,781
At 31 March R=A=+—8H 1,718,530 1,509,885

Chevalier International Holdings Limited

90 H+EKEEERAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&5 B W B ok I G

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15 REWYE %)

AEEZREDERGRIRABEZOMAOT

The Group’s investment properties at their carrying values are analysed

as follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T ST
In Hong Kong BB
On long-term leases (over 50 years) EHAA(E+FA L) 19,990 15,750
On medium-term leases FEIFR A
(10 to 50 years) (+tE2H+5) 776,335 659,375
Outside Hong Kong HEHS
Leases between 10 to 50 years TERTENELD 631,920 595,706
Freehold KA FERE 290,285 239,054
1,718,530 1,509,885

Notes:

(a)

B aE

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and overseas as at 31 March 2011 have been arrived at on the basis of valuation
carried out on that date by Knight Frank Petty Limited or DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited, which are independent qualified professional valuers and have appropriate
qualifications and experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations.
The valuation, which conforms to the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties
published by HKIS, was arrived at with reference to market evidence of transaction
prices of similar properties or calculated on the net income allowing for reversionary
potential.

Investment properties in Hong Kong with a total carrying value of HK$24,000,000
(2010: HK$21,333,000) represent the Group’s share of interests in jointly controlled
assets.

Charges were created on the investment properties with a total carrying value of
HK$742,068,000 (2010: HK$626,347,000) for the purpose of securing banking
facilities granted to the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2010, following the disposal of 2% interest in the CHK
Group as detailed in note 50(¢)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements, the CHK
Group is accounted for as an associate of the Group, properties leased to the CHK
Group is reclassified as investment properties at the date of disposal.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

——FFIK

AEBUREE FEAMLREIZRENER-F
—— =A==t BZAREDNNFRBELAERE
ARG AT AR AR KBERITAERAA
REBETZHEERAEE ZZHXTEMESAE
A% WEENBRBEETYRGEENLR - ZEE
TEFTEENEMBEMBEMNETEASMBGYE
HEEAFEL2RTS EHANENRSZE  HER
TEAE 2 W H R B A T A

UREBZRENECEASEMEXREFNEEZ
ez HOIREAE BB 24,000,000 T(ZF—ZTF : B
21,333,000 7T.) °
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 W% BER&E

Chevalier International Holdings Limited

92 H+EKREEERAR

The Group rE
Furniture,
fixtures,
leasehold
improvements,
office
Plant,  equipment,
Cold Other ~ machinery motor
storage Hotel properties and vehicles
warehouse properties  forownuse  equipment and others Total
B £8
HENE
BE» %45
Hif BE BAZRE
REER BENE BRME k& REREM ag
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BETRL
Cost KA
At 1 April 2009, RZZETNEMA—A
as previously reported (SEA1311%R) 61,000 132,275 345,109 151,736 336,982 1,027,102
Adjustment for adoption ARMBEESERIE17 %
of amendment to HKAS 17 BRI EE 178,038 - 331,180 - - 509,218
At 1 April 2009, RZZZNEMA—H
as restated (1&351) 239,038 132,275 676,289 151,736 336,982 1,536,320
Exchange realignment ER AR = 24,115 23,626 2,503 5,967 56,211
Step-up acquisition of interest BE-RBERR R
in an associate (note 50(e)) (B &E50(e)) - - - 59 - 59
Additions AE - 8,09 3,087 10,740 32,846 54,769
Disposal HE - (12,486) - (48,919) (69,353) (130,758)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 50(c)(i)) {13 B B 20 ) (B 7 50c) i) ) - - - - (42) (42)
Transfer to investment properties HERENE = = (166,879) = = (166,879)
Reclassification BNHE = 4,454 = (378) (4,076) =
At31 March 2010, RZE-ZF=f=1—H
as restated (15 &31) 239,038 156,454 536,123 115,741 302,324 1,349,680
At 1 April 2010, RZZ-ZEMA—-H
as previously reported (% AI53R) 61,000 156,454 263,906 115,741 302,324 899,425
Adjustment for adoption of RERABR L ENE 175
amendment to HKAS 17 ZEAEH AR 178,038 - 272,217 - - 450,255
At 1 April 2010, RZZ-Z£MA-A
as restated (& B51) 239,038 156,454 536,123 115,741 302,324 1,349,680
Exchange realignment EH R - 7,186 6,000 1,163 4,207 18,556
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 50(b)(i))  YEEHIE 2 & (i &E50(b)(3)) - - - 7,024 43,778 50,802
Additions AE - 896 - 9,147 17,673 27,716
Disposal HE - - (2,859) (7,787) (16,767) (27,413)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 50(c)(i)) {1 B 8 2 ] (B 2 50(0) 1)) - - (6,700) (30,008) (72,427) (109,135)
At31 March 2011 R-E——F=Zf=+-H 239,038 164,536 532,564 95,280 278,788 1,310,206



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA BB AR I A

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

16 W% BERRE®

Annual Report 2011

The Group (continued) AEE @
Furniture,
fixtures,
leasehold
improvements,
office
Plant,  equipment,
Cold Other ~ machinery motor
storage Hotel properties and vehicles
warehouse properties  forownuse  equipment and others Total
G £8
HENE
BE B
Hit BeE BAERE
REER EENE EPELES k#E RERHEM ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BET T BETT BET T BET T
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 237 ERIEE
At 1 April 2009, RZZZNFEMA—H
as previously reported (% RI51%R) 15,802 43,991 89,140 83,115 236,673 468,721
Adjustment for adoption SARMER G EAE 1%
of amendment to HKAS 17 BT AR 28,094 - 69,709 - = 97,803
At 1 April 2009, RZZETNEMA-A
as restated (m=5) 43,896 43,991 158,849 83,115 236,673 566,524
Exchange realignment ER AR - 7,024 8,730 2,079 4416 22,49
Charged for the year (note 10) FEARE (o) 6,125 2,949 12,699 15,738 32,873 70,384
Impairment loss (note 7) RESE ) - - - 4,112 1,028 5,140
Disposal e = (12,486) = (39,636) (67,757) (119,879)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 50(c)(Gi)) (L EHT B 2 7 (I 3E 50(c) iid)) = = = = (31) (31)
Transfer to investment properties ERRENE - - (33,015) - - (33,015)
Redlassification BNA 8 - 2,138 - 253 (2,391) =
At 31 March 2010, RZZ-ZF=f=+-H
as restated (m=5) 50,021 43,616 147,63 65,661 204,811 511,372
At 1 April 2010, RZZ2-Z£MA-H
as previously reported (% RI51%R) 18,007 3,616 82,881 65,661 204,811 414,976
Adjustment for adoption of SERMER G EAE 1%
amendment to HKAS 17 BT AR 32,014 - 64,382 - - 96,396
At 1 April 2010, RZZ-ZFNMA—-H
as restated (E=5) 50,021 43,616 147,263 65,661 204,811 511,372
Exchange realignment ER AR - 2,425 2,518 939 3,384 9,266
Charged for the year (note 10) FERE(HEE0) 6,125 2,590 10,452 10,780 26,008 55,955
Impairment loss (note 7) RESE ) - 7,238 - - 1,960 9,198
Disposal e - - (113) (6,833) (14,395) (21,341)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 50(c)(i)) HE B A A (FE5000)(1) - - (219) (16,615) (51,625) (68,459)
At31 March 2011 R-E——%=ZA=1-H 56,146 55,869 159,901 53,932 170,143 495,991
Carrying value REE
At 31 March 2011 RZE-——%=f=1-H 182,892 108,667 372,663 41,348 108,645 814,215
At31 March 2010, RZE-F£=/=1+-H
as restated (m=5) 189,017 112,838 388,860 50,080 97,513 838,308
At 1 April 2009, RZZZNEMA—H
as restated (& =51) 195,142 88,284 517,440 68,621 100,309 969,796
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group (continued)

Notes:

(a)  The carrying values of properties comprises:

&5 B W B ok I G

REE m)
B & -

16 W% BEKR

&)

(@ PEZIREERSE:

Restated Restated
& KE|
As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
R-B——F RZZE—ZF RZZZENEF
=H=+-—H =A=+—8 mA—A
HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
BET T BT T BET T
Freehold land and buildings thereon AL RENE E2EF 73,279 71,264 71,264
Leasehold land and buildings thereon HETHRENRE F28F 590,943 619,450 729,602
664,222 690,714 800,866
(b)  Charges were created on certain properties, plant and equipment with a total carrying (b) IRERERBE 211,176,000 T (KL EH T —TF :
value of HK$211,176,000 (restated 2010: HK$218,347,000) for the purpose of securing #£218,347,00070) 2 & TW % - BB K& ﬁ B EE T@
banking facilities granted to the Group. ERBRTAKERITEEZER -
17 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17 ENEERIE
The Group &
Restated Restated
KE5| wE5|
As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
R=EZB——F RZZ2-—FF RIZETNEF
=B=+—-H ZA=+—H MmA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BETT BT T
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: MEBFEIIZEE LM
Leases over 50 years AEA EHEEL 358 366 13,888
Leases between 10 to 50 years +TERTFRNEL 3,206 8,719 9,866
Leases under 10 years TEATHEL - 17 28
3,564 9,102 23,782
The movements in the Group’s prepaid lease payments during the year AEEFABNEERBESH 2 MM T ¢
are analysed as follows:
2011 2010
—E——fF —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’O(EJ
BETRT BT T
At 1 April, as previously reported n @ H—H (5‘1': AI5I3R) 362,961 435,197
Adjustment for adoption of RN E B SRS 17 57
amendment to HKAS 17 ZAEET e #A % (353,859) (411,415)
At 1 April, as restated MR A—RB (&E5) 9,102 23,782
Exchange realignment E B (119) 1,125
Impairment loss (note 7) REEE (MEE7) (5,029) =
Amortisation (note 10) 55 ( MT 5+ 10) (390) (662)
Transfer to investment properties EEREYHE - (15,143)
At 31 March R=A=+—H-H 3,564 9,102

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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LA M RER M
GOODWILL 18 BE
The Group INEE
2011 2010
-2 =
HKS$’000 'HK$'000
BET T BT T
At 1 April MREA—H 177,873 202,591
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B B 8 A )
(note 50(b)(i),(ii)) (B 5E50(b)(i) * (i) 19,888 5,117
Adjustment arising from finalisation BRERE-RBE
of purchase consideration for step-up INCIPR- X {E WHE
acquisition of interest in an associate FrEE £ B B - (661)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 50(c)(i)) |6 P8 A &) (F3E50(c) (1)) (34,260) =
Impairment loss (note 7) EEE (FaE7) (36,507) (29,174)
At 31 March R=A=+—8H 126,994 177,873
Details of the impairment assessment of goodwill are disclosed in note 42. 78 2 R B RT (B A B BB R 42 o
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 Hit R &5
The Group A
Cold
Roads,  storageand  Trademarks
drainage public  ofbranded
and bonded  coffee shops,
waterworks warehouse  restaurants  Favourable
license licenses and bars leases Others Total
BY- RHEER mREMEE
EBRKE DARRHE BEREE
IRER R ZEE  HAEE Hit am
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETR BETT BETT BETR BRI
Cost B
At 1 April 2009 R-ETHEMA-A 26,534 3,000 118,337 - 10,002 157,873
Exchange realignment EH B - - - - 463 463
Disposal e - - - - (1,460) (1,460)
At 31 March 2010 AZE-ZF=A=1-H 26,534 3,000 118,337 - 9,005 156,876
Exchange realignment ER AR - - - - 357 357
Addition NE - - - - 584 584
Disposal & - - - - %9) (99)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 50(c)(i)) HERTB A A (FE50(0)(1) - - (108,000) - - (108,000)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 50(b)(i)  YUEEHIB 2 &l (M 50(b)(i) - - 13,639 11,855 - 25,494
A1 Mach 201 ROE--ESASEA M M0 nws s 9 s
Accumulated amortisation and impairment & ‘f ?ﬁ' E )4 A
At 1 April 2009 R-EENENA-A 2,157 2,137 - - 1,900 6,194
Exchange realignment B AR - - = = (55) (55)
Charged for the year (note 10) FEHH(ME10) - 300 7,889 - 1,023 9,212
Impairment loss (note 7) HEEEKE?) 12,200 - - - - 12,200
At 31 March 2010 “Z-FF=f=+-H 14,357 2,437 7,889 - 2,868 27,551
Exchange realignment EH % - - - - 118 118
Charged for the year (note 10) EE&H (KL 10) - 300 3,007 741 989 5,037
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 50(c)(i)) HE B AR (I E50(0)(0) - - (9,000) - - (9,000)
A1 Mach 201 RoE--ESASEA W yw W6 M g5 e
Carrying value REE
As at 31 March 2011 RZE——%=ZfA=+-H 12,177 263 22,080 11,114 5,872 51,506
As at 31 March 2010 W-E-FF=fA=1-H 12,177 563 110,448 - 6,137 129,325
Annual Report 2011 95 —Z——FFH
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&5 B W B ok I G

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 19 HthBLEE (#)
Other intangible assets (other than roads, drainage and waterworks Hin B\ EE(RBE  RE IR IZER
license (“License”)) are amortised on a straight-line basis over the (THEBR 1) 4N) T LA B 4855 4% N 5l {51 Al 4 F 45
shorter of following estimated useful lives or license period: HASY R AR B PR & P 2 S E AT
Cold storage and public bonded warehouse licenses 10 years RERBERARRIE R 4
Trademarks of branded coffee shops, restaurants and bars 15 years RN L B MEE 2 miE THE
Favourable leases 4 years BAEE usfeS
The License was purchased as part of business combinations in prior ER - R RKEIREBRANTFEREES
years. The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that the upkeep SfMEA - RRRIEERR - EEUERMA
of this License is at minimal cost and the Group would renew this BEHR MASE NG EBTEERN K
License continuously. Various studies have been performed by the ESEEREDETZEMRE SR FI
management of the Group, which support that there is no foreseeable BREAEEEESFRS MR WEATE
limit to the period over which the License are expected to generate net 2 BRI o
cash inflows for the Group.
This License is considered by the management of the Group as having AEEETEERRULERAFERAIFERAER -
an indefinite usefull life and will not be amortised until its useful life is Bt TSRS B EEEERENFERS
determined to be finite upon reassessment of its useful life annually by HizEEHT e BEEACAFHERE
the management. Instead, it will be tested for impairment annually and I BiSwEFERELR AR ERREET
whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired. Particulars of RERIS o BUERIR 2 BRI 42 3 -
the impairment testing are set out in note 42.
The trademarks and favourable leases of restaurants and bars were BERBENEMERENEE DR AFEER
purchased as part of business combinations in current year. The ENeHz —HMomBEA - AEEERERS
trademarks and favourable leases are considered by the management FEREMNEENERAERAERAS R TR
of the Group of having finite lives of 15 years and 4 years respectively. FRUE - FEFHIRAIRERELREE - 25 =
These intangible assets will be tested for impairment whenever there is BESSETRENR - BABENHANES
an indication that they may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment T EE42 o
testings are set out in note 42.
The trademark of branded coffee shops business is considered by the RNEEBERERA - MEMPEE X2 @R
management of the Group as having a finite life of 15 years. BRAIERFHRTHF -
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 FRASHIES A Az R
The Company AN
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Non-current: FERD
Cost less impairment BN HIBR R (E
Share listed in Hong Kong B Em 2 RH 268,154 268,154
Unlisted shares LT 2B 709,231 709,231
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE W B 128 2 R R 3K 1,382,894 1,217,237
2,360,279 2,194,622
Market value of shares listed in Hong Kong &% _ £ 2 B M mE 347,174 758,639
Current: mE
Amounts due from subsidiaries AL IV NGILE S 1,113,709 1,386,246
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN EENGILSE 1,777,390 1,392,227

Chevalier International Holdings Limited 96
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20 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20 FTLEEB A B 2 fE ()

Amounts due from subsidiaries classified as non-current assets are
unsecured, interest free and considered equity in nature.

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2011 are
set out in note 52.

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries under current assets and current
liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand except
for a sum of amounts due from subsidiaries totalling HK$225,749,000
(2010: HK$206,922,000) which is interest bearing at Prime Rate of The
Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited plus 3% (2010:
Prime Rate of The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited plus 3%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s amounts due from subsidiaries
are denominated in the following currencies:

DERIERDEENEWMBRARRSEL
e 2EAWRBBERMED

RE-B——F=A=+—HZETEWNBERAN
R B ES2 o

RRBEERTHEBERAZRE FHBA
AR EEFT R EREEREE  HEREK
B R Bl IR A B #5 225,749,000 T ( —F—
T4 B 1206,922,00070) A E S LBEZ
RITERRARIZREERENEMFE R33N (ZF
—ZTF BB LSELETERARZRER
FRANE B E3%) T8 °

RN R R B A RR R REETIA TS
BEREM:

2011 2010
—E2——F —E-FF

HKS$°000 HK$’000

BET T BT

Canadian dollar mEXT 217,625 206,409
Hong Kong dollar ok 2,080,599 2,390,960
Renminbi AR 196,795 =
Others HA 1,584 6,114

The carrying amounts of the Company’s amounts due to subsidiaries are
denominated in the following currencies:

AR A EMNHBARRRZIREETIATIIE
W REM

2011 2010

—E——fF —E—T4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Euro B 7 299 43
Hong Kong dollar & 1,547,651 1,138,438
Macau Pataca SR P 229,440 253,746
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44 M B ok KT
21 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21 FHibBE R A 2 s
The Group The Company
A5E NG
Restated Restated
g&35| g&35
Asat Asat Asat Asat Asat
31 March 31 March 1 April 31 March 31 March
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010
R=B——F NZZT-TF RZTINF RZB-—-F NZT-T%
ZAZ+-B =A=+-H mA-H ZA=t+-B =A=+-A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BRI BETT
Non-current; EEIK
Interests in associates, including goodwill FBE N R BR  BEHE 502,162 377,307 191,805 89,594 89,594
Amounts due from associates (note b) FE B & A RIIR R (ME3ED) 121,840 - - 30,138 =
ﬂ 377,307 191,805 ﬂ 89,594
Current: e
Amounts due from associates (note b) AN (D) 137,836 156,474 101,582 10,815 20,962
Amounts due to associates (note b) FE B & A RIIR R (M7ED) 293 3,421 89 - =
The movements in the Group’s interests in associates during the year are REBEFAMLHEAR R EBN SN
analysed as follows: T
2011 2010
—B——fF —Z T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET R BEF
At 1 April, as previously reported R A—B (%kaislR) 369,469 187,482
Adjustment for adoption of HEEAT B 2ERNE 17 58
amendment to HKAS 17 ZIETE L 7,838 4,323
As 1 April, as restated AU A—H(&=5) 377,307 191,805
Share of results i 4R 106,027 58,029
Transfer from interests in HEETHBSEE
subsidiaries upon disposal 2 2% W PR 88 Q Fir it
of 2% interest in CHK Group NS NCIR - £ - 125,935
Fair value of 20% retained equity Ffr & Pacific Coffee &
interest in Pacific Coffee Group 2 20% IR BB AR HE &Y
(note 50(c)(i)) DA A (P EES50(0) (1)) 53,095 -
Acquisition of interests in associates BAMGEBE QR 2 - 30,472
Acquisition of an associate in AR 0 32 R HR Ui B — R
Share Exchange (note 50(b)(i)) 2~ A (M sk 50(b) (1)) 1,064 =
Transferred as part of 1k 753 R — E
step-up acquisition NElZ B R
of interest in an associate (note 50(e)) iiiﬁ% (B sE50(e)) - (1,479)
Dividends g (45,441) (31,495)
Exchange realignment E 5 10,110 4,040
At 31 March R=RA=+—8H 502,162 377,307
Chevalier International Holdings Limited 98 H+EIREBERAT
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21 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21 FRREEE N R 2 (®)
The summarised financial information of the Group’s associates is set AREFEBRERARZVEESBZSHM T ¢
out below:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Total assets WEE 4,677,828 3,616,116
Total liabilities REE (3,333,392) (2,559,220)
Non-controlling interests PR = (51,859) (46,990)
1,292,577 1,009,906
Revenue WA 6,059,917 5,141,791
Profit for the year F 2 i A 243,964 153,674
Notes: Bt E -
(a) Particulars regarding the principal associates at 31 March 2011 are set out in note 53. @ RZF-——F=A=T-HAEXEBPWERFAZER
B # M FE53
(b) Amounts due from/to associates are unsecured and interest-free except for the (b) MM ENEEE A RIRRYER R %S - ML &R

following balances: HEROM ¢

()  AEE R — RS A IR 05 10,376,000 (=
T—TF : H519,529,0007T) JHIEF B R6.2% (=
T—TF 1 62%)5H 8 °

(i)  Amount due from an associate of the Group of HK$10,376,000 (2010:
HK$9,529,000) which bears interest at a rate of 6.2% (2010: 6.2%) per annum.

(ii) Amount due from an associate of the Group of HK$145,098,000 as at 31 March
2011 (2010: HK$77,163,000) which bears interest at the prevailing market rates (ii)
quoted by The People’s Bank of China and the average effective interest rate was
4.86% (2010: 4.86%) per annum.

AEBMR T ——F=A=+—BREK—HEHE
A TR 57 145,098,000 5 (ZFE — T F : B
77,163,000 7T ) T3 & 1 B A FR R 17 BT ¥R 3R 17 1 35 A
KE B HTEHEBRFEANERR4.86%( =T —FF:
4.86%) ©

Amounts due from associates of the Group and the Company under non-current assets
are repayable in more than one year while amounts due from associates under current
assets are repayable on demand.

BIERBDEENASKE R AR R EUKE = R BIRKA
N —FREE  TEREEENRUKE S QR R
AIEERRIERE -

BREAER A EO K
EEERADAEEE -

R AR Z R E

The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to associates under current assets and
liabilities approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from associates are denominated in the JE B i A BIIR AR Z IR EE T A T O S R B
following currencies:
The Group The Company
AEE RAF
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——fF —T-TF =2——-F —T-ITF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Hong Kong dollar ot 19,843 27,449 40,953 20,962
Renminbi ARH 239,833 129,025 - -
The carrying amounts of amounts due to associates are denominated in the following JETHE 2 R BIIR R ZIREE A T A E B BB
currencies:
The Group The Company
AEHE RAF
2011 2010 2011 2010
—EB-——-F "—Z-ZF —B——-F "—Z-ZF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT BT T BT
Hong Kong dollar B 293 3,421 - -

Annual Report 2011
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&5 B W B ok I G

The movements in the Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities

22 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 22 FribHEEBIEEER
The Group A&
2011 2010
S e
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Non-current: FEME -
Interests in jointly controlled entities, Fid SE R 12 ) b 3 2 R 2 -
including goodwill BIERHE 389,564 560,308
Reclassified as held for sale ENNBEAGE - (173,157)
389,564 387,151
Amounts due from jointly JRE Wiz [ 2 o) b 2
controlled entities (note b) MR R (K 5ED) 117,593 -
507,157 387,151
Current: B
Amounts due from jointly JE ok [R] 428 o 1 25
controlled entities (note b) MR FR (K 5ED) 216,897 464,136
Reclassified as held for sale ENOEARTE - (225,494)
216,897 238,642

AEBFAMERAREGERE 2 EREHHD

during the year are analysed as follows: MITF :

2011 2010

—F——F —T—FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BET T

At 1 April REA—R 387,151 383,508

Share of results PIREE 30 (13,264) 23,002

Capital contribution BARLE - 157,541
Dividends i - (6,762)

Exchange realignment E 5 B 15,677 3,019
Reclassified as held for sale B0 BEREFE - (173,157)

At 31 March R=A=+—H 389,564 387,151

The summarised financial information of the jointly controlled entities
(including financial information of jointly controlled entities classified
as held for sale) related to the Group’s interest is set out below:

BB P R A B 2 FL R R (b X e 75
ER(BRIBEAGEZARENEENTE

BRDBMEIIEMT

2011 2010

—E——fF —E—T4F

HK$’000 'HK$°000

BET T BT T

Current assets MEEE 817,432 1,375,110

Non-current assets ERBEE 52,006 51,044
Current liabilities mE A& (510,932) (690,338)
Non-current liabilities EmEBEE - (207,136)

358,506 528,680

Revenue IL'ON 446,136 184,595
Expenses, including taxation S (EIERIE) (459,400) (160,290)

Chevalier International Holdings Limited 100
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&5 B W B ok I G

22 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(continued)
Notes:

(a)

(b)

Particulars regarding the principal jointly controlled entities at 31 March 2011 are set
out in note 54.

The amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand, except for balance of HK$129,600,000 as at 31 March 2010
which bear interest at rates ranging from 115% to 130% of prevailing market rates per
annum quoted by The People’s Bank of China and the average effective interest rate
was 6.89% per annum.

Amounts due from jointly controlled entities under non-current assets of
HK$73,934,000 are considered equity in nature and HK$43,659,000 are repayable in
more than one year while amounts due from jointly controlled entities under current
assets are repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from jointly controlled entities under current
assets approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from jointly controlled entities are
denominated in the following currencies:

22 FRihHEEFBE 2 ER

i -

(a)

(b)

R-ZE——F=A=+—HEXTBEAREHEEZER
B KIS

RZZF—FTF=A=+—0 BRERZEHLERRX
TyEEA RS RIRERKERE - EIIE R G 1 3R
KR RE S B 129,600,000 ST IR A B A RERITATRIRIT IS
FHEH115%ZE130%:T5 + HFHEEFHEH6.89% °

B 3F 7% B & EE TA A FE U £k R 12 ) 1D EE A R B S
73,934,000 7T 4 45 7 B 8 7 1% B [ 75 15 43,659,000 TC A —
FREE BT B)E E 8 K FE IR L R F 0 ¥ KR
FARER(EE -

B ENE A TR T A B U LR 12 1 £ 2R R K 2 IR T B B
HARERE °

FEN SRR B R R IR REETIA TS R

2011 2010
% —T-T%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong dollar bt 8 26,975
Renminbi ARKE 334,482 211,667
23 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23 AIMEHEZRE
The Group The Company
*EH AR
2011 2010 2011 2010
=B--Ff —ZT-ZF ZB--F —T-ITF
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT BETT T IT
Unlisted investments, at fair value: JFEEMEE  BRARE:
— equity securities —IRARFE 5 1,728 1,728 1,728 1,728
— private funds (note) —fFEES (M) 236,357 211,299 230,952 205,894
238,085 213,027 232,680 207,622
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23 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

24

Available-for-sale investments are denominated in the following

23 AIHEEZRE @

AHEEZRETIA TG BB

currencies:
The Group The Company
rEH KA

2011 2010 2011 2010
=B--Ff —ZT-ZF ZB--F —T-ITF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT BETT T IT
Euro R 78 27,208 32,349 27,208 32,349
Hong Kong dollar B 1,728 1,728 1,728 1,728
US dollar ETT 197,758 170,213 192,353 164,808
Others =i} 11,391 8,737 11,391 8,737
238,085 213,027 232,680 207,622

Note: B & -

The fair value of the private funds of the Group and the Company is determined based on
the quoted market prices of the underlying listed investments and fair value of the unlisted
investments, which is determined based on financial models (such as discounted cash flow

model) on the funds.

INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

OR LOSS

AEBRARRZIBESZ AR BENRAFAEZ LTHRE
TS HE RFLTRERESUBRA(WPERBSR

BRI)ETMNAREMRE °

24 RESREAAEREZRE

The Group The Company
r& AN
2011 2010 2011 2010

—E——-F —T-TF ZE-—-§ —T-TF

HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT  EETT B%Tn BRI
Listed investments: A
Held for trading HIEEEF%
— debt securities —fERES 58,785 72,971 1,208 -
— equity securities listed in Hong Kong — BB L2 R 116,367 79,717 61,798 60,612
— equity securities listed overseas —BHN ET 2 RN 47,643 47,580 8,017 6,361
— exchange-traded funds —RGMEEES 30,256 4,256 4,629 —
— other funds —HMES 12,927 - 2,304 -
(265978 N 7796
Unlisted investments: FEMIRE
Held for trading FFIEEE %
— equity linked notes — R A BN R IR 10,808 = 1,449 =
— foreign exchange linked notes —NEBRIE 3,895 - 1,948 -
— mutual and hedge funds —GER¥MES 10,551 1,679 1,533 1,350
— money market funds —BEEmEES - 100 - 100
Designated upon initial recognition RGBS 7 75T
— debt securities —fRRE? 70,156 69,337 23,700 23,074
95,410 71,116 28,630 24,524
361,388 275,640 106,586 91,497
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24 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

25

26

OR LOSS (continued)

The fair values of the listed investments are determined based on the
quoted market bid prices available on the relevant exchanges and the
unlisted investments are determined based on financial models or with
reference to quoted prices from relevant financial institutions.

The carrying amounts of investments at fair value through profit or loss
are denominated in the following currencies:

24 REZKRRAANBEEREZRE®)

EHREZRARENIRBEBISHHAASR T
LEANEMERE » MIFLMIREZ RAETR
fﬁiﬁ%&ﬂféﬁ CRBERBEBYBEEE 2R

RAR RS A R EREZ R AMERET AT
51 555 B B iy

The Group The Company
KE PN

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E—-—-fF —T-TF —T-—-F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
BT T BET T BT T BET T
Hong Kong dollar B 154,429 83,974 66,375 60,613
Japanese Yen =] 33,317 44,964 - 3,744
US dollar EPv 163,940 144,086 33,939 24,524
Others HAb 9,702 2,616 6,272 2,616
361,388 275,640 106,586 91,497

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 25 BEPYE

The Group PG

2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
At 1 April REA—H 358,303 236,424
Additions NE 332,575 121,879
At 31 March R=A=+—H 690,878 358,303

The balance is related to a property development project in Changchun,
Mainland China.

The borrowing costs capitalised to properties under development is
disclosed in note 9.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

ZEBEPERETA-—RYERRABEAH
BRANEENMCZBERARMEIRBE -

26 HtbIEREBEE

The Group The Company
M KA
2011 2010 2011 2010
—®-——% -—T-T& -g——§ -T-I4
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT  BETT  BEIRn EET
Deposits paid for a property EN—EYEHRERZ 37,804 153,033 - -
development project (note) e (M)
Deposit paid for acquisition of BT E B ARz
a subsidiary (note 51(a)) %2 (MizEs51(a)) 102,525 - - -
Others Hith 45,937 44,229 3,895 -
186,266 197,262 3,895 =
Note: Bt aE -

The balance represents deposits paid for a property development project in Changchun,
Mainland China.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SAMBHREME
INVENTORIES 27 B8

The Group A&
2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BET I
Raw materials R AR 12,884 14,698
Finished goods BURX an 157,646 159,531
Consumables AR 6,126 5,615
176,656 179,844

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost of
sales amounted to HK$715,298,000 (2010: HK$681,324,000).

Charges were created on the inventories with a total carrying value of
HK$25,424,000 (2010: HK$21,945,000) for the purpose of securing
banking facilities granted to the Group.

FERANEHER AT HILT AEERAN B
715,298,0007T ( —F—ZF : %5681,324,0007T ) ©

R T 48 (8 /&8 15 25,424,000 T (ZFE — T4 : /8
#521,945,00070) 2 F EEEERE  EARTA
SERITEEZER -

PROPERTIES FOR SALE 28 FEWE
The Group INE
2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Unamortised prepaid land leases RESHTEN T A E
— in Hong Kong —NEE 35,115 35,852
— outside Hong Kong —REBEBEING T 8,553 8,695
Development costs BB AR 89,014 127,728
132,682 172,275

Properties for sale include the Group’s share of interests in jointly
controlled assets with an aggregate book value of HK$18,130,000 (2010:
HK$18,376,000).

The cost of properties sold and included in cost of sales amounted to
HK$49,250,000 (2010: HK$36,487,000).

Charges were created on the properties for sale with a total carrying
value of HK$48,388,000 (2010: HK$83,546,000) for the purpose of
securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

FEYEBEAEB G LRI EEMNES -
H R T 488 A7 518,130,000 T ( — T — Z 4 ¢
5 1518,376,000 7T) ©

EETIHNABEERAIANMERK & B
49,250,000 7T ( =& — T4 ¥ 36,487,000 7T) °

R TE] 42 (B /% 75 1 48,388,000 T (— B — T4 : &
#5 83,546,000 70 ) Z T EME B EEK IR - ERE
FAREBRITEE 2ER -
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29 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 29 RWIRR - FHRE RN KIE
The Group The Company
rE ZNYNE]
2011 2010 2011 2010
=B —T-TH ZB--§ —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BET T BETT BET T
Trade debtors B 5 I WUk X 379,335 320,809 - =
Less: Provision for impairment B R E R (8,268) (12,465) - -
Trade debtors, net B S REWIR - F5 371,067 308,344 - =
Other debtors, deposits and Hih e IR K - FHHE S
prepayments R I8 FRIA 392,145 325,256 1,019 2,946
Retention receivables JE UL AR B IR 3K 207,454 206,704 - =
Receivables on disposal of tH & Smartco & B 2
Smartco Group (note 8(b)) JE W kT8 (MY 5E8(b))
— consideration —RE 36,900 = - =
—loan -8 22,644 - 22,644 -
1,030,210 840,304 23,663 2,946
The Group has established different credit policies for customers in each NEBHRBEBZ O EFREZPEREYTRZEER
of its core businesses. The average credit period granted to trade debtors BER % TESTFPZ2FHEEHBOX -
was 60 days.
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade debtors is as follows: AREB B FEWETHNIERDHTLOT :
2011 2010
—E2——fF —E T
HK$000 HK$000
BT T BT
0-60 days 0—60K 300,650 235,381
61-90 days 61 — 90K 27,285 12,858
Over 90 days 190 K 43,132 60,105
371,067 308,344
At 31 March 2011, gross trade debtors balances totalling HK$9,628,000 RZE——F=ZA=+—H RENBEE
(2010: HK$14,096,000) were individually determined to be impaired, BB 2 B IR KA &R A 575 19,628,000 T
which were related to customers that were in financial difficulties. The — T —ZF ¥ 14,096,00070) ¢ E BRI E
management assessed that only a portion of these balances is expected ERABTRE - RERRE 2T HEERE W
to be recovered. Consequently, specific provision for impairment of B & MR - Bt R=ZFE——F=A
HK$8,268,000 (2010: HK$12,465,000) was recognised as at 31 March =+ — BEH R B B 45 75 158,268,000 7T (=
2011. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The T —FF : B 12,465,0007T) © AN 5 B B
movement in the provision for impairment during the year is as follows: ZEEBTATAERD - TR BEKEZ
EFHMT
2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BT
At 1 April REA—H 12,465 23,937
Impairment loss recognised ERRRMEEE 1,437 2,728
Impairment loss written back SACIE S AI=YSE (3,065) (8,892)
Uncollectable amounts written off WAl Bl 2 & 58 (2,581) (3,600)
Exchange realignment E R TR 12 58
Disposal of subsidiaries HE KB AR - (1,766)
At 31 March R=A=+—8 8,268 12,465
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29 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are not considered to be
impaired is as follows:

29 BRI - FHIZEERFBMNRE @)

TRAEN T RE 2 B 5 UK K 2 iR #&e 54 1A
™~

2011 2010

—E——F —E—TF

HK$°000 HKS$'000

BT BT

Neither past due nor impaired W seE ] 196,142 182,390
Up to 60 days past due #HI60 R A 136,947 78,366
61-90 days past due 61 —90 K 12,251 7,358
Over 90 days past due A HR# 90 K 24,367 38,599
Amount past due but not impaired gafergE ] 173,565 124,323
Total ek 369,707 306,713

Trade debtors balances that are neither past due nor impaired mainly
relate to individuals or companies that have been the Group’s customers
for more than six months with no history of default in the past.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade debtors are denominated in
the following currencies:

EEaMSREcESRIEREHREIEREE
RAAEEBENEANTP REHERTE
ALHAF e

ﬁ{%E%E@H&E%ﬁi“ﬂ%@@ﬁ%?ﬂﬁﬁgﬁ
By

2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT T BT

Australian dollar B IT 1,654 124
Hong Kong dollar B 286,228 253,811
Macau Pataca SR P 37,294 12,621
Renminbi AR 4,106 3,218
US dollar ETT 21,861 19,067
Others HAb 19,924 19,503
371,067 308,344

The carrying amounts of other debtors, retention receivables and
receivables on disposal of the Smartco Group as at 31 March 2011 are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi.

The carrying amounts of debtors and receivables as at 31 March 2011
approximate their fair values.

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments is the Group’s share
of receivables of HK$66,000 (2010: HK$85,000) in relation to jointly
controlled assets.

R-ZB——F=A=+—0H HMERIKR®K
JE W2 AR BB iR 3R % HH € Smartco 5 M 2 F& R IE
ZIREEEIZNBERARKTIE -

RZBE——F=A=+—H BRIERREK
RZIREEREAAERE -

KR FHZE BN REABEAEE
L LRI H1 B B il 2 FE U K A 75 8 66,0007T (=
T — T4 B 85,0007T) °
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30 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR

31

30 Evté,.’J TREQZEFKRE XN

CONTRACT WORK g
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T ST
Contracts in progress at the end of R = HA f Z L
the reporting period: FEL
Contract costs incurred BELZAB KA 5,686,844 4,442,128
Recognised net losses B R FE 1B (287,378) (237,369)
5,399,466 4,204,759
Less: Progress billings ko EE KA (5,956,914) (4,694,908)
(557,448) (490,149)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HMERBINTA
Amounts due from customers for contract EBERREBEERNTAE LD
work included in current assets TRREREFWE 2 5KIE 56,055 56,040
Amounts due to customers for contract EBRERTBEEARED
work included in current liabilities TRERZFZff27E (613,503) (546,189)
(557,448) (490,149)
Advances received from customers for contract work amounted to AN T RIKEEF BN R AES K 68,842,000
HK$68,842,000 (2010: HK$99,095,000) were included in creditors. (= ZE—ZF : 3 1%99,095,0007T) W E £ &
RIERTIR KA
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31 fTEMB IR
The Group The Company
rE ZNYNE|
2011 2010 2011 2010
2§ -T2 ZB-—-§ "ZT-TF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BETT BT T BETT BT
Financial assets/(liabilities) in respect of TEMBIAZ
derivative financial instruments HsEE/(8F)
— interest rate swaps (note a) —F = H (BT ) (19,237) (38,651) (19,237) (38,651)
— foreign currency forward contracts —REINVES D
(note b) (P45ED) 672 (92) 617
— put option (note c) (note 50(c)(i)) — R A (BT e o) (P RE50(0) () 26,401 - - -
— others —HAth 1,779 = 977 =
9,615 (38,743) (17,643) (38,648)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RBERBRAINAE
Current assets B E E 29,087 1,827 1,607 1,806
Current liabilities mEAE (19,472) (40,570) (19,250) (40,454)
9,615 (38,743) (17,643) (38,648)
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(a) Interest rate swap contracts of the Group and the Company with a total notional
amount of HK$620,000,000 (2010: HK$950,000,000) were entered to swap floating
interest rate to fixed interest rate or to swap between different floating rates. These
contracts will mature within the period from 25 January 2013 to 15 July 2013 (2010:
period from 31 August 2010 to 14 July 2013).

(b) Foreign currency forward contracts of the Group and the Company with a total
notional amount up to HK$68,435,000 (2010: HK$15,240,000) were entered to swap
various foreign currencies to other cross currencies. These contracts will mature within
the period from 4 April 2011 to 4 May 2012 (2010: period from 7 April 2010 to 16 July
2010).

(c)  The fair value of the put option was assessed at HK$36,360,000 as at the date of grant
and HK$26,401,000 as at 31 March 2011 (the “Valuation Date”). This results in a fair
value loss of HK$9,959,000 included under other income, net of the consolidated
financial statements. The fair value was assessed by Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanns,
a firm of independent valuers, using the Binominal Option Pricing Model. The
significant inputs into the model included the value of the equity interest at the
Valuation Date, exercise price, expected life of the option, annual risk-free rate and
expected volatility which was based on the statistical analysis of volatility of weekly
share prices of comparable companies over the last three years before the Valuation

=

T

BT A

i -

(a)

(b)

()

ANEERAR R AEZEF K= B8 EEF XK TR
FERAERzEEMET 2AREHEH  HEess
& 58 278 ¥ 620,000,000 7T (ZF — T4 : B 950,000,000
) WEAHNBR=_FT—=F—A=+HBAE=FT
—ZH+tA+HAHER(CE—Z4F: R T4F
NA=+—RAE=_ZT—=F+A+MOBEHMEA)F/H -

AEERAQABRBTRING 18 B R E 22X X &% i
BRI ZRHBINER L - HBRE SR RB 68,435,000
T(ZF—FF : H%15,240,00070) - LEE R =
T——FMAMNAE_ZT——FRANBAHEARCCE
—ZF: ZT-ZFTFWNALAE=ZT-ZTFLtATRN
HEIR A B8 -

Rom B R R B B 2 A 5 B R A B 36,360,000
TERR-ZF——F=A=+—RA(HEBH)ASE
26,401,000 7T + #E i 5| BUA 7t B &5 18 7% 85 9,959,000 7T &t
MNREMBRREMA - FREETR - DA EBRB
B R AR EITEMARARERA B HEEE
RRXETTZ B2 BEHA BB ERENEE
HEAZ(BE 1768 BB RHFY SERARERNX
RIEHEBEE (DREAIHEERA RN EER BRI =
FRAGEAREBZKRBEEBESTEL)

Date.

The derivatives are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Their fair values are determined with reference to fair value
of comparable instruments in the market or quoted prices from
counterparties, except for the fair value of the put option as stated in
note ¢ above. The net carrying amounts of derivatives are denominated
in the following currencies:

ERifTAETEREHRERRZ RAAEE © |
E2RAAEDRBEAHEKTAZHBAAE
FE T MEMAE - BrIA LR aE R RHR
HHE R EZSN  PTAET B ZIREFE T A
THERREN :

The Group The Company
rE KA

2011 2010 2011 2010
2§ ~—T-TF ZB-—-§ "ZT-ITHF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BETT BT
Hong Kong dollar kS 8,944 (38,651) (18,259) (38,651)
US dollar e 81 9 - =
Others Hith 590 (101) 616 3
9,615 (38,743) (17,643) (38,648)

32 BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held, short-term bank deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less and cash placed with
financial institutions. The carrying amounts of these assets approximate
their fair values.

32 RITHEFERRAE
RITERERBEAEMFER S  RIGHARS
=18 A AR 2 58 IR 1T 1 50 R 7 A B B s
FRAZHRE WEEEZIREEEAERQAER
H o

The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash are denominated in the RITEF IR ZIREETA T EE BB

following currencies:

The Group The Company
RE RA T

2011 2010 2011 2010
=2-—-F _—T-ZF ZB--—-F _T-ITF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BT
Australian dollar BT 23,348 2,123 609 7
Canadian dollar mEeXT 37,147 31,823 10,479 9,913
Hong Kong dollar ot 993,494 302,291 674,159 102,730
Macau Pataca sk 9,799 2,021 - =
Renminbi AR 162,334 141,576 565 =
US dollar e 233,110 260,162 48,454 38,113
Others Hih 17,175 26,900 3,213 3,715
1,476,407 766,396 737,479 154,478

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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33

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44 M B ok KT
BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued) 32 RITAEREE @
As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s bank balance of HK$2,439,000 (2010: N-ZE——F=A=+—H AEEZRITLE
HK$4,953,000) were pledged to banks for the purpose of securing 17 575%2,439,00070 (= ZF —ZF 1 ##4,953,000
banking facilities granted to the Group. TIEERTFRT  ERETAKERITEE
ZHER -
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits of the Group and REERARA 2 EBRITFRBERFR X
the Company was 0.8% (2010: 0.5%) and 0.7% (2010: 0.2%) per annum DR AR08% (=ZF —FF 1 0.5%) 20.7% (==
respectively; and these deposits had an average maturity of 9 days (2010: —ZTF:02%) ZEFRZFHINEHBH A
23 days) and 4 days (2010: 18 days) respectively. = 93)% (ZE2—ZF :BR)RAR(ZZE—ZF:
18K) °

ASSETS OF DISPOSAL GROUPS CLASSIFIED ASHELD 33 9 EASECHLEEEWNESE
FOR SALE

The net assets of disposal groups comprise the following: HEREEEFEBE:
2010
—T-%F
Note HK$°000
B E BETT
Citiway Group HESE 33(a) 113,608
Smartco Group Smartco 5 33(b) 285,043
398,651
Disposal of the Group’s entire interest in Citiway Group (a) HEXEENRBEEE 2= RBER
Details of the disposal are disclosed in note 8(a). HEFBRHESG)HE -
Assets of the disposal group as at 31 March 2010: RZZE—ZF=A=+—H HEKEEE:
HK$’000
BET T
Interest in a jointly controlled entity FiAh — R 2k A il 1 2 2 i
(note 50 (d)(i)) (P E 50(d) (i) ) 23,206
Amount due from a jointly controlled JE Mo — ] 2 [0 42 il b ZE R K
entity (note 50 (d)(i)) (M 3E50(d) (1)) 90,402
113,608
Disposal of the Group’s entire interest in Smartco Group (b) HEXAEBEA Smartco EE 2 2 ER
Details of the disposal are disclosed in note 8(b). &SR M T 8(b) 4257 »
Assets of the disposal group as at 31 March 2010: RZT—ZTF=A=1+—H8 HESBZEE:
HK$°000
BET T
Interest in a jointly controlled entity BTl — I SE R 3 2
(note 50 (d)(ii)) (M 7E50(d) (i) ) 149,951
Amount due from a jointly controlled JE Mo — P 2 [0 2 il b ZE MR 5K
entity (note 50 (d)(ii)) (Fff 5 50(d) (i) ) 135,092
285,043
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34 CREDITORS, BILLS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS AND

ACCRUALS

34 BABRK -BARE - FARENRTE

’REH
The Group The Company
S 3 ERF
2011 2010 2011 2010

- —T-TF ZE——-F —T-ITF

HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$’000
BT  ABTRT B%¥Tr  EETT

BHRNIES R EN R R
BH KA TELR
EWEMIES  FARER

Trade creditors and bills payable
Accrued contract costs
Other creditors, deposits and

accruals aRRE A

Retention payables & 1<) 4R B R 5K

Deposit received for disposal of HEREREMERZES
Citiway Group (note 8(a)) (B 8(a))

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade creditors and bills payable is as
follows:

177,025 146,823 - =
198,204 206,031 - =
396,681 346,076 5,025 16,938
125,499 117,521 - -

- 29,982 - =
897,409 846,433 5,025 16,938

fﬁ%Z%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ&%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂWﬁ%’%ﬁﬁ
N

2011 2010
=E——F —T—-EF

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

0-60 days 0— 60K 141,684 111,196
61-90 days 61 -90K 1,117 3,456
Over 90 days 90 K 34,224 32,171
177,025 146,823

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade creditors and bills payable
are denominated in the following currencies:

AREE 2 B 5 EMNIRTR K ENRIENIREET
AT EERER

2011 2010
—E——fF —E—FF

HKS$’000 HKS$’000

BET T BT

Euro X 7 1,214 1,220
Hong Kong dollar B 129,452 105,679
Macau Pataca gl 28,787 22,121
US dollar ETT 9,657 5,052
Others E A 7,915 12,751
177,025 146,823

The carrying amounts of other creditors and retention payables as at 31
March 2011 are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The carrying amounts of creditors and payables at 31 March 2011
approximate their fair values.

Included in creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals are the
Group’s share of liabilities of HK$81,000 (2010: HK$218,000) in
relation to jointly controlled assets.

R-T——F=A=+—H HMEMIKRRR
FERT R BIRRZIREE A RENL -

R-ZT——F=A=+—H  BHRRREN
RZIREERE AR ERE -

JEMIRR . BNEE FAESKBREAS
BAEBEATRAEBREREHNEEZERHE
#81,000 7T (ZZE—ZF4F : ¥ 218,000 7T) ©
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35 OUTSTANDING INSURANCE CLAIMS

Insurance claims of the following business classes are not usually settled

within one year:

Employee compensation
Motor third party liability
Public liability

The claims development, net of reinsurance, are disclosed as follows:

35 RRRBEE

EERE
MHEE=EEME
RBMEME

REXRIGBREOBENT

TAEBERZRBRRE—RTE—FREE:

The Group b

Underwriting year 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Total

PREE “35CF 3524 “TTNF 5504 —50F 55 LE CEE\E CEENE CE-5F 5 & ot
HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000
BETT AETr AETn A&Tn AETr AETr A¥Tr ARTn A%Tr AETr A%Tro

Estimate of cumulative claims {53 2512 (&

At end of accident year ENERRER 1163 17775 207000 154651 79790 60371 88767 39575 57615 87,099

One year later & 7507 87985 101084 12618 80471 87731 84866 50541 57145 =

Tivo years later e 89510 134277 14843 121067 70097 78949 55088 4583 = =

Three years later =F% 104263 133568 116879 101303 74595 70027 4434 = = =

Four years later MER 101,745 136621 100,705 107859 72,206 65090 = = = =

Five years later %R 100894 179 104090 11196 69,698 - - - - -

Six years later NEfR 97609 12348 105794 110329 - - - - - -

Seven years later Tk 97610 122209 105,660 - - - - - - -

Fight years later NE 97,59% 12228 = = = = = = = =

Nine years later NER 97,585 - = = - - - - - -

Cumulative claims EHEIH 07585 122018 105660 110319 69698 65200 4434 4585 57,145 87099 805200

Cumulative payments ZHERRE 97580 122018 105660 110329 69,682 65011 39294 24630 1169 507 65128

Claims outstanding as RZB--%=B=+-A

at31 March 2011 LRREE j - - - 16 9 5030 21220 45486 81882 153918
Claims outstanding as RZE-2E£=f=1-F
at 31 March 2010 LARRE 191 11 21 2,701 3470 12803 5819 37007 55771 - 13796
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G0 W AR I A
36 BANK BORROWINGS 36 RITIE
The Group The Company
rEE O

Restated Restated

mE5| mE5|
Asat Asat Asat Asat Asat
31 March 31 March 1 April 31 March 31 March
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010

R-B--§ R-Z-ZF HN-ZTSNE RK-F--F N-T-T%F
=B=t-A Z=ZA=1-H mMAR—-A =HA=t+-AR =ZA=+-H

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETTT BETT BET T BETTT
Bank borrowings RITER 1,670,465 1,206,808 1,844,724 1,119,000 536,000
Bank overdrafts RITEX - - 928 - -
1,670,465 1,206,808 1,845,652 1,119,000 556,000
Reclassified as held for sale ENNEARE - = (51,714) - =
___ 1,670,465 1,206,808 1793938 1,119,000 556,000
The borrowings are repayable ERZERE
as follows: M
Within one year —FR 371,740 480,533 848,753 102,000 147,000
More than 1 year but not —F) LB ER
exceeding 2 years RE 1,109,375 190,925 109,301 1,017,000 52,000
More than 2 years but not MEN FAT R
exceeding 5 years ¥ 183,200 521,200 569,061 - 346,000
More than 5 years BBLE 6,150 14,150 266,823 - 11,000
1,670,465 1,206,808 1,793,938 1,119,000 556,000
Less: Amount due within one year PR N AL i
disclosed under current ERBAERN
liabilities RBEz2% (371,740) (480,533) (848,753) (102,000) (147,000)
1,298,725 726,275 945,185 1,017,000 409,000
Represented by: DR
Secured BER 198,386 230,549 404,612 19,000 21,000
Unsecured EHA 1,472,079 976,259 1,389,326 1,100,000 535,000
1,670,465 1,206,808 1,793,938 1,119,000 556,000
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate their fair RIT Fi HZEEEREEARERE  HARE
values as majority of the Group’s borrowings carried interest at floating REB7D 2 &= AF BRI KRG B o |ITHEFTY
rate. The bank borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: LA T 5'] BEREREL
The Group The Company
rE NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
=B-—-Ff _ZT-ZF =ZB--—-F _—T-ITF
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BT BB T
Canadian dollar mexrT 25,424 23,851 - =
Hong Kong dollar ek 1,428,275 915,875 1,119,000 556,000
Renminbi AR#% 209,678 262,200 - -
US dollar X 7,088 4,882 - -

1,670,465 1,206,808 1,119,000 556,000
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BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The effective interest rates per annum of the bank borrowings at the
reporting date were as follows:

36

RITER @
RBER  RITERZEREFEMT

The Group The Company
rEE KAH

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——-§% T - —T-ITF
Canadian dollar mEXT 4.5% 5.0% - =
Hong Kong dollar Bk 0.8% 0.8% 0.6% 0.7%
Renminbi AR 5.6% 5.2% - -
US dollar ETT 3.2% 3.2% - =

Bank borrowings of HK$198,386,000 (2010: HK$230,548,000) are 88 17 15 2078 15 198,386,000 T ( — FE — T 4F

secured by charges on the assets of the Group as set out in notes 15, 16,

%23054800073)BLA$E@§F{¢$ET$ BA

27,28 and 32. BiFE15 - 16 27~ 28 R B2 B EE -
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 37 %ﬁ Hxﬁ 5
On 26 July 2006, the Company issued a semi-annual 2.125% convertible b"\ TEERNFLAZ+NB ARRETEAS
bonds with an aggregate amount of HK$450,000,000 (the “Convertible #8 F8 7 & 450,000,000 7T, 2.125% - F & 2. AT #2 AR
Bonds”), in which an amount of HK$50,000,000 was subscripted by a Tﬁ % ([ 7] # B & 55 J) E R 7 % 50,000,000 7T
subsidiary of the Company. Each bondholder had the option to convert MARR—HNEARIRE SEFFHEAR
the Convertible Bonds into shares of the Company with a par value of T A% A R AR 15 5 1R i & 78 #1120 7T 2 32 R (B
HK$1.25 each at a conversion price of HK$11.20, which was adjusted WARKNASGRAESE 125 TZBG - AR
to HK$9.49 and HK$9.35 as a result of the approval for the payment BHERNBEE_ZETN\F=HA=+—H Lt@J*
of the final dividend of an amount of HK$0.29 per share for the year Z REARR B8 BB o. 2977:&%6:.:_ 7 TNF
ended 31 March 2008 and interim dividend of an amount of HK$0.055 AA=Z+RHIEHEzFHEKE # #0.055
per share for the period ended 30 September 2008 respectively. The 7T BIRER 5 5l ;ﬂﬁki\%lﬂﬁ /% “ﬁg 9.49 7T &
adjustment became effective from 26 September 2008 and 6 January B35 WERBARIR_ZEZNFENA
2009 respectively. Conversion price could be further adjusted upon —+7/<H &72—2%@ ANBER - AR E
approval of dividend in future. BEE AR BB E T E —FTHE o
Unless previously converted or purchased or redeemed, each BRIFEERABESNER - TRIARAR =T
Convertible Bond could be redeemed by the Company at 121.30% of ——FE A+ N\B(AARKRESZEHE )th?
its principal amount together with accrued interest on 28 July 2011 (the AN 78 2 121.30% 3% A fE 51 2 A 8 B [ & {7 7]
maturity date of the Convertible Bonds). BIRES -
On 28 July 2009 (the “Exercise Date”), all holders of Convertible RZZEZENFLA=-FTNABUTER]) - ﬁﬁﬁ
Bond exercised their right to request the Company to redeem all of —IT@HQ EHEZHAARITRENZERER
the Convertible Bonds of such holder on the Exercise Date at 113.1% TEBEARS Z2113.1%E [ EiT = E = Ei ,Hﬂ
of their principal amount together with accrued interest up to but (ENEfEZB) 2 EER 2 *B_Hﬁ‘ﬁxﬁﬁ
excluding the redemption date. On the same date, all the outstanding RER - A RARITEZ IRERESE 258
Convertible Bonds were fully redeemed and cancelled, resulting in a B EFH SRAEEEE _T—F i = )E]
loss on redemption of Convertible Bonds of HK$31,101,000 for the year =+—BItFEFE L Al 2 R% fé % 8% ?% 2 E1B
ended 31 March 2010 for the Group. 757585 31,101,000 7T ©
Convertible bonds derecognised in the statement of financial position RZZE—ZF=A=+—B P AMBARLK
as at 31 March 2010 are calculated as follows: ZABRRESTERT
The Group &
HK$°000
BET T
Liability component BEHS
At 31 March 2009 R_ZBZhF=ZA=+—H 410,798
Interest expenses FMEXH 10,501
Redemption fE [0 (452,400)
Loss on redemption (note 7) fE Bl 18 (M 5E7) 31,101
At 31 March 2010 R-F-—TF=A=+—H —
Derivative component PTETAHD
At 31 March 2009 RZFZNF=A=+—H 30,488
Fair value gain (note 7) AR EWRE (FiE7) (30,488)
At 31 March 2010 R_ZF-—ZTF=A=+—H —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL 38 lRAN
2011 2010
=2 T T4
HK$’000 HKS$’000
BT T BT
Authorised: EERA
540,000,000 ordinary shares of 540,000,000 fix B AR E{E B # 1.25 T 2
HKS$1.25 each Rl 675,000 675,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRBRIKRA
277,564,090 ordinary shares 277,564,090 X
of HK$1.25 each BREEES 125 T K 346,955 346,955
RESERVES 39 #1&
The Group A&
Capital  Tnvestment  Otherassets Share  Exchange
Share Capital ~ redemption  revaluation revaluation option  fluctuation  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
o RE 8 BkEE MRE MENE
BrEE KxGE RERE EERE  EGRE B TBRE REER ag
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
ARTn  RRTr AW EMTR BBTn  EMTn  AMTR BRTR ERTx
(notea)
i
At April 2009, RZEZNENA-H
as previously reported (at518) 47860 3443 8§19 (2449 16,729 S ABI4 L8663 28780%
Bffectof changes in accounting policies & RREZ 252 - - - - 3,356 - - 51,120 54476
At 1 April 2009, as restated R-BBNEMA-B(HET) Wk M6 8§79 (M) 2008 S NG LGB 2905
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - - A AT
Exchange difference on translation of REBNHBAR BERA
operations of overseas subsidiarics, RERBHRE 25
associates and jointly controlled entities ~ FEEMINEREEE - - - - - - 87,386 - 87,886
Change in fair value of avalable-forsele ~~ FTHEHE 7R A
investments,net RAERY 5E - - - 11446 - - - - L4dI6
Tmpairment loss on available-for-sale Tt E 2 RENHERE
investments transferred to consolidated ~~ ERERERER
income statement (note 7) (Bist7) - - - 46,243 - - - - 46,43
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEFHE & REH
investments transferred to consolidated ~ YHERZGANER
income statement (note 7) (KizE7) - - - (94,533) - - - - (94,533)
Fair value surplus of properties upon BRERENZRNEY
transfer to investment properties Rt - - - - 158972 - - - 158,972
Total comprehensive income for the year ~~ £E2EUNGHEE - - - 66126 138972 - 888 4739 73038
Dividends paid BfRE - - - - = = - (1661 (152661)
Share options granted by alisted subsidiary  —f& L BAE R FERE - - - - - ) - - o1
- consultancy services received -E BN ARG
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries HEMENBAR ER - - - - - - (10,177) = (10,177)
Gain on partal disposal of interest HEME—RHBATZ
ina subsidiary (note b) BoERAKEH) - 949 - - - - - - 949
At31 March 2010, as restated RZ2-SFZA=T-R(EEH) 417,860 343,385 §,799 43,678 179,057 491 295823 2,212,381 3,501 474
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39 RESERVES (continued)

39 &)

The Group (continued) REE(E)
Capital  Tnvestment  Otherassets Share  Exchange
Share Capital  redemption  revaluation  revaluation option  fluctuation ~ Retained
premium reserve reserve Teserve Teserve reserve Teserve profits Total
&x BE HfEE < BRE JERE .
Brif EXRE RORE EGRE  E(EE B 3BRE REEA 5g
HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000
BRTR  RRTr  EWTn  ERTn BBTn EWTn AWTn BRTR RRfn
(notea)
(H3ta)
At April 2010, RZZ-Z£MA-A
as previously reported (At51%) 417,860 343,385 8,799 4,678 158,440 1 295803 L1249 3389905

Effect of changes in accounting policies SHEREG Y2 - - - - 20,617 - 20 90,932 111,569

As 1 April 2010, s resated H-2-TFMA-R(EE]) A7860 343385 8,799 B 119037 o1 9583 2210381 3501474

Profit for the year R - - - - - - - 797,972 797,972

Exchange difference on translation of AEEINBAR BEAT

operations of overseas subsidiaries, &fjﬁ ks PAS

associates and jointly controlled entities ~ FIEEMNERAEE - - - - - - 134670 - 13460
Change in fairvalue of available-for-sale &t E 2K EH

investments, net MEED 38 - - - (948) - - - - (948)
(Gain on Share Exchange (note 3000)(1)) Rl &2 s (Ff3E s0(b)(0) - - - - - - - 1320 1,32
Total comprehensive (expense)fincome ~ FE2M (F3)/ 4%

for the year 4% - - - (948) - - 134,670 799,292 933,014
Dividends paid BfiRE - - - - - - - (39198 (319,198)
Share options granted by a listed subsidiary  —F LN BARE T ERE - - - - - 3,476 - - 3,476

— consultancy services received - RN ARG
Gain on partal disposal of interest HEME—RHBATZ

ina subsidiary (note ¢) i Sl el R - 21,740 - - - - - - 21,740
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR

(note 50(c)§) and 50(d)) (HiEEs0(0)) Rsora)) - - - - - - (7,896) - (7,8%)

At31 March 2011 R-E-—%£=f=1-A 417,860 365,125 8,799 4730 179,057 3,967 M7 L6475 4132610

Notes: Bt

(a) The balance arose mainly from various Group reorganisations in the past including (a) REHRFTERBBEZESEEERIE - BEAQAEM -
redomicile of the Company, spin-offs and privatisation of Group entities. SEEEZAHRLEI -

(b)  Pursuant to a share placing and subscription agreement dated 11 February 2010, the b)) BRE-ZF-—ZTF-_A+-—BzZROBEERRBEHH
Group placed 10,000,0000 shares of CPHL, a subsidiary of the Group, to independent £ B A BT 15 3K 18 48 58 7 5 23,000,000 7T BE & E KT B A
third parties for a gross proceed of HK$23,000,000. As a result of the agreement, CPHL A H +7Z % 2 10,000,000 R D FBLE =7 - EER
effectively issued 10,000,000 additional shares to new shareholders of CPHL for a net & H 402 5 E B %97 10,000,000 IR AN D T E L2
proceed of HK$22,339,000 and the Group’s interest in CPHL was diluted from 59.66% SEETIRER - FT1SRRIER R A8 15 22,339,000 7T © AN
to 57.01%. The dilution has resulted in a gain of HK$949,000, which was accounted for RE 2 5B 2 HE % H59.66% 558 £57.01% ° Lt
directly in equity for the year ended 31 March 2010. BRI 949,000 T WERBE-—T—ZF

ZA=ZTHLEFEEEREET AR -

(c) On 28 June 2010, CPHL issued 119,695,000 new shares to an independent third party () RZFT—ZFXNAZ+N\B EXZZER—RBIE
with net cash proceeds of HK$61,234,000. Immediately after the transaction, the = 5317 119,695,000 B HT AL D - FT{SFIEIR 5B 1
Group’s interest in CPHL decreased from 57.01% to 54.14%. The resulting gain on 61,234,0007C ° REEZ R H 2 1% AEBEHLIZE
deemed disposal of interest in the subsidiary of HK$21,740,000 was accounted for in 2 W %5 R 57.01% 8 2 & 54.14% © 18 & 1 & P16 52 T 8
equity directly. A R HE RS 2 TS IR a7 5 21,740,000 T B HE R A

N
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39 RESERVES (continued) 39 &)
The Company /N
Capital Investment
Share Contributed redemption revaluation Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total
EX RE
RARE 9N BE R Bt REEH ag
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BRI BETT BETT
(note)
Uik
At 1 April 2009 R-ZTHEMA-R 417,860 95,413 8,799 (7,272) 1,284,426 1,799,226
Change in fair value of At E 7R E R
available-for-sale investments ARERE - - - 118,299 - 118,299
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale {t% ] fit{HiE 2 % &
investments transferred to flinEEs
income statement YaEx - - - (96,893) - (96,893)
Impairment of available-for-sale A& 2K E
investments transferred to fRESER
income statement W R - - - 30,977 - 30,977
Profit for the year (note 14) EEEM (M5 14) = - = = 99,958 99,958
Total comprehensive income EERERS
for the year @ - - - 52,383 99,958 152,341
Dividends paid BERRE = - - - (152,661) (152,661)
At31 March 2010 RZZ-ZE=A=+-H 417,860 95,413 8,799 45,111 1,231,723 1,798,906
Change in fair value of AfHE 7 RER
available-for-sale investments AHEED - - - (948) - (948)
Loss for the year (note 14) FEERB(HF1) - - - - (35,336) (35,336)
Total comprehensive expense EF2ERX
for the year b - - - (948) (35,336) (36,284)
Dividends paid BRKRE - - - - (319,198) (319,198)
At 31 March 2011 W_E-——F=ZfA=1-H 417,860 95,413 8,799 44,163 877,189 1,443,424
Note: B
Contributed surplus represents the difference between the value of net assets of subsidiaries BABERTH R FT U E BB A ) 2 & B F (E B R P B 1T
acquired and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition. ARARMHZEEZEZRE - BBEARE-NN\—FREDE)
Under the Company Act of 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the Company is BABBRTI A D RAIRR 2 s o

available for distribution to shareholders.
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40 DEFERRED TAXATION 40 IEIETIE

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised TXETIAZRFEEFBEZRFERER
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting years: FEELCHEAR (BE) RELZEH)
The Group RE

Accelerated ~ Revaluation Allowance

tax of for doubtful Tax
depreciation properties  Trademarks debts losses Others Total
&

HEHE  EENR BE  REERE  HEER Af 4g
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

ERTn  ERTR BRTn 0 BWTn 0 ERTn BRfn  BETR

At 1 April 2009 RZZENEMA-A
— as previously reported - A3IR 56,861 127,448 19,526 (974) (32,718) 1,414 171,557
~ change in accounting policies (note 2(a)(il))  — & FTEUE & ) (H5F2(a) (i) - (50,153) - - - = (50,153)
~as restated — B &5 56,861 77,295 19,526 (974) (32,718) 1,414 121,404
Disposal of subsidaries HEHBLAR (85) - = (39) (125) = (269)
Exchange realignment ERHE 581 75 - (134) (18) (287) 897
Charged credited) to consolidated income ~~ EEEHANEET |/
statement for the year (note 11) (GHA)(BaEL) (12,634) 16773 (1,702) 939 (3,496) 4384 4264
At31 March 2010, RZZ-Z2£=f=1-A
as restated (@ E5) 4703 94,823 17,824 (228) (36,357) 5511 126,29
At 1 April 2010 RZZ-Z5MA-A
—as previously reported ~ 5% 31513 #4703 198,554 17,824 (228) (36,357) 5511 230,027
— change in accounting policies (note 2(a)(il)) ~ — 2+ B &8 (3 2(a)(d)) - (103,731) - - - - (103,731)
- as restated —{53 4,73 94,823 1784 (228) (36,357) 5,511 126,296
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 50(b) (1)) R B AR (BrEEs00)() (1,788) - 2,251 - - 1,956 2419
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 50(c)) HERBAR (H3E50() 107 - (16,335) - - - (16,228)
Exchange realignment Ei R 144 3,265 - - (61) 49 3,597
Charged/(credited) to consolidated income ~~ EEEEHARERIIE/
statement for the year (note 11) (FA) B3k (3,333) 2,63 (266) 3 1,027 12,146 23,436
At31 March 2011 R-E——%2=f=+-H 39,851 100,720 3474 4 (24,391) 19,862 139,520
For the purposes of consolidated statement of financial position REAGEMBMARZHEIN AR - B TERE
presentation, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. MIBEENBERKCIFERE - BEHRIAERIE
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial HERBZAMMOT -
reporting purposes:
Restated Restated
=l KET
As at As at As at
31 March 2011 31 March 2010 1 April 2009
R-B——F RZIZE—ZTF RZZETNLEF
=B=+—H =A=+—H MmA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BT BT
Deferred tax liabilities REHIBEE 151,898 147,076 127,732
Deferred tax assets RIEFIRE B (12,378) (20,780) (6,328)
139,520 126,296 121,404
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40 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

41

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$1,956,393,000 (2010: HK$2,072,282,000) available for offset
against future taxable profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of HK$147,829,000 (2010: HK$220,348,000) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$1,808,564,000 (2010: HK$1,851,934,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in tax losses are losses
of HK$74,099,000 (2010: HK$94,050,000) of subsidiaries in Mainland
China that will gradually expire until 2014; the remaining tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred tax liabilities of HK$12,099,000 (2010: HK$9,779,000) have
not been recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on
the unappropriated earnings of certain subsidiaries. Such amounts are
expected to be reinvested.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised
deductible temporary differences of HK$8,597,000 (2010:
HK$15,425,000). A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in relation
to such deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the Directors of the Company, the chief operating
decision-maker, that are used to make strategic decisions. The Directors
consider the business from a product/service perspective. Principal
activities of the segments are as follows:

Construction and engineering: Construction and engineering work for
aluminium building materials and curtain walls, building construction,
electrical and mechanical, lifts and escalators, pipe rehabilitation,
environmental and civil contracts.

Insurance and investment: General insurance business except aircraft,
aircraft liabilities and credit insurance, and investment in securities.

Property: Property investment, development and management, cold
storage and logistics, and hotel operations.

Food and beverages: Restaurant and bar business, and branded coffee
shop business.

Computer and information communication technology and others:
Sale and servicing of information technology equipment and business
machines, retailing, trading and servicing of motor vehicles, and grocery
trading.

Segment revenue is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement, except that it also includes the Group’s
share of revenue of associates and jointly controlled entities on a
proportionate consolidated basis.

The Directors assess the performance of the operating segments based
on a measure of segment results. This measurement includes the
Group’s share of results of associates and jointly controlled entities on
a proportionate consolidated basis. Unallocated corporate expenses,
finance income and costs, income tax expenses and other major items
that are isolated and non-recurring in nature are not included in
segment results.
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IEFERIIE ()

RMEHR  NEB AR A 2 RIEEERBE
1,956,393,000 7 (= F — T 4 : 1 2,072,282,000
ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%%%Z%#ﬁ%ﬂoﬁ#%
15 147,829,000 70 (= F — T 4F : 71 220,348,000
5ﬁ2ﬁﬁ%ﬁa%wﬁﬁkmﬁéﬁ &
R A B LATEOR - SR L AR T 2 B IA
&5 18 75 5 1,808,564,000 T ( — T — T & : B #&
L%L%amoﬁ)ﬁmjwﬁkﬁﬂﬁéﬁ i I8 /8
BEETBRRENBARFERBE T —N
F 7 18758 74,099,000 T ( — T —T4F : B
2§wmﬁ%ﬁﬂ%mﬁﬁgﬁ%ﬂﬁ@%

RKERETHBEBRRARD RAFMATAESZ T2
TEIN 1 R AR T R TE B &5 12,099,000 7T
(ZZ—ZF : B%9,779,00070) * BEHIZER
He AERKE -

RREHR - AKE Z K MR AR E
=B BB 859700t (T —ZF: B
15,425,0007C) ° NE BB E R R H B 5
2 FE SR B m I LA FA VB K 85 5 B8 2 AT 40080 B
ZE > WU AERBEZ NBEELEHBEE -

DEEN
EEEREADAER(EBLERRE)DE
BILAE RIS REMBEMEEEDE - EF
DER/RBAEEREY - ZEHEZEE
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41 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets mainly consist of non-current assets and current assets
as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position except
unallocated bank balances and cash, deferred tax assets and prepaid tax.

“ﬁﬁﬂ@)

& REMIREERAMNBIERI

DREETIZBREAVMBRARARAKENIE
ﬁéﬂ’éﬁ%&iﬁiﬁé? RS BRRITEFRE

Segment liabilities mainly consist of current liabilities and non-current NEAERFEBRES |/:|\ B TSR S0 3R O 4R BB /R
liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position FaFER 3'5 mEBAGE EEHMSHARE R
except current income tax liabilities, bank borrowings and deferred tax TERRELERIERBEBRIN -
liabilities.
Segment information about these businesses is presented below. I EXB 2 EEREIIWT -
Revenue and results WARES
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engineering investment Property beverages and others Total
ERR
BER ERER
BEIR RERRE nE 28 EYEL a5
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETR BETR B8R BETT BETR
For the year ended 31 March 2011 BHE-3--FZA=T-HLEE
REVENUE A
Total revenue awA 1,827,583 181,834 426,752 392,261 745,020 3,573,450
Inter-segment revenue AELERA - (11,554) (48,168) - (22,547) (82,269)
Group revenue SEHA 1,827,583 170,280 378,584 392,261 122,473 3,491,181
Proportionate Group revenue fromajointly B #KA—F AR
controlled entity eliminated PENRLHIEE I WA (96,192) - - - - (96,192)
Share of revenue from external customers b REHEDE
derived by associates and jointly controlled & 77 m%ﬁ\‘* EF
entities ZLKU\ 1,479,231 - 343,764 59,575 477,926 2,360,496
Segment revenue AERA 3,210,622 170,280 720,348 451,836 1,200,399 5,755,485
RESULTS L
Segment profit/(loss) PERA/ (FE) 114372 (35,779) 348,173 (40,083) (13,034) 373,649
Included in segment profit/(loss) are: SRR/ (BR)BE:
Share of results of associates IR E AR %ii 74,436 - 32,05 2,000 (2,464) 106,027
Share of results of jointly controlled entities i EREHCEEE 399 - (13,663) - - (13,264)
Depreciation and amortisation, TEREH Mk
net of captalisation BAf (6,714) (1,057) (24,445) (25,318) (2,09) (59,593)
Increase in fair value of investment properties REMEZDAEEN - - 163,174 - - 163,174
Tmpairment loss on property, Nz BEREE
plant and equipment LREFE - - (7,238) (1,960) - (9,198)
Impairmentloss on prepaid lease payments (T E5B 2 HEBE - - (5,029) - - (5,029)
Tmpairment loss on goodwill BELREER - - - (31,390) (5,117) (36,507)
Unrealised loss on investments at fair value RERERAR @Jﬁ@Z&ﬁ f
through profit or loss, net AERER: - (593) - - - (593)
Write back/(down) of inventories mE/ (i) TmE
to net realisable value, net TERTE 78 1,810 - - - (7,727) (5917)
Write back of properties for sale to e @ﬁ% E$
net realisable value NERFE - - 8,348 - - 8,348
Unrealised gain/(loss) on derivative 11 E HEIEZAZH
financial instruments, net W/(58) /?%E - 20,178 - (9,954) - 10,224
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Inter-segment revenue is charged at prices determined by management
with reference to market prices.
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41 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 41 DEER @)
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Foodand technology
enginering investment Property beverages and others Total
B
BER EEEEE
TR REREE H 2% PR REM ks
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT AETT BT BETT AETT AETT
For the year ended 31 March 2010, HEZE-ZE-A=1-BLER
as restated (?&‘iﬁ‘])
REVENUE A
Total revenue @A 2,295,568 119,544 395,444 537,924 683,353 4,031,833
Inter-segment revenue AELERA (27) (18,544) (61,828) - (17,609) (98,254)
Group revenue SEHA 2,295,295 101,000 333,616 537,924 605,744 3,933,579
Proportionate Group revenue from BHERE AR EH)
ajointly controlled entity eliminated PERRLHI ?ﬁ @ WA (58,038) = - = = (58,038)
Share of revenue from external customers i REBE AR
derived by associates and jointly AF7 %‘J@%?\‘* EF
controlled entities ZLKU\ 962,666 - 133,210 3,797 477,302 1,576,975
Segment revenue kL0 3,199,923 101,000 466,826 541,721 1,143,046 5,452,516
RESULTS S |
Segment profit/ loss) AREH/ (B8 129,550 49,967 383,403 (12,097) 13,073 563,898
Included in segment profit/(Loss) are: SRR/ (BR)BE:
Share of results of associates iR E AR %F 29,161 - 2,370 0l 6,277 58,029
Share of results of jointly controlled entities FEtREs ELE 526 = 22476 = = 23,002
Depreciation and amortisation, TEREH Mk
net of captalisation BAf (8,389) (1,078) (26,450) (40,163) (2,163) (78,443)
Increase in fair value of investment properties REMEZDAEEN - - 179,781 - - 179,781
(Provision for)/write back of impairment % BER&ERAEE
loss on property, plant and equipment, net (BfE)/m% 7% (5473) - - 333 - (5,140)
Tmpairment loss on goodwill BEZRERR = = = (29,174) = (29,174)
Impairment loss on other intangible assets AHEVEELREER (12,200) - - - = (12,200)
Tmpairment loss on available-for-sale investments A& 2 5 A #T 5 E R - (46,243) - - - (46,243)
Unrealised loss on investments at fair value RERREARERELREY
through profit or loss, net FEREE 8 - (42,993) - - - (42,993)
Write down of inventories to net realisable value  # 57 S 2 A& 5 FE (8852) = = (331) (6,153) (15,336)
Write back of properties for sale to e @ﬁ% S
net realisable value N2R%E = = 11,878 = = 11,878
Unrealised gain on derivative financial i E FBIAZREG NG
instruments, net x| - 41,767 - - - 41,767
Fair value gain on derivative componentof ~ AARGBAITETAHAZ
convertible bonds NfEks - - - - 30,488 30,488
ENBEZHABANRZ S ERBEEERENS
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41 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Total segment revenue are reconciled to the Group’s revenue in the

consolidated income statement as follows:

1 P EER @
BB A BAREBNES
MRIOR ¢

Yas &k A2 WA B

Restated
KED
2011 2010
=E——F —ZT-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Total segment revenue @B U A 5,755,485 5,452,516
Add: Proportionate Group revenue n:B¥ERE —MHEE
from a jointly controlled entity PRI S
eliminated ATESE PN 96,192 58,038
Less: Share of revenue from external P TE DN=D: N DY
customers derived by associates Fh R 4% il 1 FE SN AP
and jointly controlled entities E IS4l ON
Construction and installation BERTE
contracts T 1,193,663 893,076
Provision of maintenance and RERERWE
property management B R 285,750 68,023
Leasing of properties MEEE 4,856 4,408
Hotel operations T JE 8 21,150 19,140
Sales of properties W) SHE 317,576 109,547
Food and beverages B 59,575 3,797
Sale of information technology BB ®RE
equipment, motor vehicles B R EHAD
and others ZIHE 477,926 478,984
2,360,496 1,576,975
Total revenue in the consolidated REREREmTRZ
income statement @A 3,491,181 3,933,579
Reconciliation of segment profit to profit before taxation is provided as 3 $8e A ELRR B AT &R A 2 BRS¢
follows:
Restated
KE
2011 2010
—E——-F —Z T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Segment profit 2 88 a A 373,649 563,898
Gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries & P45 [ B A 7w 2 W 217,361 32,247
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries and H % WEARREEEZ
their related jointly controlled entities FE[R] 22 6 1 3 0 U 377,701 -
Gain on step-up acquisition of interest b ﬁﬁ A /NC]
in an associate *E Z Wz - 3,269
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBE AR H (25,247) (14,599)
Finance income ) i%ﬂ&( A 14,225 4,624
Finance costs W% ER (13,692) (36,891)
Profit before taxation R B A1 S A 943,997 552,548
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Note: In this analysis, the non-current assets exclude financial instruments (including
interests in associates and jointly controlled entities) and deferred tax assets.
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41 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) DEER @)
Assets and liabilities ﬁ ErRERE
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engineering investment Property beverages and others Total
EER
BER ERAA
BRIE RERAE nE £ MEREM ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BETR BETR BETR BRI AETR BETR
Asat 31 March 2011 R=E--£=B=1-H
ASSETS &E
Segment assets AEEE 1,071,943 959,792 4,867,662 375,397 608,419 7,883,213
Tncluded in segment assets are: NEEERAR:
Interests in associates R E AR ER 292,290 - 108,530 57,056 166,126 624,002
Interests in jointly controlled entities b RREGIR X 2 12,405 - 494752 - - 507,157
Amounts due from associates FENE & 2 IR 19,276 - - 556 118,004 137,836
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities J‘EW LR ER - - 216,897 - - 216,897
Additions to non-current assets (note) REARDEE() 7270 69 444218 107,026 989 559,584
LIABILITIES L |
Segment liabilities FREE 1,186,567 314,745 158,267 80,386 86,25 1,826,210
Included in segment liabilites is NEEREAE:
Amounts due to associates ERBENRRR 293 - - - - 293
Asat 31 March 2010, RZE-FE=f=1-H
as restated (&&7))
ASSETS BE
Segment assets 2REE 1,039,239 844,810 4,336,665 424408 502,253 7,147,375
Tncluded in segment assets are: AREERS:
Tnterests in associates il -INGIvd 3 255007 - 76,457 932 4911 377,307
Interests in jointly controlled entities b RREGIR X 2 12,005 - 375,146 - - 387,151
Amounts due from associates FEYE & 2 IR 39,161 - U 14 117,147 156,474
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities JZE WEREH M ER 26975 = 211,667 = = 238,642
Additions to non-current assets (note) REFRDAE () 6,528 330 139,128 30,482 5,098 181,766
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities FREE 1,100,368 285,525 130,256 61,458 77,462 1,635,069
Included in segment liabilites is NEEREAE:
Amounts due to associates ERBANART 3421 - - - - 3421

Mia EADTT  FERBDEAETRENH TR (REMEE
BRARARZESEE R REERRAEE -

HIBEBREBERAT
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41 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Reconciliation of segment assets and liabilities to total assets and
liabilities is provided as follows:

1 BRE R )
HREERABRBEAERABNEIRNT :

Restated

LE7

2011 2010

—E——F —E—TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT

Segment assets DEEE 7,883,213 7,147,375
Unallocated bank balances and cash AOBEITEFENIRE 692,241 133,367
Other unallocated assets HEtARDBREE 19,922 32,638
Total assets WEE 8,595,376 7,313,380
Restated

L E7

2011 2010

—E——F T —FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT

Segment liabilities DEEE 1,826,210 1,655,069
Bank borrowings fE 1T 1,670,465 1,206,808
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE 151,898 147,076
Other unallocated liabilities HERkOEREE 67,405 79,811
Total liabilities A= 3,715,978 3,088,764

Geographical information

The Group’s operations in construction and engineering are located
in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Macau, Singapore and Australia.
Insurance and investment business is conducted in Hong Kong.
Property operations are mainly carried out in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Canada. Food and beverages business is carried out in Hong
Kong, Mainland China, Macau, Singapore and Australia. Computer and
information communication technology operations are mainly carried
out in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Thailand. Other operations are
carried out in Canada and the USA.

The associates’ and jointly controlled entities’ operations in
construction and engineering are mainly located in Hong Kong,
Mainland China, Singapore, USA, Europe and Australia. Property
operations are mainly carried out in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Food and beverages business is carried out in Hong Kong, Singapore
and Mainland China. Other operations are carried out in Mainland
China.

HEE R

AEEZEREBRTIREDRS PEAL -
P9~ 3703 KRN E 1 - (R &&é%ﬁ&?
EIEBIE %%%%EEEE% rh B8 79 K% 0
2 REE: ﬁ@%%&%% rh B A R
sk RORMEE : BISR A BRI R ER
FEEES ¢Imm&§l$¢ Ve
EMERRERBE-

HT*%'Jm%Zi% LR TIER
CHRE A BTN - SEE - BR
CHEEEXBETENTERT
%ﬁﬂ%ﬁk#%&% ¥ A0%% Ko o B
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41 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

41 DEER @

Segment revenue by geographical market

BUETSEI 2 BMA
Associates Associates
Company  andjointly Company  and jointly
and controlled 2011 and controlled 2010
subsidiaries entities Total subsidiaries entities Total
BENT ik NS
KRR kiR —F--% ARAR LER —F-ZF
WEBAR Bt g WEAR  EhtE bk
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT A%Tn BETx % ABETr BETr  A%Tn %
Hong Kong Bk 2,309,690* 57,441 2,837,131 49 2,449,810* 203,080 2,652,890 49
Mainland China HE R 38016 1,485,635 1,523,651 26 82,095 1,152,047 1,234,142 )
Macau ] 497,714 - 497,714 8 514,909 16 514,925 9
Canada mex 347,896 - 347,896 6 313,637 = 313,637 6
Singapore AN 13,409 149,696 163,105 3 357,111 54,694 411,805 7
USA e 111,684 15,310 126,994 2 107,383 5,585 112,968 2
Europe B - 119,518 119,518 2 - 106,662 106,662 2
Australia BN 32,688 54,388 87,076 2 2,487 52,771 55,258 1
Thailand ZE 33,281 - 33,281 1 37,617 = 37,617 1
Others it 10,611 8,508 19,119 1 10,492 2,120 12,612 1
3,394,980 2,360,496 5755485 100 3,875,541 1,576,975 5,452,516 100

*

The proportionate Group revenue from a jointly controlled entity is eliminated.

The Group maintains healthy and balanced portfolio of customer basis.
No customer accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue of the
Group for the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010.

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of non-current
assets other than financial instruments (including interests in associates
and jointly controlled entities) and deferred tax assets analysed by

geographical area:

* RE —EHER SRR G R ERA B B -

AEBRBERELTENEFAES - HERF
EAREBE_F —FR-FT—TF=FA
Z+—BIFEZRKAR10% kA £ o

UTRZzBESSBI B TA(BEMERE

NEIRARZEH DR D) MEENIAEE
SN2 IERBEERBMEDN

Non-current assets

ERBEE
2011 2010
—E——F —ET—ZF
HKS$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Hong Kong BB 1,628,456 1,638,311
Mainland China A i 1,343,574 973,476
Singapore EAIIE 259,261 210,527
Canada mEX 191,237 178,894
Macau SE P 35,351 1,879
Australia SEM 27,802 2,085
USA = 19,428 19,525
Others Hfb 18,923 21,556
3,524,032 3,046,253
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42 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND OTHER

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in business
combinations, licenses, trademarks, favourable leases and others are
allocated, at acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from
such intangible assets. The respective carrying amounts as at 31 March

&5 B W B ok I G

42 BERHMGERLEE ZRENSR

RETRENR  REBSHBAZEE &
R B2 FAEEREMIRNKERSEE
BB RZBELEETRB 2 ReELEM -
RZB——FER-ZB-ZF=A=+—H &

2011 and 2010 had been allocated as follows: BZkEEDESERT :
2011 —E2——F Favourable
Goodwill Licenses Trademarks leases Others
[k 1 BR BE FAHEE Hity
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BMTR BMTR BMTR BT BETR
Cost %N
Construction and engineering FENEW I
— roads, drainage and water works —BE EBR
(note 42(a)) K TRR(FIeE423a)) - 26,534 - - -
Insurance and investment Rig RIEE - - - - 5,317
Property VES
— cold storage and public bonded —REEEK
warehouse (note 42(b)) RBRBA (MTE4200)) 66,027 3,000 - - -
Food and beverages ER
— branded coffee shops (note 42(c)) — fn 2N EE (P 7E 42(c)) 1,172 - - - -
— restaurants and bars (note 42(d)) — B B8 ROBE (P 3 42(d)) 191,431 - 23,977 11,855 -
Others Hith
— natural resources (note 42(e)) —RAEIR (BT FE42(e)) 5,117 - - - -
— others —Hftb - - - - 2,629
263,747 29,534 23,977 11,855 7,946
Accumulated amortisation/impairment R # 8 RE
loss B#E
Construction and engineering BERMM TR
— roads, drainage and water works —ER - RER
(note 42(a)) K T2 (M ik 42(a)) - (14,357) - - -
Insurance and investment R RI&E - - - - (2,074)
Property ES
— cold storage and public bonded —RERER
warehouse (note 42(b)) RREREE (M zE42(b)) (1,461) (2,737) - - -
Food and beverages EH
— branded coffee shops (note 42(c)) — SRR DN JE (BT aE 42(c)) (1,172) - - - -
— restaurants and bars (note 42(d)) — 2B KB (KT 5 42(d)) (129,003) - (1,897) (741) -
Others Hth
— natural resources (note 42(e)) —RAEBR (HTE42(e)) (5,117) - - - -
— others —HAh - - - - -
(136,753) (17,094) (1,897) (741) (2,074)
Net book value at R-ZE——%=H=+—H
31 March 2011 R [E B 126,994 12,440 22,080 11,114 5,872
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42 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND OTHER 42 BEREMEFRESE ZHEIE @)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

2010 —E-ZF Goodwill Licenses Trademarks Others
kS & R 1z Hih

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

BETIT BETT AETT BETT

Cost %N \
Construction and engineering FENEW I
— roads, drainage and water works —BE EBR
(note 42(a)) K TR (P 423a)) - 26,534 - =
— pipe technologies — BB = - - 99
Insurance and investment R RIEE - = - 4,837
Property ES
— cold storage and public bonded —RERER
warehouse (note 42(b)) RBERBAE (M FE4200)) 66,027 3,000 = -
Food and beverages B8
— branded coffee shops (note 42(c)) — fn 2N EJE (P 7 42(c)) 85,182 - 108,000 -
— restaurants and bars (note 42(d)) — & B OB (M5 42(d)) 171,543 = 10,337 =
Others HAth
— natural resources (note 42(e)) —RAE TR (KT aE42(e)) 5,117 = = =
— others —Efh = = - 2,169
327,869 29,534 118,337 7,105
Accumulated amortisation/impairment Rit#s RE
loss g
Construction and engineering FENEW I
— roads, drainage and water works —BEK EBR
(note 42(a)) K T2 (Ff 5t 42(a)) - (14,357) - -
— pipe technologies — BB - - - -
Insurance and investment R RI&E - = = (968)
Property ES
— cold storage and public bonded —RERER
warehouse (note 42(b)) RBRBA (M FE4200)) (1,461) (2,437) = =
Food and beverages B8
— branded coffee shops (note 42(c)) — an RN EJE (P 5 42(c)) (49,750) - (7,200) -
— restaurants and bars (note 42(d)) — & B OB (M 5E42(d)) (98,785) = (689) =
Others HAth
— natural resources (note 42(e)) —RABIR (KT E42(e)) - - = =
— others —HAth - - - -
(149,996)  (16,794) (7,889) (968)
Net book value at R-ZE-ZF=A=+—H
31 March 2010 R R E 177,873 12,740 110,448 6,137
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IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND OTHER 42 BB R HMEREE 2 RERR @)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
The Group tests goodwill and other intangible assets annually for RE FHRARBERAMELEERS
impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that they might BATRE MEABRETRE  @EBTET
be impaired. Al o
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the ErTEEAARERMAAEATEENAAE
higher of the value-in-use or fair value less cost to sell. Both approaches BEHEKR A 2 B = o fEFAmERE AR -
require the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from ZEEFHTZREEFEUEL ZRKRRE
the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. mE - WARE 2 BRIREAEHIRE -
The recoverable amounts of CGUs in food and beverages operation are BREB 2R SEEBMHIKESEIRA
determined from fair value less cost to sell approach while recoverable REREEXATAEELEE  ERERFEBH
amounts of CGUs for remaining operations are determined from value- ReEEEMAARE S EDZERPEES
in-use calculations approach. HIXERE -
The key assumptions for both approaches requires the entity to estimate ZMEFEEINEEBREAUBR - EEXK
the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices EEEEENANARES - BIRE M —E
and direct costs. Management estimates appropriate discount rates BB AT EENEBERE SEEEN
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money HERRAEMIRE MEBREEZENAN
and the risks specific to the CGUs. Changes in selling prices and direct Bk BRI 8 TE 18 1) B 39 T 355 R 2R 88 4 9 8 O8)
costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes mE - ERERBEAERREEMEBEBEER
in the market. Management determined budgeted growth rates and HRERREFE - FTRMBRSRE Wk
gross margins based on past performance and market expectation. The MEERRSEEBMATY R 2 ERR -
discount rates used are post-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant CGUs.
Roads, drainage and water works business (@) B RBERKBIRBER
Licence, after amortisation, of HK$12,177,000 (2010: HK$12,177,000) KBS 218 BH12,177,000 T ( Z 2 — T F ¢
is allocated to the Group’s roads, drainage and water works business. 7B #512,177,0007T) 2 MR D Bl = AL B B 3K
The estimated recoverable amount is determined based on value-in-use RIS KRG TIRET o (h5HET Y (Bl 288 Th iz (2
approach. These calculations use post-tax cash flow projections based RREEELET FHIEEREREEIZ
on financial budgets approved by management covering a one-year Z—FHUBREZRERRETRA - BB
period. Cash flows beyond the one-year period are extrapolated using a —FHR REREER —FREFTAFZ
3% growth rate per annum up to the fifteenth year, and a discount rate BREGF30 RERFE10%MESR -
of 10% per annum.
Cold storage and public bonded warehouse business b) REEERABRRBEEK
Goodwill, after impairment, of HK$64,566,000 (2010: HK$64,566,000) (B 18 75 1 64,566,000 T ( =T — T 4F : B
and licences, after amortisation, of HK$263,000 (2010: HK$563,000) 64,566,000 7T ) Z 72 & 5 §5 14 78 ¥ 263,000 70 (=
are allocated to the Group’s cold storage and public bonded warehouse T —FF : B#563,0007T) 2 KR 9 B2 AN
business. The estimated recoverable amount is determined based SE2RBMABERAZRRB A ZER » Azt Il
on value-in-use approach. These calculations use post-tax cash flow EERENERAREREETE Bt ERA
projections based on financial budgets approved by management EREMZ s —FHUBREZHERERE
covering a one-year period. Cash flows beyond the one-year period are fEH - B —FHRCRERNERBEF3%
extrapolated using a 3% growth rate per annum and a discount rate of ZWERRAVER79% MHES
7% per annum.
Branded coffee shops business (c) R he OhN Bk Ji5 3£ 75
Goodwill, after impairment, of nil (2010: HK$35,432,000) and HEGEBET (2 — T4 : B35 432,000
trademark, after amortisation, of nil (2010: HK$100,800,000) are T EEREEEEETT(ZE—ZTF : B
allocated to the Group’s branded coffee shops business. Goodwill, after 5 100,800,000 7C) 2 H IR WO R EREE 2 @
impairment, of HK$34,260,000 and trademark, after amortisation, of H N B J5 25 755 o R (B 12 78 %5 34,260,000 7T 2 7
HK$99,000,000 have been disposed of during the year as the Group BT #1875 15 99,000,000 7T 2 R R A F E
disposed 80% interest in the Pacific Coffee Group on 7 July 2010. Please HE EAAEEEN_Z—ZZF+tALHH
refer to note 50(c)(i) for details. & H 1k Pacific Coffee 5= [F 80% ~ %5 © 515
H2HKFE50()) °
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IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND OTHER
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Restaurants and bars business

Goodwill, after impairment, of HK$62,428,000 (2010: HK$72,758,000),
trademarks, after amortisation, of HK$22,080,000 (2010: HK$9,648,000)
and favourable leases, after amortisation, of HK$11,114,000 (2010: nil)
are allocated to the Group’s restaurants and bars business. The estimated
recoverable amount is determined based on fair value less costs to sell.
These calculations use post-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a one-year period. Cash flows
beyond the one-year period are extrapolated using a 3% growth rate per
annum up to the fifth year and zero growth rate per annum from the sixth
year to fifteen year, gross profit margin of 76% and a discount rate of 14%
per annum.

As a result of the impairment tests performed, impairment loss of
HK$31,390,000 (2010: HK$29,174,000) were made on the goodwill
allocated to the Group’s restaurants and bars business. Management is
of the view that such impairment has resulted in the view of unstable
global economic environment. The loss has been included in other
gains, net in these consolidated financial statements.

If the gross margin assumed in the post-tax cash flow projections for
the Group’s restaurants and bars business had been 1% lower than
management’s estimates as at 31 March 2011, the Group would have
recognised a further impairment loss on goodwill allocated to that
business by HK$32,851,000.

If the post-tax discount rate applied to the discounted cash flow
projections for the Group’s restaurants and bars business had been 1%
higher than management’s estimates as at 31 March 2011, the Group
would have recognised a further impairment loss on goodwill allocated
to that business by HK$11,220,000.

Natural resources business

An impairment loss on goodwill of HK$5,117,000 (2010: nil) was made
to the Group’s natural resources business. The estimated recoverable
amount determined is based on value-in-use approach as management
decided to discontinue this business during the year.

42 BEREMELEE ZRENE @
d BEEREERE

(e)

R (B 18 7B ¥ 62,428,000 T( — T —ZTF : HF K
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(T T : 5% 9,648,000 70) & B 1Z N # 44
B BE11,114,000 L ( ZE—FF : FEZ L)
ZENBEER S EE AR BRE BT o
st AT IR B SRR TR B A (B S E A EE E ©
BRZTEEREEB e —FHHEEE
ZHBBEeREEA  —FEEFRAFZ2ES
MEERERSEFINWMMENEFEE+AEF
ZEER « FRE76% M BEIRFER14% MR o

ETRENRAE RoREAEEZEE

MBEER 2 AEEL 2 BEBEBE BB
31,390,000 70 (=T —Z 4 : % 29,174,000 7T) ©
EIEERA ﬁ?‘ﬁﬂfﬁﬂﬂiﬁﬁ&ﬂ-ﬁ“i&iﬂﬁ%
o ZEBE ALRAMERE 2 EMlkas
TREENA o

RZE——F=A=+—H "

OB IR 37 2 §i 12 38 < % = 788 By
EREEE AR 1% - 45 B 5
ROETEBREB 2B ENRERRE
32,851,000 JT °©
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RZB——F=A=+—H MEAEEEEX
BEBXEBANEBEREFEEHAACRER
BB E R E Pt 1% AN&EE G E — S
RORTEBEBIBAENREBERREY
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43 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

43 EBERSRITHRAEZHE

Directors’ emoluments ExsMe
Emoluments paid and payable to the Directors are as follows: ENRENTARARESZMEHT :
2011
—E——fF
Salaries  Retirement
Directors’ and other scheme
fee benefits contribution Total
ek  EBIREE
EE=Me HuER ZHR HE
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT E¥Tn B¥Tx B¥Tx
Executive Directors BITES
Chow Yei Ching & TR IED - 13,920 - 13,920
Kuok Hoi Sang B8 - 7,200 375 7,575
Tam Kwok Wing 2 B 5 - 5,200 233 5,433
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar [E 4 1E - 2,800 120 2,920
Ho Chung Leung fA] SRR - 2,400 135 2,535
Ma Chi Wing (note a) BEE (fEa) - 819 46 865
Non-Executive Directors EHITES
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph * I RARE 200 - - 200
Sun Kai Dah, George * REE? 200 - - 200
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles &t 250 - - 250
Ko Chan Gock, William SEE 100 - - 100
750 32,339 909 33,998
2010
—T-%F
Salaries  Retirement
Directors’ and other scheme
fee benefits  contribution Total
ek RIREE
o H {48 7 2 R B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT BT
Executive Directors HITES
Chow Yei Ching P - 10,098 - 10,098
Kuok Hoi Sang 2084 - 6,700 338 7,038
Tam Kwok Wing ELEIES - 3,700 158 3,858
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar 4 IE - 1,475 75 1,550
Ho Chung Leung fA] R AR - 1,934 75 2,009
Ho Sai Hou (note b) Al tt 5% (P 5L b) - 1,274 6 1,280
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph * & B A # 150 - - 150
Sun Kai Dah, George * REE" 150 = = 150
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles HER 150 = = 150
Ko Chan Gock, William (note ¢) 288 (MiEd) 100 = = 100
550 25,181 652 26,383
# Independent Non-Executive Director * BUFERTES
Notes: P 3 -

(a) Appointed on 1 September 2010.

(b)  Resigned on 16 September 2009.

(c)  Appointed on 1 April 2009.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals include three (2010: three) Directors,
details of whose emoluments are set out above. The total emoluments
paid to the remaining two (2010: two) highest paid individuals are as
follows:

43 EERERTHRAEZHME @)

& 5 5 B

RRABALTZHE BRER=2(CT-FF:
ZR)EE FEZHMeFBEHIIME X
NTFERTME(ZE—ZF : WE) &Koo
AT ZBFHMR

2011 2010

—E——F —E—TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RELREMMET 2,725 2,696
Performance-based bonus BRI BER 2 IEAT 5,244 4,131
Contributions to retirement scheme BIRE 2 101 99
8,070 6,926

The emoluments of the remaining two (2010: two) highest paid
individuals fall within the following bands.

EBEME(CT—2F MB)RSHFMIAL
AiReBE N R TIIAER

2011 2010
—2——F —T-FTF

HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 75 ¥ 2,000,001 7T — 78 %5 2,500,000 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 75 ¥ 2,500,001 7T — 78 £ 3,000,000 7T 1 =
HK$4,000,001-HK$4,500,000 75 1 4,000,001 7T — 78 £ 4,500,000 7T - 1
HK$5,000,001-HK$5,500,000 75 ¥ 5,000,001 7T — 78 % 5,500,000 7T 1 =
2 2

The above emoluments paid to Directors and employees also represent
only benefits paid to the Group’s key management during the year
ended 31 March 2011.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 March 2011, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of
guarantees issued for utilised borrowings in relation to:

ERRARRAREELREEXN 2ME  ABHE
REBEE-ZE——F=A=+—HIFERAEE
EXrEEREN 2B -

44 HREBE

R-ZB——F=A=+—H AEEREZH
RERMEH 2 BEROLABER :

2011 2010
—F——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BET T

Banking facilities granted to jointly BT SRR G 5 R

controlled entities and a joint venture —BEERH

partner ZIRITEE ‘ 168,300 262,430
Banking facilities granted to associates RTHERBZRITEE 218,941 120,928
387,241 383,358
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44 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 44 HAREE@®)
At 31 March 2011, the Company had contingent liabilities in respect of RZZE——F=A=+—8 ARGFEEEH
guarantees issued for utilised borrowings in relation to : FRERMIEL 2 BRAOSIABER
2011 2010
—2——F —EF-FF
HK$’000 HKS$°000
BT T BT
Banking facilities granted to subsidiaries BB R ZRITEE 650,254 809,444
Banking facilities granted to jointly BT HREHSER
controlled entities and a joint venture — B BB
partner ZRITEE 168,300 262,430
Banking facilities granted to associates BYMLAR Y RTEE 218,941 120,928
Performance bonds of subsidiaries MERRREE T&4
under certain contracts 2 BRR B 113,002 85,064
1,150,497 1,277,866
At 31 March 2011, the Group’s share of contingent liabilities of its RZT——F=A=+—H rxEEMHEHHL
jointly controlled entities are as follows: A2 %J EZINBBMOT :
2011 2010
= —TFF
HK$°000 HKS$’000
BT T BT T
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage BTRITABE T HRAES XL
facilities granted to certain buyers of MENETERZ
the jointly controlled entities” properties RS EENER 151,626 123,086
45 COMMITMENT 45 7RHE
At 31 March 2011, the Group had commitment as follows: RZZE——F=A=1T—H 5B ZEEN
T
2011 2010
= —EFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Contracted but not provided for in the #MTFIIEE B &AERE
consolidated financial statements in fra B ERE N
respect of ST 2 E A
— acquisition of plant and equipment —BARE k& 771 184
— a property development project —— A EERIER 101,954 300,397
— acquisition of a subsidiary (note 51(a)) —REA—EK B R R (MFEs51(a)) 583,975 =
686,700 300,581
Authorised but not contracted for in respect $t —EAY ¥ #ZERIEEE
of a property development project BOEBREL 2 EHE 2,513,731 1,999,584
3,200,431 2,300,165
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COMMITMENT (continued)
At 31 March 2011, the Group’s share of the commitment of its jointly
controlled entities is as follows:

45 FRIE (@)

R-ZB——F=A=+—H AEEMEEHX
RHE S B RZAFEWT

2011 2010

—E——F —E—TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT

Contracted but not provided for B AVERGTIR 288,756 288,269
Authorised but not contracted for EHEBRREL 412,368 292,698
701,124 580,967

OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of premises
which fall due as follows:

46 EEHE

AEEEREEA
AEBEREFEEREBETAIBEc SEBRSM
ERAREMz HEHRESTE - BLEMBAN
T

2011 2010

—g——& -T-z%

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT

Within one year R—FRA 80,506 115,004
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ERFERN 154,013 97,615
Over five years AEM E 64,181 2,779
298,700 215,398

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic
rentals, and do not include commitments for additional rental payable
(contingent rents), if any, which are to be determined generally by
applying pre-determined percentages to future sales less the basic rentals
of the respective leases, as it is not possible to determine in advance the
amount of such additional rentals.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties and completed
properties for sale with a carrying value of HK$1,411,432,000 (2010:
HK$1,255,136,000) and HK$57,775,000 (2010: HK$58,816,000)
respectively were rented out under operating leases. All of the properties
were leased out for periods ranging from one year to five years. The
future minimum lease payments receivable by the Group under non-
cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods is as
follows:

EREEAEESREAES AL ITBE
BONENES (HAER) (W) 2A&HE %5
BIMEE —RERAAKEEZERA D LRE
HEZEARAHEMERE A A EELEE
BINES 2 TR -

AEBMESEHEA

RIPERR ULEHEHEABREDERE
BRFEMEZIRAED B AE1,411,432,000
TT(=Z—TF : B %1,255,136,000 7T ) &5 1
57,775,000 70 (= T —Z 4 : % 58,816,000 7T) °
ZEMECHEFERA—SZRF  c REERE
T\;H%ﬁz%‘@%ﬂ%&fﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂ%fﬁﬂ%ﬁ%”ﬁz@
EER N

2011 2010

—E2——F T —FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Within one year R—FR 29,881 37,697
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ERFRN(BEEEME) 11,398 11,605
41,279 49,302
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SHARE OPTIONS

Share option scheme of the Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by the
shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on 20 September 2002 for
the primary purpose of providing the participants with the opportunity
to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The
Scheme will expire on 19 September 2012.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme and any other schemes is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of shareholders’ approval
of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10% limit is
refreshed, at the date of shareholders’ approval of the renewal of the
Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum aggregate number of shares which
may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes,
must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue from time to time. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Each grant of options to any
Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder must be approved by
Independent Non-executive Directors. Where any grant of options to a
substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-executive Director or any
of their respective associates would result in the shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of options already granted and to be
granted in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital and with
a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-month period up to the date
of grant must be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days from the date of
grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the effective
period of the Scheme to be notified by the Board of Directors which shall
not be later than 10 years from the date of grant. The exercise price is
determined by the Directors, and will not be less than the highest of the
closing price of the Company’s share on the date of grant, the average
closing price of the share on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and the nominal value.

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted would be 25,502,240 shares.
No options have been granted or exercised under the Scheme during the
year and none are outstanding as at 31 March 2011 (2010: nil).

Share options of CPHL

(i) Share option scheme — employee services
The share option scheme — employee services of a subsidiary of
the Company, CPHL (the “CPHL Scheme”) was adopted on 20
September 2002 and its terms are similar to the Company’s Scheme.
No options have been granted under the CPHL Scheme.

(ii) Share options — consultancy services
In addition to the share option scheme — employee services
mentioned in note 47(b)(i), on 10 February 2010, CPHL has
conditionally granted options to two consultants to subscribe for
an aggregate of 150,000,000 shares (after subdivision) at an initial
exercise price of HK$0.30 per share, subject to adjustment and an
option period of two years from the date of the option agreement.
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47 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(b) Share options of CPHL (continued)
(ii) Share options — consultancy services (continued)

The options may only be exercisable after the relevant consultants
have provided the consultancy services and the completion of the
investments by CPHL or its subsidiaries, in terms and conditions to
the satisfaction of CPHL. The consultancy services include sourcing
for and introduction of investment projects to CPHL and lining up
of investors for the said projects.

The fair value per option at grant date is HK$0.0856 and is
determined by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model.

No option is exercised or lapsed during the reporting period. As
at 31 March 2011, the number of outstanding share options is
150,000,000 shares at an exercise price of HK$0.30 per share (2010:
150,000,000 shares at HK$0.30 per share).

The significant inputs into the Binomial Option Pricing Model are

as follows:

Share price at the grant date HK$0.265
Exercise price per share HK$0.30
Expected volatility 66.46%
Expected life of options 2 years
Expected dividend yield 0.24%
Annual risk-free interest rate 0.52%

The volatility measured at the standard derivation of expected share
price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share price over
the last three years from the grant date.

The aggregate fair values of the above granted options amounting
to HK$12,840,000 are to be recognised as share options for
consultancy services received over the vesting period together with
a corresponding increase in equity. The expenses charged to the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2011
amounted to HK$6,420,000 (2010: HK$862,000).

48 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for the
benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in both defined contribution
schemes which are registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Schemes”) and Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes (the “MPF Schemes”) established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. For members of the MPF Schemes, the
Group contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs per employee per
month to the MPF Schemes. The ORSO Schemes are funded by monthly
contributions from both employees and the Group at rates ranging from
5% to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of
service with the Group.
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48

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes in
countries or locations where the Group operates. The Group is required
to make defined contributions at rates calculated as a certain percentage

or sum of the monthly payroll.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. At 31
March 2011 and 2010, there were no forfeited contributions, which
arose upon employees leaving the ORSO Schemes and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable in future years. The
amount of forfeited contributions utilised in this manner during
the year was HK$7,000 (2010: HK$34,000). At 31 March 2011,
contributions of HK$2,785,000 (2010: HK$2,582,000) due in respect of
the reporting period were paid over to variance schemes in April 2011.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 49

Details of the material transactions entered into during the year with

related parties are as follows:

EBARERN @
AEEMALEAEREL LB ARNE Y
EERASHE - AEEERBTHE - &8
IEAFMEFE LS BBHE -

AIESHBEKNERERERATERETERS
B REEEHDBD  AIEAEBIREEHER
ZHA R E——FR T TF=-_fF=+—
B AREMBMIAERBEZEEILELHLS
RARELERINREE - RAFE A AT
Bz ER BBEE7000T(ZE—ZF : &
#340007C) c M- E——F=F=+—H " &
R4S B PR AN 2 = 5T 81 4 3R 7B £ 2,785,000 7T
(ZE—FF : B¥2582,00T) BN T ——
FYALf e

BFREEALZRS
REFEAMEALTZEERSHBEMT -

2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Building management fee income Sl NIz
received from an associate BFEEER 1,591 428
Interest income received B B N A IRER 2 F B
from associates (note 6) WA (F5Es) 5,341 2,598
Interest income received from jointly B R4 il b 3 W ER 2
controlled entities (note 6) F B WA (FisEe) 8,194 11,782
Management fee received B Bt A R U E 2
from associates (note 6) EEEH (Kisto) 21,280 5,270
Management fee received from B Al 3
jointly controlled entities (note 6) WEz BEIEE M (FfE6) 16,089 60
Management fee paid to an associate m—HEEARINZEEER (349) (83)
Maintenance fee paid to an associate M—ABERAXNCRER (9,244) (135)
Rental income from an associate B — A AR WE 2 e WA 16,519 3,987
Rental expenses paid to an associate m—EEEA AR zEe (160) (35)
Sales and marketing services income B—RHEQARWEZHEE R
received from an associate (note 6) BRI WA (B st 6) 19,927 4,900
Secondment fee income received B — R R RIKER 2
from an associate EECE- T N 528 129
Service charges income from B — S QR
an associate AR7% & AR YA 700 149
Contract income from B 2k A 2 il 1 ZEWE 2
jointly controlled entities KA 192,384 115,485
Contract services fee paid to associates mEBtE NN ZEAREER (12,508) =
Contract income from associates B EE &R RIRE 2 & A A 12,940 =
Sales of food and beverages to an associate 1] —[EEi = A Al HE 2 B K 440 -
Purchases of food and beverages B—EE R aBE
from an associate 2B (547) =

The emoluments of the Directors, who are also considered to be key
management of the Group, during the year is set out in note 43.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA BB AR I A

50 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash (used in)/generated from operation

50 AR ERERMTE
(@ (AR) RKEEEZ2RE
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Restated
wE5|
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Profit before taxation B 5t A A 943,997 552,548
Adjustments for: THE
Share of results of associates PG B & 2 R 54 (106,027) (58,029)
Share of results of jointly controlled Fir fil $k [R1 22 i) 1 25
entities ES 13,264 (23,002)
Interest income from bank deposits RITHFERZF B WA (14,225) (4,624)
Interest income from associates REBE QAR ZFBERA (5,341) (2,598)
Interest income from jointly REHLREHEZ
controlled entities A B U A (8,194) (11,782)
Interest expenses on bank loans BITERREZZ
and overdrafts B W 13,692 22,114
Interest paid on convertible bonds AR E S 2 F X - 14,777
Dividend income from listed securities EmEHFZREWA (27,650) (10,394)
Depreciation e 54,166 68,569
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8 {< 76 & 5178 # 8 390 662
Amortisation of other intangible assets H fth B 71 & 2 8 5,037 9,212
Increase in fair value of investment Tx EWMEZRARE
properties 0 (163,174) (179,781)
Gain on disposal of investment HEREMEZ
properties Yz (799) -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  KE - XER
plant and equipment and TR HE A
prepaid lease payment, net 2 Was o HFE (247) (7,028)
Gain on disposal of: HENTEE 2 W
— 80% interest in Pacific Coffee Group — Pacific Coffee & & 2 80% 1 &
(note 50(c)(i)) (Fff 5 50(c) (1)) (217,361) =
— 2% interest in —ﬁﬂ:?%%@Z%%?&
CHK Group(note 50(c)(ii)) (B 50(c)(ii)) - (25,482)
— other subsidiaries (note 50(c)(iii)) — E 10 BT 8 & &) (BT 5E 50(c) (ii) ) - (6,765)
— Citiway Group (note 50(d)(i)) — 18 & B (FTEE50(d) (i) (169,431) -
— Smartco Group (note 50(d)(ii)) — Smartco & B (IKHE 50(d) (i) (208,270) =
Gain on discount from step-up 3 HE — ] B E NElER
acquisition of interest in an associate Z IRl - (3,269)
Gain on disposal of available-for- HERHHEZ
sale investments & B - (94,533)
(Gain)/loss on investments at RIERIREZAABREZEERN
fair value through profit or loss (2%, Eia (3,965) 27,854
Loss/(gain) on derivative financial PTHEME T A e (k)
instruments, net SRR 51,898 (22,778)
Fair value gain on derivative A ?ﬁ BESFITETARLD 2
component of convertible bonds NiEWZE - (30,488)
Loss on redemption of convertible bonds ~ f&[E AJ 32 [& (&5 2 E 18 - 31,101
Bad debts recovered B0z iR (1,628) (6,164)
Amortisation of properties for sale G- UEV& - 878 909
Write back of properties for sale to EIEGEMER
net realisable value A B3R %8 (8,348) (11,878)
Write down of inventories to WOR 77 & 2 ]
net realisable value, net BIHRE - FEE 5,917 15,336
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50 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

50 FEBRERERMT @
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CASH FLOWS (continued)
(a) Cash (used in)/generated from operation (continued) (@) (AR RELEEZRE(E
Restated
4 E 5|
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Impairment loss on property, plant ME - BEREHZ
and equipment, net B EE - R 9,198 5,140
Impairment loss on prepaid lease payment Ta I & IE 2 R EE1E 5,029 —
Impairment loss on goodwill 2 2 R EE B 36,507 29,174
Impairment loss on other intangible assets HihmE & E 2 RERE - 12,200
Impairment loss on available-for- AHEE 2 RE
sale investments Ve RIEN Sk - 46,243
Share options granted by a listed subsidiary —FHETER AT 2 ERE
— consultancy services received — BB ARG 6,420 862
Operating cash flows before EEELEHA 2
movements in working capital KEBHSR=E 211,733 338,106
Changes in working capital HEESE
Net (increase)/decrease in investments RIERIREAREREZEE
at fair value through profit or loss (), R EEE (45,423) 1,791
Increase in properties under development BRI ELM (324,140) (116,032)
Deposits repaid from a property EEERBE A —IBYE
development project in Mainland China BRIEB 25 & 115,229 —
Increase in inventories FEE (6,879) (40,816)
Decrease in properties for sale FEMER D 49,250 36,487
(Increase)/decrease in debtors, deposits FEWIRER - FHRe RIER
and prepayments RIE (), (139,217) 129,606
Decrease in amounts due from A A L2 FE M X F YER
customers for contract work Z FIE 1,774 44,665
Net increase in derivative 174 B 5 T B3 N
financial instruments ikl (100,256) (19,033)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts &5 Bt & R R IR 3K
due to associates CR 4,/ 1N (3,128) 3,332
Increase in amounts due to non- EANE e g
controlling interests FRIE N 4,699 =
Increase in amounts due to customers MEHNTIRREREFE
for contract work Sz FRIEE N 67,314 19,287
(Decrease)/increase in creditors, ERIER  BNEE TAERS R
bills payable, deposits and accruals FEIRE A O 2), 1 (44,257) 24,771
Increase in unearned insurance premiums 2R BB AR B & 38 0 43,802 34,930
Increase/(decrease) in outstanding RARERE
insurance claims 2=, G ) 15,932 (29,172)
Increase in deferred income EIEU A LE N 142 1,103
Exchange difference E XA 44,339 26,234
Cash (used in)/generated from (AR, RkE&E
operation ZHRe (109,086) 455,259

e
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50 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries

(i)

Business combination

On 15 December 2010, the Group entered into an agreement in
relation to the share exchange transaction (the “Share Exchange”)
involving the exchange of an independent third party’s 60% interest
in Metro Point Enterprise Company Limited (“Metro Point”) for
a 40% interest in Sinochina Enterprises Limited (“Sinochina”)
(change of name to Cafe Deco Holdings Limited on 19 May 2011),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. Pursuant to the terms of
the agreement, Sinochina was required to issue 400 new shares to
the independent third party that resulted in an effective disposal of
a 40% interest in Sinochina by the Group to the independent third
party (the “Sinochina Disposal”) in exchange for the total issued
share capital of Metro Point from the independent third party to
Sinochina (the “Metro Point Acquisition”). The transaction was
completed on 21 December 2010 (the “Completion Date”) and the
Group and the independent third party respectively hold 60% and
40% of interest in Sinochina.

As part of the Share Exchange arrangement, an amount of
HK$24,920,000 was paid by Sinochina to the independent third
party as partial repayment of the amount due to the independent
third party by a wholly owned subsidiary of Metro Point before
the Share Exchange. In this regard, HK$9,968,000 (40% of
HK$24,920,000) is deemed as part of the consideration paid and
proceeds received.

50 FEBRERERMT @

(b) WeEE KR A R

(i)

E S

RZZE—ZTF+_ATHA  X&EEFT
S RB Y RSB E =7 R Metro
Point Enterprise Company Limited ([ Metro
Point|) Z 60% Em XM AL E 2 EHE A
A]Sinochina Enterprises Limited ([ Sinochina |)
(R=ZZE——FH A +NHSHE RCafe
Deco Holdings Limited) 2 40% #& # 2 f% 15
/RS ([P ]) o RIFZ e 2 1%
3K * SinochinaZB [A] %) 37 28 = 75 %5 17 400 JR
Mk BERASERABYLE=7ERL
% Sinochina Z 40% #& % ([ Sinochina i &
FI8]) A B % = 75 X Metro Point 2
2B FITRA ([ Metro Point Wi F 15 )
T Sinochina ° ZRXRHER T —FF+=
AZ+—BUZ=KBE]) =K MAEE
K J8 57 8 =75 5 Bl #F A Sinochina Z 60% &
40% HE 7w ©

EARMDRBEZHEH —E04 » Sinochina[A]
B E = 5 A %6 24,920,000 7T 1E A IR
19 22 A H] Metro Point 2 & 1B A Bl FE 15
NEBEZREERBZ —HH oM E
785 15 9,968,000 7T (75 M 24,920,000 T Z 40%)
WRAEBNREMEWAEHIEZ —HD -

Details of the net assets attributable to the Metro Point Acquisition Metro Point Wi FIHEEEEFEZFIB
are as follows: O
HK$’000
BT T
40% of the fair value of Sinochina valued by an  FA 52X B BB 37 {k & Al Sinochina
independent valuer at the Completion Date N E40% 2 EH1E 24,299
Add: Deemed consideration paid m:ERENRE 9,968
34,267
Less: 60% of the fair values of net assets o TR EEEFEARE
acquired (as shown below) 2 60% (20~ SCPTR) (14,379)
Goodwill arising on the Metro Point Acquisition Metro Point W f§ E IHE £ 2 52
(note 18) (MI3E18) 19,888

BB CEETRERANMIE .2 IR EK
&?EE,HHE’SMetm Point 5 EIRIRE AL Z 1

Goodwill is attributable to the service team acquired and synergies
are expected to arise from the Metro Point Acquisition.
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CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Business combination (continued)

&5 B W B ok I G

50 rERERERMEF @

(b) WeEBRE 2R (&)

(i)

The net assets of Metro Point acquired are as follows:

XBast(E)
Fir U B8 Metro Point < & E FEWT :

Carrying
amounts Fair values
R E B ARE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Property, plant and equipment M - BB K&
(note 16) (FFzE16) 50,802 50,802
Other intangible assets — trademarks  Hth &2 & &= — 1%
(note 19) (FF7E19) - 13,639
Other intangible assets — favourable HihmpEE—FHHEE
leases (note 19) (FfF5E19) - 11,855
Interest in an associate (note 21) Frih —fEE & A | 2 e (HEE21) 841 1,064
Inventories FE 3,729 3,729
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWIRTR 7R e RIEFKIE 29,373 29,373
Cash and cash equivalents B MIBEEEY 35,643 35,643
Pledged bank deposits EHEARITE R 835 835
Amount due to Sinochina J& {5t Sinochina 2 7K T8 (50,057) (50,057)
Amount due to an independent ENBLE=72
third party RIE (7,485) (7,485)
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERIRS - FARE RBRES (43,208) (43,208)
Dividend payable eI AR B (8,615) (8,615)
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHEaE (3,369) (3,369)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net REFHBEE,(AE)
(note 40) ( Pt 5% 40) 1,788 (2,419)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR AE (7,822) (7,822)
2,455 23,965
Non-controlling interest recognised 1 Metro Point Y % 1812 TSR 2
upon the Metro Point Acquisition FEVERR HE 2 (9,586)
14,379
Metro Point contributed post-tax losses of HK$262,000 to the Metro Point H e B i E —F ——F =

Group for the period from the Completion Date to 31 March 2011.

If the Metro Point Acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2010, the
Group’s revenue and profit for the year ended 31 March 2011
would have been increased by HK$214,520,000 and HK$12,282,000

respectively.
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50 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 50
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) (b)

Business combination (continued)
The gain on the Sinochina Disposal recognised in equity is as
follows:

MEBESRERMTE @

W B B A B) (78

i) FBE/GEE)
FA 2 T 7R Z Sinochina [ € F 18 2 & 1A
T

HK$’000
BT
40% of net assets disposed of: FTHH & & B R E 2 40% :
Property, plant and equipment M - BE K& 9,880
Goodwill RS 17,016
Other intangible assets — trademarks HAh & B — iR 3,653
Interests in associates Fr{hit& A el 2 Em 397
Inventories FE 1,365
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWIRER - FHRe RIFERFKIE 5,737
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries JE W () 24 Bff JB8 2 ] 2 FRIE 11,271
Bank balances and cash RITEFRIAS 7,717
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FE {1 [B) Z Bf |88 A 7] 2 7R IE (2,115)
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERIRFE - FARERBRER (5,009)
Derivative financial instrument PTEMKIA (8,164)
Dividend payable JE -1 AR B (8,258)
Deferred income BT A (96)
Current income tax liabilities EHMGENaE (1,276)
Deferred tax liabilities RLEHEAE (288)
31,830
Less: 60% of the fair value of Metro Point B TR B HAYE N (A A R
valued by an independent valuer #J Metro Point 60%
at the Completion Date ARBEZHE 24,299
Deemed proceeds received W EE WA 9,968
Gain on disposal recognised in equity RiEmER 2 S W 2,437

Net cash inflow arising from the Metro Point Acquisition:

Metro Point W i £ I8 2 I8 £ /i AJHEE ¢

HK$’000
BET R

Cash and cash equivalents acquired EREALRGRREEEY

35,643
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LA M R WA
50 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 50 REREREBRMET @
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) (b) WEBKHEARE
(ii) Acquisition of Great Dragon (i) WEERE

On 2 October 2009, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share
capital of Great Dragon Petroleum Limited (“Great Dragon”) from
independent third parties.

RZZBZENFETAZHE  AEERBILE
=HWBEEAHRAERAR(ERDM2
BT BT

HK$°000
BETT

Purchase consideration satisfied by: WHERB XA :
Cash paid EERE A 5,000
Direct expenses relating to the acquisition BRANEFENEE SN 111
Fair values of net liabilities acquired FEBEABBREZARE 6
Goodwill arising from the acquisition (note 18) W f# FE 18 = 4 7 i5E (£ 18) 5,117

The net liabilities of Great Dragon acquired on 2 October 2009 are

RZZEZNFETAZBE FIKEBEEZA

as follows: BEFRET :
Carrying
amounts Fair values
R & ARE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Other creditors and accruals HiEMIEALBREA 6 6

Net cash outflow arising from the acquisition:

WEERZRESREFER

HK$°000

BT
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (5,000)
Direct expenses relating to the acquisition BRKEEHEBEEXN (111)
(5,111)

Since the acquisition, Great Dragon did not contribute revenue BUWEEEE BERREEZE T —ZTF =8

to the Group and had incurred loss of HK$3,594,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2010.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2009, the Group’s
revenue and profit for the year ended 31 March 2010 would have
been increased by HK$450,000 and decreased by HK$16,000
respectively.
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50 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries
(i) Disposal of the Group’s 80% interest in the Pacific Coffee Group

On 28 June 2010, the Group entered into an agreement to dispose
of its 80% equity interest in Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited
(“PCC”) and its subsidiaries (the “Pacific Coffee Group”) to China
Resources Enterprise, Limited (“CRE”), an independent third
party. The completion of the disposal took place on 7 July 2010.

50 FEBRERERMT @
) HEMBEAD

(i) H & 7 £ B A Pacific Coffee &£ B 2 80%
R

R-ZZTE—ZTEXA-_+/\B AEBT
37 1k & B R Pacific Coffee (Holdings)
Limited ([PCCJ) K H Fff J& 2 & ([ Pacific
Coffee 55 B |) 2 80% X #E TR = H &
HElEARAR([EEEZE]D - HEER

—FFFELAELAEK-

HK$’000
BET T
Total consideration satisfied by: BREUTIEEXZN
Cash received 2R & 326,640
Fair value of 20% retained equity FiT 1 Pacific Coffee 55 B 2 20%
interest in Pacific Coffee Group (note 21) REBEESN R E(FFE21) 53,095
Put option value (note a) Roh EEEE (MEa) 36,360
Less: Professional fees and expenses B BEEARXE (3,000)
413,095
Net assets disposed of: EHECEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) I E RN ELACT IO, 40,676
Goodwill (note 18) 2 (Pf sk 18) 34,260
Other intangible asset — trademark (note 19) H & E - i (e 19) 99,000
Other non-current assets BEIERBEE 17,833
Deferred tax assets (note 40) PRIEFETE & B (B 5E40) 107
Inventories FE 7,879
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWIRER - FHiRe RIERFKIE 20,315
Prepaid tax TR HiE 683
Bank balances and cash RITEFRIAS 26,674
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERIRZ FARS RTERER (25,385)
Deferred income R FEWA (8,315)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 40) IEIERIE & & (M £ 40) (16,335)
Exchange fluctuation reserve SNE R AT ENRE (1,658)
195,734
Gain on disposal of 80% interest in i £ Pacific Coffee 5 B 2 80% # 51 2 W &
Pacific Coffee Group (note /3) (note 7) (P 5EB) (BT sE7) 217,361
Net cash inflow arising from the disposal: HEMEE RS RAFHE :
HK$°000
BETT
Cash consideration received BWRERE 326,640
Bank balances and cash disposed of EHERTEERRS (26,674)
Professional fees and expenses EXBERLRXH (3,000)
296,966
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50 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)
(i) Disposal of the Group’s 80% interest in the Pacific Coffee Group

(continued)
Notes:

(ii)

(@)

Put option value

Pursuant to the shareholders agreement dated 7 July 2010, CRE has granted a
put option to the Group to sell the issued share capital of PCC retained by the
Group within three years. The exercise price of the put option is the higher
of (i) HK$81,660,000, and (ii) 12.1 times of the earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation as shown in the audited consolidated income
statement of the Pacific Coffee Group for the latest financial year prior to the
exercise of the put option multiplied by the percentage of shareholding of the
Group in PCC.

The fair value of the put option at the date of grant was assessed by Jones Lang
LaSalle Sallmanns, a firm of independent valuers, using the Binominal Option
Pricing Model. The significant inputs into the model are value of the equity
interest at the grant date, exercise price, expected life of the option, annual risk-
free rate and expected volatility which was based on the statistical analysis of
volatility of weekly share prices of comparable companies over the last three
years before the grant date.

Gain on disposal of 80% interest in Pacific Coffee Group

The gain on disposal of interest in the Pacific Coffee Group included the gains
of HK$203,744,000 on the 80% equity interest sold (net of professional fees and
expenses) and HK$13,617,000 on re-measurement of the 20% retained equity
interest at the date of disposal.

Disposal of the Group’s 2% interest in the CHK Group

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 28 November
2008, the Group disposed of its 49% interest in Chevalier
(HK) Limited, subsidiaries and associates engaged in lifts and
elevators business (the “CHK Group”) for a consideration of
HK$668,360,000 on 31 March 2009. As at 31 March 2009, the assets
and liabilities related to the CHK Group were presented as held for

sale.
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() HEMEAT(H)

@)

(i)

e

E%ﬁEHRMﬁdMMEEZm%

(@) REHEEE

BRER-ZZT—ZFLACtHIUZREHHE &
HEAIXEETAEEREHE  UR=FRAH
EXEERBZPCCEHITRA - RIHEIREZ1T
FEEATIZ&EE : (1) ¥81,660,000 T : &
(i) PA1T 2 3R BA#E Al 2 B3 — {E B4 B & /Z Pacific
Coffee £ B 2 & B IZ IR A& WER R TR 2 REHFIE -
B WERBHEAZEMZ 12116 - FUARE
BTG PCCZIREB DL °

ROAAENEE AR AR BEBLAEMITH
BETAPIER A BIA B T ERA T -
BAZERHASRBERERNR L AR EE -
TEE - PRZBHFH  SERREHNXREAD
RENEE (DRBAIE B A BN & B HIA =
FRAFEREZRBEEEEAMEH)

(B) % Pacific Coffee £ [ 2 80% HE x5 & Uz

£ Pacific Coffee E HiERF Z WEBERHER
H 55 80% R 1 2 W &5 745 5 203,744,000 70 (F1BR 3
BRARIW) REHE220% R B RE 2 BB
# 13,617,000 7T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA BB AR I A

0 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)
(ii) Disposal of the Group’s 2% interest in the CHK Group (continued)
Pursuant to the same agreement, the Group has further disposed BER—MDHZE AEER-_ZFZNF
of its 2% interest in the CHK Group on 15 December 2009 for + = A+ & B UK E S % 27,280,000 7T 5
a consideration of HK$27,280,000. Upon the completion of the HERE T RBERE 220  HE2%

50 rERERERMEF @

(c) HEKE2XRGE)
(ii) &’EﬂKilﬁAEi?,&%Zz%Eé(F)

disposal of the 2% interest, the remaining 49% is accounted for as EmTHE R T % ERIERAEEZ
an associate by the Group. X UNCIDNG R
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BB
Total consideration satisfied by: BAREZWEG R
Cash received BEIRE 27,280
Less: Professional fees and expenses W BEEARTH (292)
26,988
Less: Consolidated net assets disposed of B BHEZEREEEFEE
Assets of disposal group (note) HESE & E () 444913
Liabilities of disposal group (note) HESEE 28 E (M) (220,803)
Exchange reserve INE B IR R (8,749)
Retained profits as at 31 December i §ﬂ¢ +TZA=+—H2
2009 (note) R ) (B AE) (140,048)
Net assets as at —EEAFE+_A=+—BZ
31 December 2009 BERE 75,313
2% consolidated net assets of EHEHELTHBEE 2%
CHK Group disposed of ZrekEFE 1,506
Gain on disposal of 2% interest HEETEEBEEZ 2%
in CHK Group (note 7) a2 W (MisE7) 25,482
Net cash outflow arising from the disposal: S PTEE 4 2 3R B R
HK$°000
BT T
Cash consideration received BUIHRERE 27,280
Bank balances and cash disposed of BHEZEITEFNRS (118,322)
Professional fees and expenses EXBERALRXH (292)
(91,334)
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»T

50 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)
(ii) Disposal of the Group’s 2% interest in the CHK Group (continued)
Note:

Pursuant to the agreement between the Group and the acquirer, 51% of retained
profits of the disposal group as at 31 December 2009 are to be shared by the Group
(according to the equity interest in the CHK Group before 15 December 2009).

The net assets of the CHK Group disposal of on 31 December 2009 were as follows:

& W B ok W Ak

50 rERERERMEF @

() HEWB2R(E)
(ii) %AEZ!K%EAEi?%%Zz%Eé(%’?)
5% -

REAEEERES 2 Hs HEESER-_FTThF
TZA=t+—AZREBEFAREE (G510 (GRER =
ZENFT_A+THAMRNELIEBEEZREME)

BEHEAELEREER _ZTTAF+_A=+—HZ

EEF DT
HK$000
BETIT
Property, plant and equipment M - BB LkRE 8,696
Prepaid lease payments BN EERA 3,516
Goodwill 5k 3,259
Deferred tax assets iR k HIBEE 1,450
Inventories & 49,380
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWIRTR - FHIRE RN KIEA 153,439
Amounts due from customers for contract work HEHTIRERZ S W2 RIE 106,029
Prepaid tax TR BiIE 822
Bank balances and cash WITHEGFERES 118,322
Assets of disposal group HESBECEE 444,913
Amount due to ultimate holding company JE A R AR AR AR 1 B IR AR (28,085)
Amounts due to customers for contract work MANIRBATEI N Z2REA (50,098)
Derivative financial instruments PTHEBBTA (51)
Creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals EAER  BNEE - FARSRBIRER (122,022)
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHARE (19,882)
Bank borrowings RITER (434)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIA B R (231)
Liabilities of disposal group HESBEzAE (220,803)
(iii) Disposal of the Group’s 90.1% interest in subsidiaries engaged in (i) HEASERERPEANLEESIER EE
project management and consultancy services in Mainland China A RIS 2 B 2 B 2 90.1% fE &
On 17 June 2009, the Group disposed of its 90.1% interest in RZZFTNFANA+TER ARBREY
subsidiaries engaged in project management and consultancy f%?ﬁﬁj%/ﬁé ‘PERBHEREEER
services in Mainland China to an independent third party. 5 R AR 7% 2 N /B A ]2 90.1% #E %S ©
HKS000
BT
Total consideration satisfied by: BREZ WA
Cash received BUIRE 34,508
Waiver of amount due to the Company e RS ADQRIIRRK (27,073)
e
Net assets disposed of: BHEZEEFE :
Property, plant and equipment EN & 11
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEW IR ~ 7 R & R T RIE 29,634
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRRS 8,164
Amount due to ultimate holding company A SR A 2 PR R AR SR (27,073)
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERS  FARESRBRER (169)
Current income tax liabilities EHMAEHAR (323)
Non-controlling interests FRELE S (3,853)
Exchange fluctuation reserve GV H T By ik e (5,721)
,,,,,,,,, 670
Gain on disposal of the subsidiaries (note 7) o BB 1 ) 2 Mg (B EE7) 6,765
Net cash inflow arising from the disposal: HEMEE RS MAFE :
_HK$°000
BT
Cash consideration received BRBREKE 34,508
Bank balances and cash disposed of BHEZRITEFRRAS (8,164)
— 26,344
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&5 B W B ok I G

0 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(d) Disposal of subsidiaries and their jointly controlled entities
(i) Disposal of the Group’s entire interest in the Citiway Group
On 22 March 2010, the Group entered into an agreement to dispose
of its entire equity interest in the Citiway Group. The completion
of the disposal took place on 9 April 2010. Further details of the
disposal are disclosed in note 8(a).

50 rERERERMEF @

(d) HEKBARRAHEEGRE
(i) HEAXAKBERBEEE ZEZHEDS
R-ZZE-—FTFE=A_+_H AKEFZ
— ek - HEERNBURERE 2 22 AHE o
HEER_FE-—FFHANBTK - HE
B 8(a) B ©

HK$’000
BT
Total consideration and loan repayment BRERERER
satisfied by: ZWEL R
Deposit received as at 31 March 2010 RZE—F=A=+—HBKZEs 29,982
Remaining cash consideration received BB THEERE 152,440
Repayment of loans BEEX 117,398
Less: Professional fees and other expenses B BEERREMTH (20,966)
278,854
Net assets disposed of: BHEZEEFE :
Interest in a jointly controlled entity Frfh —F R Gk s
(note 33) (P 3£ 33) 23,206
Amount due from a jointly JE Wi — ] 3 [ 4%
controlled entity (note 33) 10 SR 3k (BT 5E 33) 90,402
Exchange fluctuation reserve HNE R IF B (4,185)
109,423
Gain on disposal of Citiway Group (note 8(a)) & EEE 2 W= (HE8(a)) 169,431
Net cash inflow for the year ended HE_Z——F=A=+—RBILFE "
31 March 2011 arising from the disposal: HEMEEZRESRAERE :
HK$’000
BETT
Cash received BEUIRE
— consideration —RE 152,440
— repayment of loans —EBER 117,398
Professional fees and other expenses paid ENfEXERAREMET N (2,725)
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& 6 W R W AR
50 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 50 RERBRMBRME @
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(d) Disposal of subsidiaries and their jointly controlled entities (@ HEMBARREAREZESREE(E)
(continued)
(ii) Disposal of the Group’s entire interest in the Smartco Group (i) HEXRKBE R Smartco KRB Z 2 %IHE?:E
On 3 April 2010, the Group entered into an agreement to dispose K\;f —= FMA=H" ' A&EEFZ —_IE
of its entire equity interest in the Smartco Group. The completion e - ﬁ & H A Smartco £ E 2 2 E‘E P #E -
of the disposal took place on 10 July 2010. Further details of the HEER_F—TFL/f+HARK - HE
disposal are disclosed in note 8(b). FEIERHIES(b) HFE ©
HK$’000
BETT
Total consideration and loan repayment BRERERER
satisfied by: ZWE R
Cash consideration received BEYIRERE 186,456
Consideration receivable R KB 59,544
Repayment of loans BEEX 286,052
Less: Professional fees and other expenses W BEEAREMETH (40,792)
491,260
Net assets disposed of: BHEZEEFE :
Interest in a jointly controlled entity Fifb — R A6 2 2
(note 33) (P 7% 33) 149,951
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity [ — 5 £ [E4% 1 S 0R 5K
(note 33) (Pff7E33) 135,092
Exchange fluctuation reserve INE HAF ENRE (2,053)
282,990
Gain on disposal of Smartco Group (note 8(b)) Hi%& Smartco £ 2 # 55 (F5E 8(b)) 208,270
Net cash inflow for the year ended HE-_Z——F=A=+—HILFE"
31 March 2011 arising from the disposal: HEMEE RS RAFE :
HK$’000
BYETT
Cash received BERE
— consideration —KE 186,456
— repayment of loans —EBEER 286,052
Professional fees and other expenses paid ENEEERREMSH (8,873)

463,635
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&5 B W B ok I G

0 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 50 RERBRMBRME @
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(e) Step-up acquisition of interest in an associate (e) i“‘ E§ Fﬁ BE AT ZER
On 30 September 2009, the Group acquired the remaining 76% ZNFNA=TH  RNEE R — S
registered capital of an associate, Guangzhou Chevalier Development 7 Z FERRUERMTELTERBR DA
Company Limited from major shareholders. Upon completion of the %Uﬁ%%% M E A o WS BRI - % E A A
acquisition, the associate became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the KAAEEZZ2EWE AT
Group.
HK$°000
BT T
Purchase consideration satisfied by: WERE AR
Waiver of a receivable of the Group from WMEREEEK 5% &N A 76% fE
the 76% registered owners of the associate BREE AR 1,416
Fair value of assets acquired (as shown below) FIBABEEZAARAEBEM@ATAIR) (6,164)
(4,748)
Transfer from interest in an associate (note 21) EEATh— M E AR 2 s (HaE21) 1,479
Gain on discount from step-up acquisition of b R NG|
interest in an associate (note 7) R 2 ez dias (B EE7) (3,269)
Fair value of net assets acquired: FBABEEREZAAE:
HK$°000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) ) % B 5= B2 % 8 (P 3 16) 59
Inventories FE ) 1,675
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FE U 'F§ CFHRE RFEMNKIE 7,796
Bank balances and cash HRATA T_ &k 318
Creditors and accruals JE 155 IR 5% K2 & 5T B R (3,167)
Current income tax liabilities EHMGEHaE (517)
6,164
Net cash inflow arising from the acquisition: WHEFTEE 2 RS MAFHE
HK$°000
BT T
Bank balances and cash acquired FBARTEFELRES 318
If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2009, the Group’s revenue and WMEER _EZENFEOA—BEE - BIXE
profit for the year ended 31 March 2010 would have been increased by ERE_Z—ZF=ZA=1+—HILEFEZRK
HK$14,952,000 and HK$2,175,000 respectively. A K B 5 Rl & A0 14,952,000 7T K2 B B
2,175,000 JT °©
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A MR

51 EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING PERIOD

52

(a)

(c)

(d)

On 6 January 2011, the Group entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to acquire the 100% equity interest in and
a loan granted to Kwai Hei Investments No.1 Limited (“Kwai Hei”),
a private limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong
engaged in property investment, at an aggregate consideration of
HK$686,500,000 (subject to adjustments). The transaction was
completed subsequent to the reporting period on 1 April 2011 and
Kwai Hei has become a subsidiary of the Group. As at 31 March
2011, deposit of HK$102,525,000 has been paid by the Group.

On 27 May 2011, the Group entered into an agreement with two
independent third parties to acquire the 100% equity interest and
a shareholder loan of a group of companies owning a property in
Tsing Yi Island, at an aggregate consideration of HK$286,000,000
(subject to adjustments). The transaction was completed
subsequent to the reporting period on 15 June 2011 and the group
of companies has become subsidiaries of the Group.

On 23 May 2011, the Company announced, among others, that
it was in discussions with a potential purchaser regarding a
possible disposal of its entire shareholding in CPHL (“Possible
Disposal”) which might involve certain asset reorganisation (“Asset
Reorganisation”). As of the approval date of these consolidated
financial statements, trading in the shares of the Company was
suspended pending an announcement to be made by the Company
regarding details of the Possible Disposal and Asset Reorganisation.

On 31 May 2011, the Group entered into three agreements with
three independent third parties respectively to acquire three
properties currently operated as seniors housing communities in
Oregon, USA, at a total consideration of US$34,896,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$272,189,000). The transaction is expected to
be completed on or before 30 June 2011.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

51

H]E
(a)

(b)

BB =18
ﬁfﬁ——i HAE AEEEBTE
=H RN 1A (B 7 5 686,500,000

o (A F =& ) Hﬁl ,ﬁﬁ Kwai Hei Investments
No.1 Limited ([ Kwai Heil) 2 1009 % & & {&
F Kwai Hei Z B3 ° Kwai Hei & — KRR &
MY REMEREZAABRA
Al ZRHGEMSHER T ——FMA
—H 5K ¢ M Kwai Hei & B A& 7N & B 2 [}
BAR -R=ZT——F=A=+—H K
S E BT H E e B 102,525,000 7T ©

R-ZZE——FRA-++H AEBHHER
BB = HRI M e 0 AKEEE A LR
EXEZ —EWEN—HER A Z100% %
BEERBERER  RRE A 286,000,000
TL(A] THAE) c ZRHGEREHEBENR=F
——EXNATHBZK > MZARFZK
BAEEZHB AT

R-FE——FARA=-+=H ARAEE
(ﬁ¢@ﬁﬂ£ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ REHEHER
HEZhz2BRE(HRELEDIELRE
oSS RE $§F§@U§FE@D°
R EGATBRERMZBY  AAFZ
BRNEREEES  UEARATIGLATFEH

ENBEBHEFBRERAS

>¢

F:?**E£HE+*H'$EEQ
AlE=ZZBYE =Rl =t
M@ﬁﬁ%wmw%ﬂﬁﬁM%%%
272,189,000 7T ) U5 B8 {32 7 3¢ B B B ) N B Al
EAREREEN="TBNWE - ZRXHBEH
RZE——FNAZ+HHZAITK °

52 XEM BT

Place or Issued and Effective percentage
country of paid up share of issued share
incorporation capital/ capital/registered
or registration/ Class of registered Number of capital held by the
Name of company operation shares capital shares Company Principal activities
) ADAREERS
i/ E Y GETTH BA/ERER )
AFAR AR kg5l Ra/ERRE Rtt%E ZERAAL TERE
Directly Indirectly
& ]
% %
Cafe Deco Franchise Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 3248 Restaurant
B e AR 5E
Cafe Deco Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 3248 Restaurant
B e BRI 5E
Cafe Deco Macau lelted Macau Ordinary MOP25,000 2 - 3248 Restaurant and trading
SEERRAT AP £ 25,0027 of food and beverages
2ERENES
Capital World (HK.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,000 5,000 - 3048 Restaurant and bar
E% (BB BRAT Bk B AR5 00T ZEREE
Champ Success (Hon g Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 3048 Restaurant
e (B ARAT 0 i AT 2k
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52 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 52 FEMB QT &)
Place or Issued and Effective percentage
country of paid up share of issued share
incorporation capital/ capital/registered
or registration/ Class of registered Number of capital held by the
Name of company operation shares capital shares Company Principal activities
ARARRERT
i/ EELE BEARMRE R/ 2RRA
L FEZR RO EH B&/ERRA Rt¥E ZEREA TERH
Directly Indirectly
B B
% %
Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 100 Supply and installation of
Hong Kong Limited (0 B BT aluminium building materials
HI(HIE)BRARAM and curtain walls
RERENHREE
Bl ERTR
Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Supply and installation of
Limited (note(d)) & g B0 aluminium building materials
HT(BIR)ARAA Deferred HKS? 2 - 100 and curtain walls
(K3t (d)) it AT RERENHRHE
Bl ERTSR
Chevalier Automobiles Inc. Canada Common C$101 200 - 100 Sale and servicing of automaobiles
JIEIN 3 WIMEAT NEHERBERE
Chevalier (Building Supplies & Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Supply and installation of
Engineering) Limited (note(d)) &b # B0 building materials and equipment
ﬁi%ﬁﬂﬁi)ﬁﬁﬁﬁ Deferred HKS) 2 - 100 BRI ER TR
(W& (d) it BT
Chevalier (Chengdu) Investment Mainland China Not RMB250,000,000 Not Applicable - 100 Tnvestment holding and
Management Limited (note (a)) RER applicable AR 250,0000007T AER providing management service
Eﬁ@%‘ﬂ)}&ﬁﬁf%ﬂﬁﬂﬂ NER RERRRRHERRH
Vi (a)
Chevalier Chrysler Inc. Canada Common Cs101 200 - 100 Sale and servicing of automobiles
JIIEYN £ INEAT MEHEREERK
Chevalier Cold Storage and Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 75 Operation of a cold storage
Logistics Limited (0 Bl BT warehouse and logistic business
ELREMERAA BERREERMIER
Chevalier (Construction) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,500,000 60,500,000 - 9.6 Building construction and
Company Limited Bk A 760,500,000 70 maintenance
AL (BE)ARAT BFRERRE
Chevalier Construction (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 - 100 Building construction
Limited (note (d)) A% 3 BE1L0007T BTEE
RLRE(ER)BRAA Deferred HKS$10,000 1,000 - 100
(W3 (d) B AR100007
Chevalier (Corporate Management) Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 100 Provision of corporate
Limited Bk iy BT management services
A (R2ER)ARAT RUCEEERH
Chevalier Development (S) Pte.Ltd. Singapore Ordinary §$2,500,000 2,500,000 - 100 Property investment
g 2R 2300000 IR TT VES &
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LA M mE M
52 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 52 TEMBELI @)
Place or Issued and Effective percentage
country of paid up share of issued share
incorporation capital/ capital/registered
or registration/ Class of registered Number of capital held by the
Name of company operation shares capital shares Company Principal activities
] $1T5EERS
/208 BRRAR BE/EREE
ARER 3E% B8 RE/ERRE RH%E ZERAES ITER
Directly Indirectly
Bk Bk
% %
Chevalier Enviro Services, Inc. Philippines Common Peso8,750,000 87,500 - 100 Waste disposal treatment services
ez £ 8750000 BE LR BEENRERH
Chevalier (E & M Contracting) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$69,200,000 69,200,000 - 100 Installation of electrical and mechanical
AT (METR)BRAA Bk iy 7E%69,200000 7T equipment and provision of
project management service
RERERBRELERCERE
Chevalier (Envirotech) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$148,600,000 148,600,000 - 100 Environmental engineering
AT (RERM)BRAA B R 781 148,600,000 BRIE
Chevalier (Insurance Brokers) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 100 - Insurance brokerage
AT (RBEM)ERAR 0 B8 1,000,000 RIER
Chevalier Insurance Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 100 - Insurance underwriting
ETRRARAA 0 E 1 200,000,0007T R 2%
Chevalier International (USA) Inc. USA. Common US$4,012,000 4,012,000 - 100 Grocery trading
*H E 401200057 HEES
Chevalier Tech Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 100 Trading and servicing of computer
ATHRIRERAR & R BEIT and business machines
SRREEREE S REL
Chevalier iTech Thai Limited (note (b))~ Thailand Ordinary BAHT18,980,000 189,800 - 100 Trading of computer and
(FizE (b)) % LE 18,980,000 % % business machines
Preference BAHTI,020,000 10,200 - 100 SHRAZESES
Bx 1,020,000 %4k
Chevalier (Macau) Limited Macau Ordinary MOP100,000 2 - 100 Building construction and
EL (2R ERAR A B AR 100007 installation of ar-conditioning
systems and aluminum building
materials and curtain walls
BFRERTERREZLR
REREIHRABRSE
Chevalier (Network Solutions) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HEKS2 2 - 100 Network systems and solution services
ET(RERR)BRAT B ga BT BEZBRBERE
Chevalier Network Solutions Thailand Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 Trading of telecommunication
Thai Limited % 3] 15,000,000 5% equipment
EREGEY
Chevalier (OA) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 100,000 - 100 Trading of computer and office
HT(BXZ5)ERAA B iy AEE1000007T equipment and provision of
repalr and maintenance service
SMRAAZRES AR
B RRERS
Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited Bermuda/ Ordinary HK$118,754,758.50 2,375,095,170 54,14 - Tnvestment holding
(lsted on The Stock Exchange) Hong Kong R 11875475850 T RERR
£+ 750RERAT Ak/3%
(B L)
Chevalier Pipe Rehabilitation Hong Kong Ordinary HK$43,400,000 43,400,000 - 100 Design and construction for
Hong Kong Limited &k A 43,400,000 7T flushing water, cooling water, gas,
ETREBREAERAA sewages and drainage pipelines
Tt REERA - 2K R
KRKEEE
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52 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

52 FEMB QT &)

Place or Issued and Effective percentage
country of paid up share of issued share
incorporation capital/ capital/registered
or registration/ Class of registered Number of capital held by the
Name of company operation shares capital shares Company Principal activities
) AATRACRS
i/ B0% GETTH B/ aRE ”
AIER FEX kAl BA&/ERER R#&E PA_ TPl TERH
Directl Indirect]
B8
% %
Chevalier Property Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$360,000,000 360,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Limited (note(d)) B LE 71360,000,000 T investment
ETWERARAA (M () Deferred HKS31 51 - 100 MERERIRE
£ REsIT
Chevalier Property Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Property management and
Limited (note(d)) & 3] BE1007T security services
ETEENFERARLR(KE () Deferred HKS1,002 1,002 - 00 NEERRRZES
EX B L0NT
Chevalier (Satellink) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,165,000 1,165,000 - 100 Installation and maintenance of
ET(BRBA)BRARA BE L& A 1,165,0007C satellite antennae
ZRARBGERERR
Chevalier (Travel Agency) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,500,000 15,000 - 100 Travel agency
ELRERRAR BR &8 EH1,500,0007C R
CIH (BVI) Limited Britsh Virgin ISands ~~ Ordinary USs1 1 100 - Investment holding
ARERRRE 28 E RERR
CPC Construction Hong Kong Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$183,400,200 1,834,002 - 100 Civil engineering
(note(d)) BR &8 183,400,007 TAIR
RTEREBARAA (Wi () Deferred HK$25,936,00 259,361 - -
£ B L.996,2007
Eastech Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$6,081,000 6,081,000 - 453 Restaurant and bar
RERRAF Bk i AR 60810007 EEREE
Full Ascent Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 75 Property investment
BAREARAT 0 28 BT NERE
Giant Dragon (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 3248 Restaurant
BE(ER)ARAA BE i EB10,0007 2k
Giant Ocean (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200 200 - 43,53 Restaurant and bar
Bt (BB BRAR (0 B BB2007T SERER
Grand Concept (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 453 Restaurant and bar
& (FA)BRAT Bk B BE1007T EERER
Goldyork Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 49 51 Property investment
SHRERRAT B 5 AE100T NERE
Good Process Limited (note(d)) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$149 149 100 - Property development
BEARAA () B 28 BT DR
Deferred HK$51 51 - 100
i A1
Igor’s Group Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 3248 Restaurant
SREEERERLA B i AT 25
Info Dragon Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 3048 Trading and manufacturing of food
EAARAH B iy AE10,0007 and beverages
ARE ARG
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52 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued 52 ZEMTE AR @)
( )
Place or Issued and Effective percentage
country of paid up share of issued share
incorporation capital/ capital/registered
or registration/ Class of registered Number of capital held by the
Name of company operation shares capital shares Company Principal activities
] K0ARERRS
it/ EEnY BEATRMR Ra/dRRA
L ik R &5 B4 /ERER R#%E LEREAL TERR
Directly Indirectly
& B
% %
Lac Kar Investment Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,600,000 3,600,000 - 100 Property investment
NNEFARAA B i AB3600000 7T UESIES
Macleh (Chevalier) Limited Canada Common CAD101,100 10,100 - 100 Property investment and
JIEYN h 10110 N2 ATT hotel operation
NEREREZBESR
Macont Developments Inc. Canada Common CAD1,000 1,000 - 100 Property investment
mex i L0 MERT SIS
Marson Consultants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 10 - 3048 Restaurant and bar
RERAERAA B i BB ZERER
Matterhorn Properties Limited British Virgin lands ~ Ordinary USs1 1 - 100 Property investment
RBRARER 28 E NERE
New Global (H.X.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 3248 Restaurant and bar
Wi (ER)ARAA Bk i EB10,0007 REREE
Orient Talent (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 3248 Restaurant and bar
£7 (kAR ’/}E] 0 i AT EEREE
Pacific York (HX.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 3248 Restaurant and bar
EA(ER)ARAA & B8 A¥T EERER
PC Bar Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 3048 Catering
&% 28 LV 29
Peak Gain Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 2 - 100 Property investment
REBRAT B 28 AENT NERE
Peak Restaurants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 3248 Restaurant
Bk i AR £E
Proud Rich Limited (note (d)) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 2 - 100 Property investment
BRARAA(ME() 0 28 BB NERE
Deferred HK$20 2 - 100
B BENT
Restaurants Management Hong Kong Ordinary HKS! 1 - 3248 Restaurants management
(Hong Kong) Limited Bk 5 LV 2EER
Shanghai Chevalier Property Mainland China Not US53,650,000 Not - 100 Property management and
Management Co., Ltd (note (a)) REIM applicable 3650000570 applicable providing property management
HEHTHEERERAA( () R 2N il constltation
NRERREHNZEERD
Shanghai Chevalier Trading Mainland China Not US51,000,000 Not - 100 Trading of lifts, escalators,
Co,, Ltd. (note (a)) HER applicable 1,000,000% T applicable electrical and mechanical
FEETEARRAAMKE Q) oyilii vl equipment
K EREREEREES
Shanghai Chonmain Real Estate Mainland China Not US518,000,000 Not - 80 Property development and
Development Co. Ltd. (note (0) hER applicable 18,000,000 70 applicable investment
LB ARNERRERAA 0y i ielii NEEBRRE

(H3E ()
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LA B AR I A

52 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

52 FEMB QT &)

Place or Issued and Effective percentage
country of paid up share of issued share
incorporation capital/ capital/registered
or registration/ Class of registered Number of capital held by the
Name of company operation shares capital shares Company Principal activities
ARARREERS
i/ E%E BEATRMR Ra/EREA
L FER RAOEH B&/ERRE Rt ¥R ZERBA IEXH
Directly Indirectly
Bk ]
% %
Sinochina Enterprises Limited Britsh Virgin ISands ~~ Ordinary USS1,000 1,000 - 3048 Investment holding
(change of name to Cafe Deco RBERREE L LOW0ET RERR
Holdings Limited on 19 May 2011)
(R=Z-—FRATAASER
Cafe Deco Holdings Limited)
Success Well (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordlnary  HK$10,000 10,000 - 3248 Restaurant and bar
AB(FR)ARAE B i EB100007C FEREE
Sup Aswin Limited Thailand Ordlnary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 Property investment
58 il 15,000,000 & %%&ﬁ
Su et Ta%et Hong Kong ) Limited Hong Kong Ordlnary  HEKS100 100 - 3048 Restaurant and bar
& 3 B0 ZEREE
Talent Luck Limited (note (d)) Hong Kong Ordlnary  HK8270,000,000 270,000,000 - 100 Property development and
RERZARAA(MEQ) Bk A AB270000000 T investment
Deferred _HKS31 51 - 00 MEEEREA
Bt AT
Union Pearl Development Limited Hong Kong Ordlnary _HKS) 2 - 100 Pr(‘)%}‘)erty investment
ERSRARAA ) i AT HETE
Winfield Development Limited Hong Kong Ordlnary _HKS2 2 - 100 Property investment
AAERARAT 3 £ a7 e
Xlnzang Chevalier Hotel Co Ltd. (note (c)) Mainland China Not applicable  RMB35,000,000 Not - 70 Hotel operation
EREABEARLT RARY AR ABEBOMONT  applabl GEEEER
(W3 () E¥ ki
Changchun New Star Universe Sheng Chi  Mainland China Not applicable ~ RMB400,000,000 Not - 9% Property development
Real Estate Development Co. Ltd. b T AR 400,000,007 applicable WJ%E%%
EE5ETEURNERY TR
EREERE (note (c))
Tt (c)
757040 Ontario Limited Canada Common CADI0 10 - 100 Prg rty investment
nex iR 0IIEAT b
Notes: B 3
(a) Established in the Mainland China as wholly foreign owned enterprises. (@) BASMNEBECERFBAMAL
(b)  Preference shares are 10% non-cumulative and every four preference shares of this (b) BEKRAIFRT10%  MEARZEURELRHE—
company carry one vote. e
(c)  Established in the Mainland China as sino-foreign owned equity joint ventures. (c) MNHINEBELERTPBEAMKT
(d) Al deferred shares are non-voting and practically have no rights to participate in any (d) FARERMEERZE MERLTERELQRS

distribution upon winding up.
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53 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

&5 B W B WOk I G

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

53 T EBE N T

Effective percentage
Place or of issued capital/
country of registered capital
incorporation / Class of held by the Company
Name of company operation shares held indirectly  Principal activities
K AAMERE
A BRITRAY
AR HER 143 %8 5 AfMRAERE FBER
%
Chevalier Engineering (S) Singapore Ordinary 49  Installation and maintenance
Pte. Ltd. 3% Tim of lifts and escalators
ZRRERETTEER TR
Chevalier (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 49 Marketing, installation and
H+(FB)BERAA BB i maintenance of lifts and escalators
g RERRETEHE
Chevalier Lifts Engineering Mainland China Not 49  Installation and maintenance
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. B A applicable of lifts and escalators
ELEHTRORID i TRERETEHERERE
BR AT
Chevalier Singapore Holdings  Singapore Ordinary 49 Marketing, installation and
Pte. Ltd. 03K T maintenance of lifts and escalators
H 8 IR AL A g RERRETEHE
BRAR SERR
Elevator Parts Engineering Hong Kong Ordinary 49  Marketing, installation and
Company Limited & T maintenance of lifts and escalators
BERIEARLDA R 2R RREFEH
K2 Printing Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 49 Property investments
ENBER QA Bt & MERE
Shanghai Chevalier Lifts Mainland China Not applicable 49  Installation and maintenance
Engineering Co., Ltd. B i TNEH of lifts and escalators
FBETEBRIRERAA LR RRETEERERE
Sekisui SPR Europe GmbH Germany Ordinary 25 Pipe rehabilitation
1= EiE ERBEBE
Yue Xiu Concrete Hong Kong Ordinary 25  Manufacturing and provision of concrete
\ Com%any Limited B =R HERREERLT
BERRLBERAA
M) = E S BMR AT Mainland China Not applicable 36 Trading of motor vehicles and
B A NE _ provision of maintenance services
AEE S RREHERRS
ESEGEBEMAHEHEE  Mainland China Not applicable 20  Trading of motor vehicles and
RIEBR DA T At NaE _ provision of maintenance services
AEE G RRHERRS
Toshiba Elevator (China) Mainland China Not applicable 20  Manufacturing, sales, installation, repair
Co., Ltd. B 3 P and maintenance of lifts and escalators
REZER(PR)BRAF SUE HE TR RERRE
A2 W ER R
Toshiba Elevator (Shenyang) Mainland China Not : applicable 20  Manufacturing, sales, installation, repair
Co, Ltd. B 3 & and maintenance of lifts and escalators
REBEBORG)BRAA BUE HE RE BENRE
AR e R R
Notes: The Group’s entitlement to share in the profit or loss in these associates is in Mia: AEEFEEBRERT I GANNERDIZEERE

proportion to its ownership interest.

wmZ L PIFHE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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54 PRINCIPAL JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

55

54 FTEHEEGIBE

Place or Effective percentage
country of of issued share capital/
incorporation Form of registered share capital
or registration/ Class of business held by the Company
Name of jointly controlled entity operation sharesheld  structure indirectly Principal activities
| KA AMERE
‘ H B BRARAS ,
REEHEEER EHER bl [GES:T 5 HH’&HQ@KE? FREH
0
Lam Woo & Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Incorporated 50 Civil engineering
BREERRAR ; el i TARIRE
Lam Woo Construction Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Incorporated 50 Building maintenance
BEREARAA % %5 i PET
T REREREMEREFRAE  Mainland China Not applicable  Domestic enterprise 44 Property development
TR TR WALE NERR
RHBETEHEREERAA Mainland China Not applicable  Wholly foreign 49 Pro er%development
A N# owned enterprise ) i’g #
MEBERR
COMPARATIVE FIGURES 55 Lk EF

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in order to conform

with the presentation of current year.
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